
 
 
 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

 

Friday, September 9, 2016 

    1:00 PM 

 

 

 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Building D/E 

 



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

9/2/2016 If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, a record of 

the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based (FS 286.0105).  Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.  

 

 
 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting 

Friday, September 09, 2016 1 P.M. 

 Building D&E  

AGENDA 

Please turn off all cell phones 

 

1. Thought for the Day 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

3. Roll Call 

4. Presentations and Proclamations 

A. Retirement Recognition – Dorothy Larkin 

5. Approval of Minutes   

6. Treasurer’s Report 

7. Audience comment on Agenda Items 

8. Unfinished Business 

9.  New Business  

A. Employee Insurance Renewals 

B. DOR Violations 

i. Case # 16-002087 911 HYACINTH CIRCLE 

ii. Case # 16-002132 552 DOLPHIN CIRCLE 

iii. Case # 16-002019 526 PERSIMMON DRIVE 

iv. Case # 16-000981 1026 THRUSH CIRCLE 

C. Shuffle Board Court Resurfacing Award of Contract 

D. Upgrade of Golf Course Irrigation Control Unit Award of Contract 

E. Adoption of Revised F&B Principles of Operations 

F. Approval of FY18 Budget Preparation Calendar 

G. Violations Committee Re-appointment 

H. Baenziger Report Discussion 

I. Adoption of Revised Policy Manual 

J. Adoption of Revised Employee Handbook 

K. Acceptance of $60,000 (50% Match) Coastal Partnership Initiative Grant for the Beach 

L. Lawn Bowling Irrigation Replacement 

M. BBRD Census 

N. Increased Child Safety  

10. Manager’s Report 

11. Attorney’s Report  

12. Committee/Liaison Reports 

13. Incidental Trustee Remarks 

14. Audience Participation  

15. Adjournment  



 

 

 

 

I pledge allegiance to the Flag 

of the United States of 

America, and to the Republic 

for which it stands, one Nation 

under God, indivisible, with 

liberty and justice for all. 



 
Roll Call 

  
 
Trustees 
 
Chairman - Mr. Klosky  
 
1st Vice Chair - Ms. Wright 
 
2nd Vice Chair - Mr. Lavier 
 
Secretary - Mr. Diana 
 
Treasurer - Mr. Cavaliere 
 
 
Also Present  
 

General Counsel- Cliff Repperger, Jr., Esq. 
 

Community Manager - John W. Coffey  

 
District Clerk - Dawn Myers  
   

  

  

  

 

  



 
Approval of Minutes 

 
  

  

  

  

 



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

Page | 1 
 

 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, August 23, 2016 

           7 P.M. –Building D&E  

 

Called to Order 

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District held a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, August 23, 2016 in Building 

D&E, 1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida.  

Mr. Klosky called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

Thought for the Day 

Mr. Klosky asked for a moment of silence to remember all our service men and women, both past and 

present, who have or are currently helping to protect this great country of ours.  We would also like to 

remember all our residents of Barefoot Bay both past and present.  In addition, we would like to 

remember all the US athletes who participated in the 2016 Summer Olympics. Congratulations for their 

accumulated win of 121 medals, 41 Gold, 37 Silver and 78 Bronze.  And we would like to thank all the 

nations who participated as well.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Ms. Wright led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  

 

Roll Call 

Present: Mr. Klosky, Ms. Wright Mr. Diana, Mr. Lavier and Mr. Cavaliere. Also present: John W. 

Coffey, Community Manager, General Counsel Cliff Repperger and Dawn Myers, District Clerk.  

 

Minutes 

Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to approve the minutes. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Mr. Cavaliere presented the Treasurer’s Report for August 23, 2016.  

Mr. Diana made a motion to accept the Treasurer’s Report.  Second by Mr. Lavier.  Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Audience Participation (Agenda items only) 

Ms. Joy Liddy asked for justification on the increase in her lease and for the items that now fall onto her 

responsibility for repair. She voiced her dissatisfaction with issues at the shopping center that have not 

been resolved and questioned the District’s proposal to increase her rent almost 30%.  

 

 

 



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

Page | 2 
 

 

Old Business 

Security Advisory Committee Recommendation 

Mr. Cavaliere asked for clarification regarding the proposal from Mr. Jack Dunham. He inquired 

whether it is being recommended by the Security Committee. Mr. Klosky clarified that the Security 

Committee previously voted against the concept of private security. The Board has already approved and 

budgeted for a community watch program in FY17 out of the Resident Relations department. Mr. Diana 

stated that he did review the detailed proposal. He acknowledged the benefits of certain aspects,  

However, he is not in favor of the District supporting four armed security officers, as this poses the 

potential for negative consequences in the case of mistaken identity, etc.  

Mr. Cavaliere made a motion not to accept the proposal. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

Property Owner Survey Proposal 

Ms. Wright recommended the Board develop a survey committee that could possibly include a member 

of staff, committee chair, the Board, and HOA to review the previous surveys already distributed 

throughout the community. She also requested a review of the Operational Analysis from 2005. 

Additionally Ms. Wright suggested gathering the information acquired from this committee and taking it 

to a town hall style meeting so the homeowners can have an opportunity to communicate and prioritize 

their ideas as a group. Mr. Coffey reminded the Board that an advisory committee to the Board may not 

include a staff member or a trustee as voting members per BBRD policy. Board discussed options for 

establishing a committee within the policy guidelines. Mr. Klosky stated that he is in favor of the 

committee chairs getting together to come up with ideas for a survey. Mr. Lavier was in favor of 

gathering information from the residents in some way prior to developing a survey. He suggested a 

website based questionnaire for example, which residents could have access to from a public location as 

well as from the comfort of their homes. Mr. Cavaliere recommended we meet at a workshop and take 

those findings to the town hall style meeting where residents can provide input for the questions that 

would appear on the survey. Mr. Diana suggested informing the residents of the workshop and the 

meeting by advertising in the Tattler, email blasts, etc., so we maximize the potential for resident 

feedback. We can use the same method to inform and educate the residents as we develop the ideas 

acquired from the survey and what it will take to apply the changes.   

Mr. Harold Wortman stated that the previous surveys and the operational analysis provide a good 

snapshot of what the residents want. He suggested we start there and agreed that we should take the 

findings to a town hall style meeting. 

Mr. Randy Loveland stated that he had extensive background in surveys, he agreed with Mr. Wortman’s 

ideas regarding the prior surveys as they have important information we can use. He recommended 

making the questions for the future survey pertinent not only for the present environment but for future 

needs as well.  

Ms. Louise Crouse stated that the townhall style meeting is the best way to get an accurate idea of what 

changes the homeowners want. In addition to having the meeting, she recommended educating the 

residents regarding what is required to accomplish the changes. 

Ms. Wright made a motion to schedule a townhall meeting. Second by Mr. Lavier. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to schedule a workshop first to outline the items that will be on the agenda 

for the townhall meeting. Second by Ms. Wright.  Motion carried unanimously.  



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

Page | 3 
 

 

New Business 

Shopping Center Lease Renewal- Sunshine Rentals and Sales, LLC 

Sunshine Rentals and Sales, LLC lease expires on September 30, 2016. At the direction of the Board, the 

attached lease has been increased to $10.15 per square foot (adjusted for CPI per the CPI inflation 

calculator found on http://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/cpicalc.pl?cost1=10&year1=2015&year2=2016). This is a 

28% increase for this tenant in base rent. Alternatively, the Board has the option to consider phasing in 

the $10.00 rate so it is reached at the end of the 5 year term of the lease by raising that rate 7.5% per 

year. 

Mr. Cavaliere stated that he would like to see all the leases be triple net. The landlord traditionally is not 

responsible for the success of the business or inside the building but just the outside and surrounding 

area of the storefront. He stated that $10 per foot is not unreasonable. 

Ms. Liddy proposed the Board approve a 5% increase per year or she will be forced to look for resources 

elsewhere. She stated she has been in the store for 20 years and lived up to her lease 100%. Additionally, 

she commented on the outside of the store, stating that this area has not been maintained. Ms. Liddy 

maintained that this increase will put her out of business as she is being forced to be in competition with 

stores on US-1. She is not as visible as stores on US-1 and reminded the Board that she has been an asset 

to the community for 25 years. 

Mr. Lavier assured Ms. Liddy that this is in no disrespect to her, but agreed that the District has had to 

increase leases in the shopping center in general and cannot make an exception for her. We addressed 

this issue with the 2002 Restaurant not long ago and in the spirit of fair business practices, cannot 

increase the rent for one business and not the other. Mr. Diana was in favor of staggering the increase so 

it is easier to accommodate over three years rather that five suggested by Mr. Coffey. Ms. Wright stated 

that she is in agreement with Mr. Lavier and her colleagues as it would not be fair for the other lease 

holders if we do not increase this lease in line with the others. 

Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to execute the lease no lower than the lowest lease in the shopping center 

to meet $10 a foot within one year. Second by Ms. Wright. Mr. Klosky opposed. Motion carried 4-1. 

 

Shopping Center Lease Renewal- Brevard County Water and Sewer 

Brevard County’s current lease for Water and Sewer department expires on September 30, 2016. At the 

direction of the Board, the lease has been increased to $10.15 per square foot (adjusted for the CPI 

inflation calculator found on http://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/cpicalc.pl?cost1=10&year1=2015&year2=2016  

Mr. Lavier made a motion to approve the said lease for Brevard Water and Sewer. Second by Mr. 

Cavaliere. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Manager’s Report  

Mr. Coffey reported on the recent Beach Planning Townhall Meeting where 48 homeowners and 

residents attended to voice their opinions on priorities for the BBRD beach grant programs. The 

following items were the top priority of those in attendance: 

Active Recreation Projects 

Large Pavilion 

Nature Trail 

Educational Signage 

 

http://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/cpicalc.pl?cost1=10&year1=2015&year2=2016
http://data.bls.gov/cgi-bin/cpicalc.pl?cost1=10&year1=2015&year2=2016


BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

Page | 4 
 

 

Support Projects 

Electronic Access Gate 

Restrooms 

Non-paved parking 

Maintaining a natural look 

TLC will prepare a conceptual site design, rough magnitude of costs of each element and report of any 

regulatory issues that will be reviewed by the Facilities Planning Advisory Committee prior to the 

information being placed on a Board agenda for review and adoption. 

 

Attorney’s Report  

General Counsel Repperger stated that we are close to scheduling a date for the Guinther vs BBRD case. 

He is working out final affidavit issues with Mr. Coffey. He expects to file by the end of the week and 

will confirm the date as soon as it is filed. He discussed the topic of Board term limits as he recently met 

with Representative Tobia. He has a good idea of what it will take and asked for Board approval to 

move forward. Board consensus to move forward with the previously agreed concept of three terms of 

two years. General Counsel updated the Board on the referendum language for the restrooms as this was 

received and approved by the County by within the deadline. He gave an update on the 852 Waterway 

case stating that that he was in contact with the owner and the owner’s attorney. The owner did stop the 

eviction process as the tenant agreed to move out but currently he is still on premises.  Mr. Diana voiced 

dissatisfaction with the current status as the tenant has delayed resolution of this issue from the 

beginning and continues to do so. He recommended General Counsel pursue our legal options to resolve 

the case and remove the tenant. Board consensus to have General Counsel move forward with the legal 

process concerning 852 Waterway. 

 

Trustee Liaison Report 

Mr. Klosky gave the ARCC and Violations report. Violations Committee met on Friday, August 12th. 

Forty Four cases were on the agenda and twenty-eight cases were found in violation. Sixteen cases came 

into compliance prior to the meeting. The next meeting will take place on September 9th at 10AM in 

Building D/E.  The ARCC met today August 23, 2016 to review ten permits and ten were approved. The 

next ARCC meeting is on Tuesday, September 6th 9AM in the Lounge. 

Mr. Lavier reported that the Property Services latest updates include replacement lights over the pool 

tables in the billiards room, pressure washing 15 shuffle board courts, completed the trim in the pro shop 

and current ongoing improvements on the golf course. The Golf report includes replacement stairs at #1 

tee box, a drainage ditch being installed between the hole #3 teebox and the fairway, sand trap 

restoration to be completed by the end of September and #12 teebox to open by September 12th. 

Ms. Wright reported on Food and Beverage. The 2nd Annual Chili Cook Off will take place this 

Saturday, August 27th. Fifteen people have signed up compared to 5 last year so it should be a great 

competition. Blue Fusion will provide musical entertainment. Trustees will be participate in a dunk tank 

so lots of fun will be had. Tickets are currently on sale for an Evening with Motown featuring the Sisters 

of Soul on Saturday, September 24th in Building A from 6-10PM.   

Mr. Diana gave the District Clerk Office and Facilities Planning report. The Facilities Planning 

Committee will begin discussing the 5 Year Plan at the next meeting. BBRD buildings will be much of 

the focus at the next meeting. 



BAREFOOT BAY 

RECREATION DISTRICT 
 

 

Page | 5 
 

 

Ms. Wilma Weglein thanked the District and staff for helping set up the A/V recording for the Candidate 

Forum and voiced her appreciation for staff assistance getting the DVD to the Space Coast Government 

TV station. She has copies that she can loan to any interested parties. The forum went well. Twenty 

candidates participated and the forum ran for two hours. She thanked Ms. Wright for attending and 

asked the whereabouts of trustees that did not attend (that were in town). The first Tuesday in September 

HOA will resume its first Board meeting of the season. The first meeting speaker is a deputy that works 

closely with Crimewatch. We will be discussing ways to secure and protect your home. 

 

Trustee’s Incidental Remarks 

Mr. Klosky thanked Mr. Coffey and everyone else who shared in the birthday festivities prior to the start 

of the meeting. 

Mr. Diana thanked the HOA for holding the Candidate Forum for the second year in a row. 

Ms. Wright thanked the HOA and the Property Services Manager, Matt Goetz for his help in setting up 

and running the candidate forum. She addressed her colleagues thanking them for heeding staff advice 

as was evident in the meeting here tonight. 

 

Audience Participation 

Mr. Harold Wortman commented on the status of the litigation between the District and Tom Guinther. 

He indicated that General Counsel could have provided an opinion from the Attorney General’s Office 

at no charge, yet General Counsel pursued a costly lawsuit 

 

Adjournment 

The next meeting is scheduled on Friday, September 9, 2016 at 1PM in Building D/E. 

Mr. Cavaliere made a motion to adjourn. Second by Mr. Diana. Motion carried unanimously.  

Meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________              ____________________________ 

Steve Diana, Secretary      Dawn Myers, District Clerk 



 
Treasurer’s Report 

 
  

  

  

  

 



Cash Balances in General Fund as of 9/1/2016

Bank of America:
Operating Account 1,262,594.14$                

Money Market Account 105,608.10$                    

Total Cash Balances @BOA in General Fund: 1,368,202.24$                

SBA:   as of 9/1/2016

Capital Improvement Account 128,842.96$                    

Reserve Account 550,856.88$                    

Total Cash Balances @SBA in General Fund: 679,699.84$                   

Total Cash Balances in General Fund: 2,047,902.08$        

Cash Balance in Debt Fund as of 9/1/2016

SBA:
Debt Account 479,996.83$                    

Total Cash Balance in Debt Fund: 479,996.83$            

* Participant Return for SBA in August 2016 was 0.72%

Total Cash Balances in All Funds: 2,527,898.91$    

Total Cash receipts from August 15 to August 31, 2016:
Daily deposits: 28,518.28$                      

Assessments received: -$                                  

28,518.28$                      

Expenditures over $5,000 from August 15 to August 31, 2016:

Check Amount
60,647.30$                      

11,457.23$                      

37,556.75$                      

5,852.00$                        

17,001.45$                      

11,434.71$                      

Total of Expenditures over $5,000 143,949.44$            

*8/25/16 Employer Tax Liabilities was only $4,806.99, and therefore, was not listed above

Management Fee Aug 2016Special District Services, Inc

Health insurance Sept 2016UnitedHealthcare

Gray Robinson Legal Fees July 2016

ABM Landscape Golf course, softball, lawn bowling maint.

ABM Landscape Nematode control of 19 greens

Employees Salaries and WagesEmployees*

Barefoot Bay Recreation District
Treasurer's Report

September 9, 2016

Vendor Description



Barefoot Bay Recreation District

Monthly Summary - BOT Monthly Summary Treasurer Report

From 10/1/2015 Through 8/31/2016

10/1/2015 - 

10/31/2015

11/1/2015 - 

11/30/2015

12/1/2015 - 

12/31/2015

1/1/2016 - 

1/31/2016

2/1/2016 - 

2/29/2016

3/1/2016 - 

3/31/2016

4/1/2016 - 

4/30/2016

5/1/2016 - 

5/31/2016

6/1/2016 - 

6/30/2016

7/1/2016 - 

7/31/2016

8/1/2016 - 

8/31/2016 Total

Revenues

   Daily Revenue/Deposits 372,836.90 182,409.19 216,964.02 193,707.84 212,305.03 249,996.33 189,740.82 130,169.90 103,984.05 127,490.94 263,763.55 2,243,368.57 

   Assessments 2,103.42 659,485.24 1,764,997.23 213,883.50 165,565.31 163,242.94 280,535.13 76,888.09 179,552.98 4,931.86 0.00 3,511,185.70 

Total Revenues 374,940.32 841,894.43 1,981,961.25 407,591.34 377,870.34 413,239.27 470,275.95 207,057.99 283,537.03 132,422.80 263,763.55 5,754,554.27 

General Fund Expenditures

   Payroll

      Salaries & Wages 76,985.69 123,574.11 188,294.56 131,124.39 131,010.93 133,499.63 132,347.19 127,404.91 186,007.39 119,352.14 120,070.63 1,469,671.57 

      Other Pay & Benefit 1,340.27 1,561.52 2,104.43 1,617.52 2,633.40 3,670.30 2,247.77 2,400.57 2,685.57 1,841.62 1,698.52 23,801.49 

      Payroll Taxes 6,014.14 9,758.19 14,863.99 13,251.47 13,274.32 13,420.10 12,410.40 11,428.90 15,435.88 8,790.63 9,610.36 128,258.38 

      Payroll Fees 476.90 478.00 1,360.58 1,484.35 1,112.96 1,706.24 983.21 1,046.45 1,241.10 979.30 940.39 11,809.48 

Total Payroll 84,817.00 135,371.82 206,623.56 147,477.73 148,031.61 152,296.27 147,988.57 142,280.83 205,369.94 130,963.69 132,319.90 1,633,540.92 

   Professional Expenses

      SDS 14,452.04 11,458.78 16,840.64 11,644.63 11,447.65 11,536.41 11,692.09 11,450.79 12,014.59 11,315.26 11,434.71 135,287.59 

      Gray Robinson 8,593.23 6,979.41 8,975.88 11,717.50 12,082.14 15,040.32 10,710.82 15,984.73 13,330.32 11,457.23 0.00 114,871.58 

      Other Prof. Fees 21,835.80 19,613.45 23,822.10 9,646.70 3,141.70 4,142.20 10,614.70 9,093.70 9,597.15 9,793.38 2,408.70 123,709.58 

Total Professional Expenses 44,881.07 38,051.64 49,638.62 33,008.83 26,671.49 30,718.93 33,017.61 36,529.22 34,942.06 32,565.87 13,843.41 373,868.75 

   Insurance

      Employees Health, Dental & Life 12,892.00 12,859.80 10,709.68 16,640.63 13,278.69 13,497.73 14,225.56 12,876.42 9,838.63 12,056.64 12,844.58 141,720.36 

      Liabilities Ins. 17,854.87 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 11,312.83 130,983.17 

      Worker Comp. Ins. 16,216.25 5,338.75 5,338.75 5,338.75 9,634.75 5,338.75 5,338.75 5,338.75 5,338.75 5,338.77 0.00 68,561.02 

Total Insurance 46,963.12 29,511.38 27,361.26 33,292.21 34,226.27 30,149.31 30,877.14 29,528.00 26,490.21 28,708.24 24,157.41 341,264.55 

   Utilities

      Telephone, Internet & Cable 5,357.57 3,535.49 3,459.87 2,293.60 2,511.20 2,275.19 2,277.90 2,478.35 1,900.03 3,098.07 2,605.98 31,793.25 

      Electricity - FPL 5,879.32 7,061.96 6,590.49 5,519.83 6,060.86 6,747.50 6,378.09 7,039.24 7,123.00 7,466.41 0.00 65,866.70 

      Propane (1,544.39) (1,425.95) (1,795.46) 2,619.51 2,476.40 2,077.93 1,697.78 760.69 508.35 419.15 39.94 5,833.95 

      Water & Sewer 2,785.46 4,698.78 4,119.71 4,425.75 5,929.47 5,074.61 5,358.11 4,472.29 4,122.07 4,367.99 0.00 45,354.24 

      Garbage & Recycling 1,616.09 2,388.16 1,525.93 1,750.76 2,275.67 2,059.41 2,241.06 2,060.89 2,061.89 2,676.40 2,064.64 22,720.90 

      Portable Toilets 604.39 442.39 440.13 437.08 434.25 730.50 437.60 440.35 455.65 426.27 500.20 5,348.81 

Total Utilities 14,698.44 16,700.83 14,340.67 17,046.53 19,687.85 18,965.14 18,390.54 17,251.81 16,170.99 18,454.29 5,210.76 176,917.85 

   Operations

      Music and Entertainment 5,675.00 5,630.00 7,230.00 7,245.00 6,860.00 8,035.00 7,135.00 4,600.00 4,580.00 6,130.00 5,000.00 68,120.00 

      Cost of Sales 31,798.25 33,007.16 45,722.51 45,332.04 43,502.66 63,162.90 43,126.98 42,354.86 18,480.75 28,843.02 2,424.99 397,756.12 

Total Operations 37,473.25 38,637.16 52,952.51 52,577.04 50,362.66 71,197.90 50,261.98 46,954.86 23,060.75 34,973.02 7,424.99 465,876.12 

   Repairs and Maintenance

      Golf Course - ABM 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 35,871.89 394,590.79 

      Canal/Lake 4,237.50 1,962.50 2,550.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,490.00 0.00 35,240.00 

      Other R&Ms 38,515.33 42,317.50 23,228.48 17,981.05 20,561.71 16,327.24 12,761.03 16,913.03 21,766.10 25,390.77 19,395.49 255,157.73 

Date:  9/2/2016, 11:21 AM Page:  1



Barefoot Bay Recreation District

Monthly Summary - BOT Monthly Summary Treasurer Report

From 10/1/2015 Through 8/31/2016

Total Repairs and Maintenance 78,624.72 80,151.89 61,650.37 53,852.94 56,433.60 52,199.13 48,632.92 52,784.92 57,637.99 87,752.66 55,267.38 684,988.52 

   Property Taxes 0.00 28,470.68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,434.59 0.00 29,905.27 

   Bank Fees 1,063.78 3,693.99 2,053.18 2,245.48 2,140.80 2,065.44 (22.09) 1,805.83 1,125.02 1,739.24 0.00 17,910.67 

   Capital Expenses 49,096.79 23,797.88 18,866.85 650.00 26,638.70 20,756.14 19,579.90 24,090.31 29,596.97 33,985.68 13,485.31 260,544.53 

   Other Misc. Expenditures 28,613.82 50,688.65 104,159.61 98,583.42 32,364.13 29,445.92 22,589.68 32,147.71 24,240.25 23,711.20 23,688.39 470,232.78 

   Transfer to Debt Service Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 570,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 570,000.00 

Total General Fund Expenditures 386,231.99 445,075.92 537,646.63 438,734.18 396,557.11 407,794.18 371,316.25 953,373.49 418,634.18 394,288.48 275,397.55 5,025,049.96 

Debt Service Fund Expenditures

   Debt Service Principal 0.00 0.00 42,487.90 655,574.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

   Debt Service Interest 0.00 0.00 2,073.27 83,958.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total Debt Service Fund Expenditures 0.00 0.00 44,561.17 739,532.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

*PLEASE NOTE THAT BBRD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE REPORTED USING THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING.

ALL REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES IN THIS REPORT REPRESENT ENTRIES RECORDED ON OR BEFORE 9/1/2016.

Date:  9/2/2016, 11:21 AM Page:  2



 
Audience Participation     

Agenda items only 
 

  

  

  

 



 
Unfinished Business 

 
  

  

  

  

 



	
New	Business	

 
  

  

  

  

 



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    A

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  FY17 Employee Insurance Renewal 

 

Dept/Office: Resident Relations: Customer Service 

 

Requested Action: Selection of Employee Health and Ancillary Insurance Plans 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

Health Insurance 

Participating employees have been insured for medical coverage under United Health Care under 

OGZ w/40 plan since 01Oct2015.  Due to Obamacare (so-called Affordable Care Act) 

regulations, said plan is no longer offered and AHNQ is offered instead.  Staff received 8 quotes 

from 2 companies (6 from UHC and 2 from Health First) for consideration on 01Sep16 from 

Brown & Brown (BBRD’s insurance broker).  Due to Obamacare regulations, an “affordable” 

plan must be offered which is defined as not greater than 9.5 percent of an employee's W-2 

taxable (Box 1) income. For FY17, the “Affordability $5,000 Deductible AHNG” plan meets this 

criteria. Listed below are the plans, costs and comparison to the FY17 Budget.  Annual costs and 

savings assume all employees choose the same plan. 

Renewal 

Increase 

%

Monthly 

per emp. 

Premium

Monthly per 

emp. BBRD 

Cost (75%) # Emp.

Annual BBRD 

Total Cost

Budget 

minus 

Renewal 

Rate

FY 17 Budget 12.0% 884.44    663.33          24       191,040.00    N/A

UHC Renewal  AHNQ 12.0% 884.46    663.35          22       175,124.40    15,915.60   

Alt. #1 AHN2 6.9% 844.29    633.22          22       167,170.08    23,869.92   

Alt. #2 AHNP 4.3% 823.62    617.72          22       163,078.08    27,961.92   

$500 Dedcut. AHNK 0.3% 791.85    593.89          22       156,786.96    34,253.04   

$250 Deduct. AHN2 6.9% 844.29    633.22          22       167,170.08    23,869.92   

HFHP POS Plan 6105 8% 850.06    637.55          22       168,313.20    22,726.80   

HFHP PPO Plan 6128 3.5% 816.95    612.71          22       161,755.44    29,284.56   

Affordability $5,000 

Deduct. AHNG -17.9% 648.70    551.40          22       145,569.60    45,470.40    
 

The FY17 Budget was based on 24 participating employees while current projections indicate 22 

participating employees at the start of FY17.  The reader should be cautious in review Health 

First’s proposals (i.e. HF HP) as the company (BBRD’s previous insurance carrier) submitted a 

20% renewal increase last year).  After a thorough review and analysis of the plans, costs and 

impact upon FY17 Budget and employees, staff recommends the BOT renew with UHC plan 

AHNQ and select the UHC plan “Affordable $5,000 Deductible AHNG”as a second optional plan 

for employee Health insurance. Details of each plan are attached. 

 

 

 

 



Dental Insurance 

Staff received quotes for 5 plans from 4 companies (UNC, Ameritas, Principal and (2) UNUM.   

Renewal 

Increase 

%

Monthly 

per emp. 

Premium

Monthly per 

emp. BBRD 

Cost (75%) # Emp.

Annual BBRD 

Total Cost

Budget 

minus 

Renewal 

Rate

FY 17 Budget 3.0% 35.78      26.83             25       8,050.00         N/A

UHC  Renewal F3387 PPO -4.0% 33.29      24.97             22       6,592.08         1,457.92    

Ameritas Plan 1 -1.2% 32.80      24.60             22       6,494.40         1,555.60    

Principal -23.8% 26.42      19.82             22       5,232.48         2,817.52    

UNUM $1,000 Max -21.1% 26.60      19.95             22       5,266.80         2,783.20    

UNUM $1,500 Max -15% 27.90      20.93             22       5,525.52         2,524.48     
 

The FY17 Budget was based on 25 participating employees while current projections indicate 22 

participating employees at the start of FY17.  After a thorough review and analysis of the plans, 

costs and impact upon FY17 Budget and employees, staff recommends the BOT renew UHC plan 

F3387 PPO for employee Dental insurance. Details of each plan are attached. 

 

 

Life and AD&D Insurance 

BBRD currently offers an optional employee Life and AD&D Insurance through Guardian. Staff 

received quotes for 3 plans from 3 companies (Guardian, Principal and UNUM). 

Renewal 

Increase 

%

Monthly 

per emp. 

Premium

Monthly per 

emp. BBRD 

Cost (100%) # Emp.

Annual BBRD 

Total Cost

Budget 

minus 

Renewal 

Rate

FY 17 Budget N/A 4.00         4.00               33       1,536.00         N/A

Guardian Renewal 8.0% 3.43         3.43               33       1,357.92         178.08       

Principal -3.0% 3.09         3.09               33       1,222.08         313.92       

UNUM -11.0% 2.84         2.84               33       1,126.08         409.92        
 

The FY17 Budget was based on 100% employee funding of this optional insurance plan.  After a 

thorough review and analysis of the plans, no minimum participation, benefit to employees, staff 

recommends the BOT select UNUM for employee Life and AD&D insurance. Details of each 

plan are attached. 

 

Voluntary Vision Insurance 

BBRD currently offers an optional employee paid vision plan with United Healthcare.  BBRD 

received quotes for 3 plans from 2 insurance companies: United Healthcare and Ameritas. 

 

The FY17 Budget was based on 100% employee funding of this optional insurance plan.  After a 

thorough review and analysis of the plans, no minimum participation and costs remaining the 

same at $2.58 per paycheck, staff recommends the BOT renew UHC plan 01U9116 for voluntary 

Vision insurance. Details of each plan are attached. 

 

 

Voluntary Life and AD&D Insurance 

BBRD received quotes for 3 plans from 3 insurance companies: MetLife (current provider), 

Principal and UNUM.  The FY17 Budget was based on 100% employee funding of this optional 

insurance plan.  After a thorough review and analysis of the plans, no minimum participation, 

benefit to employees, staff recommends the BOT renew Met Life for voluntary employee Life 

and AD&D insurance. Details of each plan are attached. 

 



 

 

Voluntary Short Term Disability Insurance 

BBRD received quotes for 3 plans from 3 insurance companies: MetLife (current provider), 

Principal and UNUM.  The FY17 Budget was based on 100% employee funding of this optional 

insurance plan.  After a thorough review and analysis of the plans, no minimum participation, 

benefit to employees, staff recommends the BOT renew Met Life for voluntary Short-term 

Disability insurance. Details of each plan are attached. 

 

Summary 

The cost of providing employee insurance is a significant yet required cost to maintain a quality 

workforce in a competitive environment.  Below is a summary of the budgetary savings as 

previously recommended.  The reader should note that a change in employee participation 

(currently only 22 out 33 eligible employees are electing health insurance coverage) could 

substantially alter the cost or savings to BBRD for these benefits. 

 

Insurance type

Budgetary 

Savings

Health 15,915.60  

Dental 1,457.92    

Life and AD&D 409.92        

Total 17,783.44   
 

Additionally, employees selecting the “affordable” health insurance plan would also reduce the 

cost to BBRD, although for purposes of this analysis all employees are assumed to be selecting 

the more expensive monthly costing option. 

 

Exhibits Attached:  Quotes from Brown & Brown 

Contact: Sue Cuddie, Resident Relations Manager; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: $182,842.56 (unless there is a change in employee participation) 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



Renewal

Closest Match Alternate 1 Alternate 2

0GZ w/40 AHNQ AHN2 AHNP

Plan Year 10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Deductible (CY- Calendar Year)

In Network (Individual / Family) $0 / $0 $0 / $0 $250 / $500 $1,000 / $2,000
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $400 / $1,000 $400 / $1,000 $500 / $1,000 $2,000 / $4,000
Coinsurance

In Network 20% 20% 10% after Deductible 0% after Deductible
Out of Network 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 50% after Deductible 20% after Deductible
Coinsurance Maximum (Out of Pocket Max)

In Network (Individual / Family) $1,500 / $3,000 $1,500 / $3,000 $2,500 / $5,000 $3,000 / $6,000
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $3,500 / $7,000 $3,500 / $7,000 $5,000 / $10,000 $5,000 / $10,000
Physician Co-Pay

Primary Care Physician $15 Copay $15 Copay $20 Copay $20 Copay
Specialist $30 Copay $30 Copay $40 Copay $40 Copay
RX Card-Participating Pharmacies

RX CY Deductible (Individual / Family) None None None None
(Tier 1/Tier 2/Tier 3/Specialty) - 30 days $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100
Mail Order - 90 days 2.5x 2.5x 2.5x 2.5x
Emergency

Urgent Care Center $100 Copay $100 Copay $100 Copay $100 Copay
Emergency Room $350 Copay $350 Copay $350 Copay $350 Copay
Hospitalization

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 0% after Deductible
Outpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 0% after Deductible
Diagnostic Testing (Free Standing Facilities)

Independent Clinical Lab No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
Other Diagnostic (Xray) No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
Advanced Imaging Services (MRI, PET, CT) 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 20% Coinsurance
Mental Health/Substance Dependency

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 0% after Deductible
Outpatient (PCP/Specialty) $30 Copay $30 Copay $40 Copay $40 Copay
Out of Network Coverage 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 50% after Deductible 40% after Deductible
AM Best Rating A A A A

Employee Only 20 $789.70 $884.46 $844.29 $823.62
Employee + Spouse 0 $1,689.96 $1,892.75 $1,806.78 $1,762.55

Employee + Child(ren) 0 $1,610.99 $1,804.30 $1,722.35 $1,680.19
Family 0 $2,416.48 $2,706.45 $2,583.53 $2,520.28

Estimated Monthly Premium $15,794.00 $17,689.20 $16,885.80 $16,472.40

12.00% 6.91% 4.30%

75% 75% 75% 75%

75% of EE only 75% of EE only 75% of EE only 75% of EE only
Employee Only 20 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $617.72

Employee + Spouse 0 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $617.72
Employee + Child(ren) 0 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $617.72

Family 0 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $617.72
$11,845.50 $13,266.90 $12,664.35 $12,354.30

Employee Monthly Total

Employee Only $197.43 $221.12 $211.07 $205.91
Employee + Spouse $1,097.69 $1,229.41 $1,173.56 $1,144.84

Employee + Child(ren) $1,018.72 $1,140.96 $1,089.13 $1,062.48
Family $1,824.21 $2,043.11 $1,950.31 $1,902.57

26 26 26 26
Employee Only $91.12 $102.05 $97.42 $95.03

Employee + Spouse $506.62 $567.42 $541.64 $528.39
Employee + Child(ren) $470.18 $526.59 $502.68 $490.37

Family $841.94 $942.97 $900.14 $878.11

Barefoot Bay Recreation District - UHC Medical Renewal and Alternate Plans

Plan Type

Employee Participation Requirement

Employer Contribution Requirement

Estimated Monthly Premium

Company/Benefits Current - UHC

Estimated Percentage Change:

Employer Contribution

Employer Monthly Premium

Employer Monthly Premium

Employee Bi-Weekly Deductions

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy 
benefits.



Renewal Affordability Plan

Closest Match $500 Deductible $5,000 Deductible

0GZ w/40 AHNQ AHNK AHNG

Plan Year 10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Deductible (CY- Calendar Year)

In Network (Individual / Family) $0 / $0 $0 / $0 $500 / $1,000 $5,000 / $10,000
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $400 / $1,000 $400 / $1,000 $1,000 / $2,000 $10,000 / $20,000
Coinsurance

In Network 20% 20% 20% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
Out of Network 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 50% after Deductible
Coinsurance Maximum (Out of Pocket Max)

In Network (Individual / Family) $1,500 / $3,000 $1,500 / $3,000 $3,000 / $6,000 $6,600 / $13,200
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $3,500 / $7,000 $3,500 / $7,000 $6,000 / $12,000 $15,000 / $30,000
Physician Co-Pay

Primary Care Physician $15 Copay $15 Copay $25 Copay $25 Copay
Specialist $30 Copay $30 Copay $50 Copay $50 Copay
RX Card-Participating Pharmacies

RX CY Deductible (Individual / Family) None None None None
(Tier 1/Tier 2/Tier 3/Specialty) - 30 days $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100
Mail Order - 90 days 2.5x 2.5x 2.5x 2.5x
Emergency

Urgent Care Center $100 Copay $100 Copay $100 Copay $100 Copay
Emergency Room $350 Copay $350 Copay $350 Copay $350 Copay
Hospitalization

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
Outpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 40% after Deductible 50% after Deductible
Diagnostic Testing (Free Standing Facilities)

Independent Clinical Lab No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
Other Diagnostic (Xray) No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
Advanced Imaging Services (MRI, PET, CT) 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% after Deductible 30% Coinsurance
Mental Health/Substance Dependency

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
Outpatient (PCP/Specialty) $30 Copay $30 Copay $50 Copay $50 Copay
Out of Network Coverage 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 50% after Deductible
AM Best Rating A A A A

Employee Only 20 $789.70 $884.46 $791.85 $648.70
Employee + Spouse 0 $1,689.96 $1,892.75 $1,694.56 $1,388.22

Employee + Child(ren) 0 $1,610.99 $1,804.30 $1,615.38 $1,323.35
Family 0 $2,416.48 $2,706.45 $2,423.06 $1,985.02

Estimated Monthly Premium $15,794.00 $17,689.20 $15,837.00 $12,974.00

12.00% 0.27% -17.85%

75% 75% 75% 85%

75% of EE only 75% of EE only 75% of EE only 85% of EE only
Employee Only 20 $592.28 $663.35 $593.89 $551.40

Employee + Spouse 0 $592.28 $663.35 $593.89 $551.40
Employee + Child(ren) 0 $592.28 $663.35 $593.89 $551.40

Family 0 $592.28 $663.35 $593.89 $551.40
$11,845.50 $13,266.90 $11,877.75 $11,027.90

Employee Monthly Total

Employee Only $197.43 $221.12 $197.96 $97.31
Employee + Spouse $1,097.69 $1,229.41 $1,100.67 $836.83

Employee + Child(ren) $1,018.72 $1,140.96 $1,021.49 $771.96
Family $1,824.21 $2,043.11 $1,829.17 $1,433.63

26 26 26 26
Employee Only $91.12 $102.05 $91.37 $44.91

Employee + Spouse $506.62 $567.42 $508.00 $386.23
Employee + Child(ren) $470.18 $526.59 $471.46 $356.29

Family $841.94 $942.97 $844.23 $661.67
These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy 
benefits.

Estimated Monthly Premium

Estimated Percentage Change:

Employer Contribution

Employer Monthly Premium

Employer Monthly Premium

Employee Bi-Weekly Deductions

Barefoot Bay Recreation District - UHC Medical Renewal - Triple Option with Affordable Plan

Company/Benefits Current - UHC

Plan Type

Employee Participation Requirement

Employer Contribution Requirement



Renewal Affordability Plan

Closest Match $250 Deductible $5,000 Deductible

0GZ w/40 AHNQ AHN2 AHNG

Plan Year 10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Deductible (CY- Calendar Year)

In Network (Individual / Family) $0 / $0 $0 / $0 $250 / $500 $5,000 / $10,000
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $400 / $1,000 $400 / $1,000 $500 / $1,000 $10,000 / $20,000
Coinsurance

In Network 20% 20% 10% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
Out of Network 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 50% after Deductible 50% after Deductible
Coinsurance Maximum (Out of Pocket Max)

In Network (Individual / Family) $1,500 / $3,000 $1,500 / $3,000 $2,500 / $5,000 $6,600 / $13,200
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $3,500 / $7,000 $3,500 / $7,000 $5,000 / $10,000 $15,000 / $30,000
Physician Co-Pay

Primary Care Physician $15 Copay $15 Copay $20 Copay $25 Copay
Specialist $30 Copay $30 Copay $40 Copay $50 Copay
RX Card-Participating Pharmacies

RX CY Deductible (Individual / Family) None None None None
(Tier 1/Tier 2/Tier 3/Specialty) - 30 days $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100
Mail Order - 90 days 2.5x 2.5x 2.5x 2.5x
Emergency

Urgent Care Center $100 Copay $100 Copay $100 Copay $100 Copay
Emergency Room $350 Copay $350 Copay $350 Copay $350 Copay
Hospitalization

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
Outpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 50% after Deductible
Diagnostic Testing (Free Standing Facilities)

Independent Clinical Lab No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
Other Diagnostic (Xray) No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
Advanced Imaging Services (MRI, PET, CT) 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 30% Coinsurance
Mental Health/Substance Dependency

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 10% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
Outpatient (PCP/Specialty) $30 Copay $30 Copay $40 Copay $50 Copay
Out of Network Coverage 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 50% after Deductible 50% after Deductible
AM Best Rating A A A A

Employee Only 20 $789.70 $884.46 $844.29 $648.70
Employee + Spouse 0 $1,689.96 $1,892.75 $1,806.78 $1,388.22

Employee + Child(ren) 0 $1,610.99 $1,804.30 $1,722.35 $1,323.35
Family 0 $2,416.48 $2,706.45 $2,583.53 $1,985.02

Estimated Monthly Premium $15,794.00 $17,689.20 $16,885.80 $12,974.00

12.00% 6.91% -17.85%

75% 75% 75% 85%

75% of EE only 75% of EE only 75% of EE only 85% of EE only
Employee Only 20 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $551.40

Employee + Spouse 0 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $551.40
Employee + Child(ren) 0 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $551.40

Family 0 $592.28 $663.35 $633.22 $551.40
$11,845.50 $13,266.90 $12,664.35 $11,027.90

Employee Monthly Total

Employee Only $197.43 $221.12 $211.07 $97.31
Employee + Spouse $1,097.69 $1,229.41 $1,173.56 $836.83

Employee + Child(ren) $1,018.72 $1,140.96 $1,089.13 $771.96
Family $1,824.21 $2,043.11 $1,950.31 $1,433.63

26 26 26 26
Employee Only $91.12 $102.05 $97.42 $44.91

Employee + Spouse $506.62 $567.42 $541.64 $386.23
Employee + Child(ren) $470.18 $526.59 $502.68 $356.29

Family $841.94 $942.97 $900.14 $661.67

Employee Participation Requirement

Employer Contribution Requirement

Estimated Monthly Premium

Barefoot Bay Recreation District - UHC Medical Renewal - Triple Option with Affordable Plan

Company/Benefits Current - UHC

Plan Type

Estimated Percentage Change:

Employer Contribution

Employer Monthly Premium

Employer Monthly Premium

Employee Bi-Weekly Deductions

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy 
benefits.



Renewal HFHP HFHP

Closest Match POS Plan PPO Plan

0GZ w/40 AHNQ 6105 6128

Plan Year 10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Deductible (CY- Calendar Year)

In Network (Individual / Family) $0 / $0 $0 / $0 $0 / $0 $500 / $1,000
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $400 / $1,000 $400 / $1,000 $500 / $1,000 $1,000 / $2,000
Coinsurance

In Network 20% 20% 20% 20% after Deductible
Out of Network 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
Coinsurance Maximum (Out of Pocket Max)

In Network (Individual / Family) $1,500 / $3,000 $1,500 / $3,000 $2,000 / $4,000 $3,000 / $6,000
Out of Network (Individual / Family) $3,500 / $7,000 $3,500 / $7,000 $4,000 / $8,000 $6,000 / $12,000
Physician Co-Pay

Primary Care Physician $15 Copay $15 Copay $15 Copay $20 Copay
Specialist $30 Copay $30 Copay $30 Copay $40 Copay
RX Card-Participating Pharmacies

RX CY Deductible (Individual / Family) None None None None
(Tier 1/Tier 2/Tier 3/Specialty) - 30 days $10/$35/$60/$100 $10/$35/$60/$100 $2/$15/$45/$90/20% $2/$15/$45/$90/20%
Mail Order - 90 days 2.5x 2.5x 2x tiers 1-4 2x tiers 1-4
Emergency

Urgent Care Center $100 Copay $100 Copay $40 Copay $50 Copay
Emergency Room $350 Copay $350 Copay $150 Copay 20% after Deductible
Hospitalization

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance $250/Day (1-5)/20%
Outpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 30% after Deductible
Diagnostic Testing (Free Standing Facilities)

Independent Clinical Lab No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
Other Diagnostic (Xray) No Charge No Charge 20% Coinsurance 20% after Deductible
Advanced Imaging Services (MRI, PET, CT) 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 30% after Deductible
Mental Health/Substance Dependency

Inpatient 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% Coinsurance 20% after Deductible
Outpatient (PCP/Specialty) $30 Copay $30 Copay $20 Copay $20 Copay
Out of Network Coverage 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 40% after Deductible 30% after Deductible
AM Best Rating A A NR-4 NR-4

70% 70%

50% 50%

Employee Only 20 $789.70 $884.46 $850.06 $816.95
Employee + Spouse 0 $1,689.96 $1,892.75 $1,819.13 $1,748.28

Employee + Child(ren) 0 $1,610.99 $1,804.30 $1,734.13 $1,666.59
Family 0 $2,416.48 $2,706.45 $2,601.18 $2,499.87

Estimated Monthly Premium $15,794.00 $17,689.20 $17,001.20 $16,339.00

12.00% 7.64% 3.45%

75% 75% 75% 75%

75% of EE only 75% of EE only
Employee Only 20 $592.28 $663.35 $637.55 $612.71

Employee + Spouse 0 $592.28 $663.35 $637.55 $612.71
Employee + Child(ren) 0 $592.28 $663.35 $637.55 $612.71

Family 0 $592.28 $663.35 $637.55 $612.71
$11,845.50 $13,266.90 $12,750.90 $12,254.25

Employee Monthly Total

Employee Only $197.43 $221.12 $212.52 $204.24
Employee + Spouse $1,097.69 $1,229.41 $1,181.59 $1,135.57

Employee + Child(ren) $1,018.72 $1,140.96 $1,096.59 $1,053.88
Family $1,824.21 $2,043.11 $1,963.64 $1,887.16

26 26 26 26
Employee Only $91.12 $102.05 $98.08 $94.26

Employee + Spouse $506.62 $567.42 $545.35 $524.11
Employee + Child(ren) $470.18 $526.59 $506.12 $486.41

Family $841.94 $942.97 $906.29 $871.00

Estimated Monthly Premium

Estimated Percentage Change:

Employer Contribution

Employer Monthly Premium

Employer Monthly Premium

Barefoot Bay Recreation District - UHC Medical Renewal and Health First Health Plan Offerings

Employee Bi-Weekly Deductions

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy 
benefits.

Company/Benefits Current - UHC

Plan Type

Employee Participation Requirement

Employer Contribution Requirement



Company/Benefits

Plan Type

Plan Year

INN OON INN OON INN OON INN OON INN OON INN OON

100% 80% 100% 80% 100% 100% 100% 80% 100% 80% 100% 80%
80% 60% 80% 60% 80% 80% 80% 60% 80% 60% 80% 60%
50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

$50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150 $50/$150
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

$1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 
50% 50% 50% 50% 0% 0% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

$1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $0 $0 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 

Employee Only 16
Employee & Spouse 2

Employee & Child(ren) 2
Family 1

Employee Only 16
Employee & Spouse 2

Employee & Child(ren) 2
Family 1

Employee Only
Employee & Spouse

Employee & Child(ren)
Family

Employee Only 16
Employee & Spouse 2

Employee & Child(ren) 2
Family 1

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy benefits.

UNUMCurrent - UHC Renewal - UHC Ameritas Principal UNUM

Basic

Major

Deductible (Individual/Family)

Waived for Diagnostic & Preventive

10/1/16-9/30/1710/1/15-9/30/16

Annual Max

Child Ortho Benefit

Ortho Lifetime Max

Waiting Period for Major Services None None None None
Claim Payment 90th UCR 90th UCR 90th UCR 90th UCR

$33.29 $32.80 $26.42 $26.60
Monthly Rates

$53.33 $59.50
$55.70
$27.90

$69.34 $66.58 $68.44 $52.84 $53.00
$34.67

$102.40
$68.10

$107.87 $103.58 $113.08 $82.20 $92.10
$69.98 $67.19 $77.44

-21.09%

$796.40Estimated Monthly Premium $941.23 $903.76 $929.64 $717.26 $742.70

-15.39%

Employer Contribution 75% 75% 75% 75%

Estimated Percentage Change: -3.98% -1.23% -23.80%

$20.93

75%

Employer Monthly Cost 75% of EE only 75% of EE only 75% of EE only 75% of EE only
75%

75% of EE only

$19.82 $19.95

$19.95

$26.00 $24.97 $24.60 $19.82 $19.95

$20.93
$20.93

$26.00 $24.97 $24.60 $19.82 $19.95
$26.00 $24.97 $24.60

$20.93
Estimated Employer Monthly Premium $546.05 $524.32 $516.60 $416.12

$26.00 $24.97 $24.60 $19.82

$6.98

$439.43

Employee Monthly Cost

$418.95

$33.03 $33.05

$72.15

$8.67 $8.32 $8.20 $6.61 $6.65

$62.39
$47.18
$34.78

$43.98 $42.22 $52.84 $33.52 $39.55
$43.34 $41.61 $43.84

$3.22

$81.48
Employee Bi-Weekly Deduction 26 26 26 26

$81.87 $78.61 $88.48

$15.25

$28.79 $33.30

26
$4.00 $3.84 $3.78 $3.05 $3.07

26

$16.05
$20.30 $19.49 $24.39 $15.47 $18.25
$20.00 $19.21 $20.23 $15.24

$37.60

None
90th UCR

None
90th UCR

Barefoot Bay Recreation District - UHC Dental Renewal and Marketing Results

$21.77
$37.79 $36.28 $40.84

10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Preventive

F3387 PPO

10/1/16-9/30/17

$1,500 Max$1,000 MaxF3387 PPO Plan 1



Company/Benefits

Plan Type

Plan Year

INN OON INN OON INN OON INN OON

Financials & Benefit Frequency 

$10 $40 Max $10 $40 Max $10 $45 Max $10 $35 Max
$25 N/A $25 N/A $25 $25 $25 $25 

Lenses

Copay $40 Max Copay $40 Max Copay $30 Max Copay $25 Max
Copay $60 Max Copay $60 Max Copay $50 Max Copay $40 Max
Copay $80 Max Copay $80 Max Copay $65 Max Copay $55 Max

Frames

$130 Max $45 Max $130 Max $45 Max $130 Max $70 Max $130 Max $65 Max
Contact Lenses

Copay N/A Copay N/A Copay $45 Max Copay $35 Max
Copay $210 Max Copay $210 Max Copay TBD Copay TBD

$105 Max $105 Max $105 Max $105 Max $130 Max $105 Max $115 $105 
Additional Information

Employee Only 15
Employee & Spouse 1

Employee & Child(ren) 3
Family 1

Employee Only 15
Employee & Spouse 1

Employee & Child(ren) 3
Family 1

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation.
This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy benefits.

Note: Principal declined to quote due to uncompetitive rates.

Exam Copay

UHC Current UHC Renewal

01U9116

Ameritas Ameritas

Materials Copay

Examination 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months

Frames 4% 24 Months 24 Months 24 Months
Lenses/Contacts 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months 12 Months

Single Vision

Bifocals

Trifocals

Elective 

Exam & Fitting

Medically Necessary

From Selection

Rate Guarantee 1 Year 1 Year 2 Years 2 Years
Network V1008 V1008 VSP Choice EyeMed

Employer Contribution Requirement

Employee Participation Requirement 10 Enrolled 10 Enrolled

$5.59 $5.59 $8.44 $7.96
Monthly Rates

$12.41 $12.41 $14.72 $13.88
$10.62 $10.62 $18.20 $17.16

Estimated Monthly Premium $149.19 $149.19 $213.44 $201.28

$17.49 $17.49 $24.48 $23.08

Employer Contribution 0% 0% 0% 0%

Estimated Percentage Change: 0% 43% 35%

Estimated Employer Monthly Premium $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Employee Bi-Weekly Deduction 26 26 26 26

$4.90 $8.40 $7.92
$2.58 $2.58 $3.90 $3.67

Barefoot Bay Recreation District - UHC Vision Renewal and Marketing Results

$8.07 $8.07 $11.30 $10.65
$5.73 $5.73 $6.79 $6.41
$4.90

ViewPointV00484

10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

01U9116 FocusV S20001



Company Guardian Guardian Principal UNUM

Current Renewal

10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Life Insurance

Benefit Amount $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 
Life Benefit Volume $276,000 $276,000 $276,000 $276,000 

Rates per $1,000 $0.360 $0.390 $0.338 $0.320 
Life Insurance Total Monthly Premium $99.36 $107.64 $93.29 $88.32 

Accidental Death & Dismemberment

Benefit Amount $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 
AD&D Benefit Volume $276,000 $276,000 $276,000 $276,000 

Rates per $1,000 $0.020 $0.020 $0.031 $0.020 
AD&D Total Monthly Premium $5.52 $5.52 $8.56 $5.52 

Additional Life Insurance Information

Portability Yes Yes No Yes
Conversion Yes Yes Yes Yes

Benefit Reduction Schedule

35% @ 65
60% @ 70
75% @ 75
85% @ 80

35% @ 65
60% @ 70
75% @ 75
85% @ 80

35% @ 65
50% @ 70

35% @ 65
60% @ 70
75% @ 75
85% @ 80

Accelerated Benefit N/A N/A 75% 100%

Rate Guarantee 1 Year 1 Year

24 months
unless >25%

change in
volume

24 months

Employee Participation Requirement 100% 100% 100% 100%

Employer Contribution Requirement 100% 100% 100% 100%

Estimated Monthly Premium $104.88 $113.16 $101.84 $93.84

8% -3% -11%

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy benefits.

Estimated Percentage Change:

Barefoot Bay Recreation District - Guardian Life and AD&D Renewal and Marketing Results



Company Met Life Met Life Principal UNUM

Current Renewal

10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Employee Life & AD&D Insurance

Benefit Increments of $10k Increments of $10k Increments of $10k Increments of $10k
Minimum Benefit $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 

Maximum Benefit
5 X Annual Salary or 

$500,000
5 X Annual Salary or 

$500,000 $300,000 5 X Annual Salary or 
$500,000

Guarantee Issue Amount $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 
$50,000 if sold w/basic 
life; $40,000 w/o basic 

life
Spouse Life & AD&D Insurance

Benefit Increments of $5k Increments of $5k Increments of $5k Increments of $5k

Maximum Benefit
50% of EE amount to 

$100k
50% of EE amount to 

$100k
50% of EE amount to 

$100k
Lesser of 100% of EE 
life amount or $500k

Guarantee Issue Amount $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 
Child Life & AD&D Insurance

Benefit

Flat benefit in amount 
of $1k, $2k, $4k, $5k, 

or $10k

Flat benefit in amount 
of $1k, $2k, $4k, $5k, 

or $10k

Flat benefit in amount of 
$2k, $4k, $5k, or $10k Increments of $2,000

Maximum Benefit $10,000 $10,000 50% of EE amount Lesser of 100% of EE 
life amount or $10k

Guarantee Issue Amount $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 
Additional Information

Portability Yes Yes Yes Yes
Conversion Yes Yes Yes Yes

Benefit Reduction Schedule No No 65% @ 65
50% @ 70

65% @ 65
50% @ 70

Rate Guarantee 1 Year 1 Year
24 months unless 
>25% change in 

volume
3 Years

Employee Participation Requirement > of 20% or 5 lives > of 20% or 10 lives

Employer Contribution Requirement 0% 0% 0% 0%

Life and AD&D Life and AD&D Life and AD&D Life and AD&D
Age Bands Rates per $10k Rates per $10k Rates per $10k Rates per $10k

<30 $1.250 $1.250 $1.050 $1.250
30-34 $1.750 $1.750 $1.550 $1.750
35-39 $2.150 $2.150 $1.950 $2.150
40-44 $2.550 $2.550 $2.350 $2.550
45-49 $3.750 $3.750 $3.550 $3.750
50-54 $6.250 $6.250 $6.050 $6.250
55-59 $10.350 $10.350 $10.050 $10.350
60-64 $15.350 $15.350 $15.050 $15.350
65-69 $22.151 $22.151 $21.950 $22.151

70 + $38.950 $38.950 $38.750 $38.950
AD&D Rate per $10,000 $0.310 $0.500

Child Life $0.54 per $2,000
$1,000 $0.27 $0.27 N/A
$2,000 $0.54 $0.54 $0.40
$4,000 $1.08 $1.08 $0.80
$5,000 $1.35 $1.35 $1.00

$10,000 $2.70 $2.70 $2.00

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. 
This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy benefits.

Barefoot Bay Recreation District

Met Life Voluntary Life and AD&D Renewal and Marketing Results



Company Met Life Met Life Principal UNUM

Current Renewal

10/1/15-9/30/16 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17 10/1/16-9/30/17

Weekly Benefit Information

Benefit Increments of $50 Increments of $50 60% of weekly 
earnings 60% of weekly earnings

Minimum Benefit $100 $100 $15 $25 

Maximum Benefit
60% of Weekly Earnings 

or $300
60% of Weekly 

Earnings or $300 $300 $300 

Guarantee Issue Amount
Any Open Enrollment 

Changes
Any Open Enrollment 

Changes
Any Open Enrollment 

Changes
Any Open Enrollment 

Changes

Elimination Period (Illness/Injury) 7 Days 7 Days 7 Days 7 Days
Definition of Disability Own Occupation Own Occupation Own Occupation Own Occupation

Benefit Duration 13 Weeks 13 Weeks 13 Weeks 12 Weeks

Rate Guarantee 1 Year 1 Year
24 months unless 
>25% change in 

volume
1 Year

Employee Participation Requirement > of 20% or 5 lives > of 20% or 10 lives

Employer Contribution Requirement 0% 0% 0% 0%

Rates per $10 of Volume

<30 $0.650 $0.650 $0.650
30-34 $0.650 $0.650 $0.650
35-39 $0.650 $0.650 $0.650
40-44 $0.650 $0.650 $0.650
45-49 $0.710 $0.710 $0.710
50-54 $0.830 $0.830 $0.830
55-59 $1.080 $1.080 $1.080
60-64 $1.260 $1.260 $1.260

65+ $1.350 $1.350 $1.350

These are preliminary rates and are subject to change based on participation. 
This is coverage outline only; see formal proposal and contracts for actual policy benefits.

Barefoot Bay Recreation District

Met Life Voluntary STD Renewal and Marketing Results

$0.58 per $10 of 
weekly benefit amount



Meeting Date
September 09, 2016

Agenda
Section        9
Item No.      B i

Agenda Report
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees

#3761
Subject:        Case # 16-002087      911 HYACINTH CIRCLE 
Dept/Office:  Resident Relations/DOR Enforcement

Requested Action:  To consider the Violations Committee’s finding and recommendation to bring an action for legal,
equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.
If the Board of Trustees brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the
Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. 

Summary Explanation and Background:  The Violations Committee met on 07/22/2016 and found ARTICLE II,
SECT. (3) (A)(3) ADIR (utility building)  The respondent has been given until August 05, 2016 to bring the property into
compliance.

Staff has signed Affidavit of Notices, First Class and Certified mailing of Order of Finding and Recommended Order
and Notice of Hearing and Affidavit of Non-Compliance.

There are no delinquent taxes on the property.  Certified mail was returned UNC, Regular mail was not returned. There
is a mortgage on the property.   Pursuant to the Violations Committee Order, the property was inspected and found to
be still in violation.

Exhibits Attached: *Findings of Fact of Recommended Order Issued by the Violations Committee * Notice of Board
Hearing * Photographs                                                                   

Contact: Susan Cuddie, Thelma Gruseck, Thomas O'Donnell, Rich Armington

Fiscal Impact:

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney ___ YES     ___ NO    ___ N/A        C ommunity Manager
approval:______      

91 Hyacinth Circle
Aug 05, 2016

Sue Cuddie
Highlight







Photo: 911 Hyacinth Circle

Date Taken:06/26/2016 Taken by:Richard Armington

Address:911 HYACINTH CIRCLE Case Number:16-002087



Meeting Date

September 09, 2016

Agenda

Section     9
Item No.     Bii

Agenda Report
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees

#2269
Subject:        C ase # 16-002132      5 52 DOLPHIN CIRCLE 
Dept/Office:  Resident Relations/DOR Enforcement

Requested Action:  To consider the Violations Committee’s finding and recommendation to bring an action for legal,
equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.
If the Board of Trustees brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the
Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. 

Summary Explanation and Background:  The Violations Committee met on 08/12/2016 and found ARTICLE II,
SECT. 3 (A)(15) ADIR (Lamp Post)  The respondent has been given until August 26, 2016 to bring the property into
compliance.

Staff has signed Affidavit of Notices, First Class and Certified mailing of Order of Finding and Recommended Order
and Notice of Hearing and Affidavit of Non-Compliance.

There are no delinquent taxes on the property.  There is a mortgage on the property.  Certified notice was returned
UNC.  Regular mail did not return.  Pursuant to the Violations Committee Order, the property was inspected and found
to be still in violation.

Exhibits Attached: *Findings of Fact of Recommended Order Issued by the Violations Committee * Notice of Board
Hearing * Photographs                                                                   

Contact: Susan Cuddie, Thelma Gruseck, Thomas O'Donnell, Rich Armington

Fiscal Impact:

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney ___ YES     ___ NO    ___ N/A        Community Manager

approval:______      

552 Dolphin Circle
Aug 26, 2016

Sue Cuddie
Highlight







Photo: 552 Dolphin Circle

Date Taken:08/26/2016 Taken by:Richard Armington

Address:552 DOLPHIN CIRCLE Case Number:16-002132



Meeting Date

September 09, 2016

Agenda

Section   9
Item No.  Biii

Agenda Report
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees

#2852
Subject:        Case # 16-002019      526 PERSIMMON DRIVE 
Dept/Office:  Resident Relations/DOR Enforcement

Requested Action:  To consider the Violations Committee’s finding and recommendation to bring an action for legal,
equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.
If the Board of Trustees brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the
Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. 

Summary Explanation and Background:  The Violations Committee met on 07/22/2016 and found ARTICLE III,
SECT. 2 ARCC No Permit  The  property owner has erected a block wall in the rear of the property.

 The respondent has been given until August 05, 2016 to bring the property into compliance. 

 Staff has signed Affidavit of Notices, First Class and Certified mailing of Order of Finding and Recommended Order
 and Notice of Hearing and Affidavit of Non-Compliance.
 There are no delinquent taxes on the property.  No liens, no mortgage. No returned notices.  Pursuant to the Violations
 Committee Order, the property was inspected and found to be still in violation.

Exhibits Attached: *Findings of Fact of Recommended Order Issued by the Violations Committee * Notice of Board
Hearing * Photographs                                                                   

Contact: Susan Cuddie, Thelma Gruseck, Thomas O'Donnell, Rich Armington

Fiscal Impact:

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney ___ YES     ___ NO    ___ N/A        Community Manager

approval:______      

526 persimmon Dr
Aug 05, 2016

Sue Cuddie
Highlight







Photo: 526 persimmon Dr

Date Taken:07/09/2016 Taken by:Richard Armington

Address:526 PERSIMMON DRIVE Case Number:16-002019



Photo: 526 Persimmon Dr

Date Taken:09/02/2016 Taken by:Richard Armington

Address:526 PERSIMMON DRIVE Case Number:16-002019



Meeting Date

September 09, 2016

Agenda

Section  9
Item No.  B iv

Agenda Report
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees

#1360
Subject:        Case # 16-000981      1026 THRUSH CIRCLE 
Dept/Office:  Resident Relations/DOR Enforcement

Requested Action:  To consider the Violations Committee’s finding and recommendation to bring an action for legal,
equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.
If the Board of Trustees brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the
Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien. 

Summary Explanation and Background:  The Violations Committee met on 08/12/2016 and found ARTICLE III, SECT.
3 (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) Parking of Vehicles (Boats/Trailer/RV/Comm. Vehicles)  A Parking suspension letter sent 30 day -
3/23/2016, A Parking suspension letter 6 months sent - 5/17/2016,  A Parking suspension letter 1 year sent - 7/20/2016. 
The respondent has been given until August 19, 2016 by the Violations Committee to bring the property into compliance.

Staff has signed Affidavit of Notices, First Class and Certified mailing of Order of Finding and Recommended Order and
Notice of Hearing and Affidavit of Non-Compliance.

There are no delinquent taxes on the property.  There was a mortgage on the property as of June of 2015.  No other
liens.  Pursuant to the Violations Committee Order, the property was inspected and found to be still in violation.

Exhibits Attached: *Findings of Fact of Recommended Order Issued by the Violations Committee * Notice of Board
Hearing * Photographs                                                                   

Contact: Susan Cuddie, Thelma Gruseck, Thomas O'Donnell, Rich Armington

Fiscal Impact:

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney ___ YES     ___ NO    ___ N/A        Community Manager

approval:______      

1026 thrush
Aug 19, 2016

Sue Cuddie
Highlight







Photo: 1026 thrush

Date Taken:08/19/2016 Taken by:Thomas O'Donnell

Address:1026 THRUSH CIRCLE Case Number:16-000981



Photo: 1026 Thrush Cir

Date Taken:07/20/2016 Taken by:Thomas O'Donnell

Address:1026 THRUSH CIRCLE Case Number:16-000981



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    C

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Shuffle Board Court Resurfacing 

 

Dept/Office: Capital 

  

Requested Action: Award of Contract  

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

In FY16, BBRD received a $50,000 no match grant from the Florida Recreational Development 

Assistance Program (FRDAP). FY17 contains $28,000 for the restoration of the east shuffle 

board courts.  Staff began in late FY16 cleaning the adjacent concrete and curbing.  Staff 

continues to address concrete and drainage work adjacent to the courts which will be expensed to 

the grant project. 

 

To refinish the playing surface, staff solicited the following two quotes: 

 $14,235.00 Nidy Sports Construction Company 

 $13,900.00 Sports Surfaces LLC 

 

Although Nidy Sports Construction Company’s quote is slightly higher, staff believes it is a 

better value as they will grind the existing surface before installation of a new surface verse just 

power washing the surface (as proposed by Sports Surfaces). 

 

The balance of the project budget will be used for other grant funded identified projects in the 

area. 

 

Staff recommends the BOT award contract for shuffle board court resurfacing to Nidy Sports 

Construction in the amount of $14,235. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  Quotes from Nidy Sports Construction Company and Sports Surfaces LLC. 

Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: $14,235 (FY17 Budget of $28,000) 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
PROPOSAL 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District   

625 Barefoot Bay Blvd. 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

 

SECTION 1: 
 

  DATE: 9/1/16 

Our base price for work on thirteen (13) shuffleboard courts, as noted below, is the lump sum of Fourteen 

Thousand Two Hundred Thirty Five and 00/100 dollars ($14,235.00). Payment to be upon completion. Price 

subject to change after 90 days.  

 

SCOPE OF WORK: 
 

1) Grind over existing surface of courts to a bondable surface. 

2) Install our NICO maintenance free green textured surface and make ready for play, complete with white 

regulation markings. Put white #’s in triangles. 

 

NOTES: 

1) The use of glass beads and waxing of courts is NOT required with this surface. 

2) Surfacing of courts will NOT level or remove any variations from surface of courts. 

3) No patching to be done on any cracks. Cracks in court may reappear after surfacing due in part to the 

expansion and contraction of the concrete slab from daily variations in ambient temperature. 

4) Court drains should always be maintained in working order. Standing water for extended time on courts can 

cause surface coatings to blister. 

5) No work is proposed on gutters or surrounding concrete. 

 

WARRANTY: 
 

Surface is warranted against peeling and flaking for a period of one year from application. Problems from vandalism 

and improper care are excluded. Damage at ends of courts caused by dropping discs directly onto the surface instead 

of sliding them onto the court from the gutter is considered improper care and is not covered under warranty. 

 
Accepted _____________________________________________   Date _____________________ 

                  Signature                                                  Title 
 

The parties agree that in the event that payment is not made as provided herein, Contractor may terminate this contract, refuse to complete any work remaining pursuant to the contract, and any 

alternate proposals, amendments, changes, or modifications thereto, and sue for the payment due, plus any work performed by contractor up until the date of termination, including a reasonable 

profit and overhead, court costs, attorney's fees (including attorney's fees incurred in arbitration and administrative proceedings and all state and federal actions and appeals), and interest at the rate 

of 1½% per month, 18% per year. 

 

In the event of litigation of this contract, venue of same shall lie in Seminole County, Florida and the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees and costs from the 

non-prevailing party. 

 

Insurance Certificates and Licenses Provided Upon Request *Any changes or additions to standard coverage at additional cost. 

 

Nidy Sports Construction Company, Inc. 

 

By___________________________________ 

          Jamie Beck, Sales Representative 
 

SECTION 2: 
 

Owners Name and Address:_________________________________________________________________ 

 

__________________________________________________________Phone__________________________ 

 

Job Site Address or Legal Description_________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
2300 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD, SANFORD, FLORIDA, 32771• TELEPHONE 1-800-226-6439 • FAX (407) 330-9343 









Meeting Date 

Sep. 9, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    D

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Upgrade of Golf Course Irrigation Control Unit 

 

Dept/Office: Golf-Pro Shop 

 

Requested Action: Award of Contract 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

 The Golf Course irrigation control system is a computer that allows ABM to properly 

distribute water throughout the golf course without having an employee go out from head 

to head (485 of them) to water the course. The current system was installed in 2000 and 

is reaching its life expectancy and needs to be replaced. Due to the age of the unit, 

replacement parts are no longer manufactured and hard to locate.   

 

Currently the Toro distributor (Wescoturf) is offering a special promotion for upgrades 

that expires 14Sep16. Listed below are the regular and promotional costs. 

 

$42,236.00 Regular cost 

$11,806.40 Promotional upgrade offer  

$30,429.60 Savings  

 

Although BBRD would never pay the regular price due to being an existing customer, the 

listing of the price is illustrative of the cost of switching manufactures rather than 

upgrading) 

 

Sufficient budgeted funds exist ($9,000 in R&M and $10,000 plus in other categorical 

roll-ups) to cover the expense.  Due to the proprietary nature of the unit, the use of Policy 

Manual (page 2-10) Exception to Competition #6 (Repair or services for proprietary 

equipment) will need to be used as a second quote is not possible. 

 

Staff recommends the BOT award contract of $11,806.40 to Westcoturf for upgrade of 

the Toro irrigation control unit using Exception to Competition #6 for proprietary 

equipment 

Exhibits Attached: Westcoturf promotional and non-promotional quote 

Contact: Ernie Cruz, Golf Operations Manager 

Fiscal Impact: $11,806.40 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval: Yes 

 

 

 

 



2101 Cantu Court, Sarasota Florida 34232-6242 300 Technology Park, Lake Mary Florida 32746                    7037-37 Commonwealth Avenue, Jacksonville, FL  32220

Ernie Cruz
Barefoot Bay Recreation District
625 Barefoot Blvd. 
Barefoot Bay, FL  32976-9233
Dear Ernie Cruz,
Per your request, I am pleased to submit a quotation on the following equipment.

All pricing is valid for thirty (30) days
* TORO SPECIAL PROMOTION.  PROMOTION ONLY GOOD UNTIL 9-14-16

Requested
Qty. Model Description Price Ext Price Delivery Date

1 LX-NONSN-STAN-RIULYNX SOFTWARE 5,813.40$           5,813.40$              
1 RIU-02-SPECIAL RIU HARDWARE 2,667.00$           2,667.00$              
1 NSN-LXC-1 NSN SERVICE, LYNXDC,<900 HEADS 556.00$              556.00$                
1 FSA Computer Setup, Installation of converted 

software, programming of RIU 750.00$              750.00$                
1 FCC Renewal of License 550.00$              550.00$                
* Base station needed for Toro Program.  
2 hhu782 PD782 1024 CH 4W DISPLAY KEYPAD IP57 735.00$              1,470.00$              
*  
* RIU promotion Pricing. Pricing good until 9-15-16  
* Customer reusing existing Antenna  
* 2nd antenna required if customer wants to record 

hand held comands  
* Base station must be returned in 30 days to avoid 

additional fees  

Terms: Financing Terms

Irrigation Total 11,806.40$          
State Sales Tax (0 + 0 County Surtax) -$                      

Total 11,806.40$          

Please indicate your acceptance of this quote as an order by signing below and returning via fax to Wesco Turf at 941.487-6889.

The materials list provided is for estimation purposes only and is provided as a professional courtesy for our customer's
convenience. It is the responsibility of the customer to verify quantities, price extensions and miscellaneous materials
not provided in the above estimate.

Terms and Conditions:
All pricing is valid for thirty (30) calendar days from date of quotation unless otherwise noted. Pipe and wire pricing is valid for ten (10)
calendar days. Additional materials listed in the above quotation are not subject to price protection and will require new pricing at time
of purchase.  All direct shipments require carton quantities as specified by the vendor.  Acceptance of materials constitutes
customer's agreement to comply with credit terms and conditions as specified in Wesco Turf's credit application.

Freight:
All materials are subject to freight and handling charges not included in the above pricing. This includes but is not limited to
non-Toro products, direct shipments from the manufacturer and express shipping.  Customer is responsible for having the proper
equipment on site for unloading of materials at time of delivery.

Material/Shipping Discrepancies:
Discrepancies regarding quantities shipped must be reported immediately. All pipe, Toro and non-Toro shipping errors or shortage
of material must be accounted for and documented on the delivery and acceptance paperwork at time of arrival. 

August 18, 2016



Return Policy:
All returns must be pre-approved and accompanied by a RGA (Return Goods Authorization) in order to receive credit. Only materials
and products currently sold by Wesco Turf will be considered for return. Materials must be of current design and do not include obsolete
materials.  Returned goods must be in original packaging and are subject to a 20% restocking fee. Wesco Turf will not be responsible for
any pipe returns.  Pipe returns will be the responsibility of the customer and the outside vendor.  Customers are advised not to issue
immediate debit memos on returned material. Wesco Turf will issue credit to the customer's account upon inspection and completion
of the receiving process. All pre-authorized returns scheduled for pickup must be palletized and accessible upon arrival.  Multiple pallet
returns will require separate packing slips. All returns must be made within 90 days of receipt to receive credit less associated restock
fees. Product exceeding the ninety day (90) timeframe may be negotiated at a lesser value or denied credit.

Cancellation Policy:
Cancellations will be considered for requests made within 48 hours of placing an order. All cancellations must be provided in written
format and documented by all parties involved. Cancellation requests will not be entertained if the order has been communicated to
outside vendors or has been shipped. Customers wil be responsible for all restock fees incurred by Wesco Turf, Inc.

Requested Delivery Date:  

State: Zip:

Fax:

Thank you for considering Wesco Turf, Inc. for your irrigation needs.  If I can be of any further assistance, please do not 
hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,
WESCO TURF, INC.Andrew Johnston
Territory Manager
Irrigation Division
Sarasota
(407) 504-9571
TD/tw
.qt
Fax:

Contact Name:
Phone Number:

E-Mail:

Ernie Cruz Date of Acceptance

Ship To Address:
Street Address:

City:



2101 Cantu Court, Sarasota Florida 34232-6242 300 Technology Park, Lake Mary Florida 32746                    7037-37 Commonwealth Avenue, Jacksonville, FL  32220

Ernie Cruz
Barefoot Bay Recreation District
625 Barefoot Blvd. 
Barefoot Bay, FL  32976-9233
Dear Ernie Cruz,
Per your request, I am pleased to submit a quotation on the following equipment.

All pricing is valid for thirty (30) days

Requested
Qty. Model Description Price Ext Price Delivery Date

1 LX-01-1-01 Lynx CE, OSMAC, Standard, 1 Year 28,200.00$         28,200.00$            
1 RIU-02 RADIO INTERFACE UNIT, DUAL RADIO 10,710.00$         10,710.00$            
1 NSN-LXC-1 NSN SERVICE, LYNXDC,<900 HEADS 556.00$              556.00$                
1 FSA Computer Setup, Installation of converted 

software, programming of RIU 750.00$              750.00$                
1 FCC Renewal of License 550.00$              550.00$                
2 hhu782 PD782 1024 CH 4W DISPLAY KEYPAD IP57 735.00$              1,470.00$              
* Customer reusing existing Antenna  

Terms: Financing Terms

Irrigation Total 42,236.00$          
State Sales Tax (0 + 0 County Surtax) -$                      

Total 42,236.00$          

Please indicate your acceptance of this quote as an order by signing below and returning via fax to Wesco Turf at 941.487-6889.

The materials list provided is for estimation purposes only and is provided as a professional courtesy for our customer's
convenience. It is the responsibility of the customer to verify quantities, price extensions and miscellaneous materials
not provided in the above estimate.

Terms and Conditions:
All pricing is valid for thirty (30) calendar days from date of quotation unless otherwise noted. Pipe and wire pricing is valid for ten (10)
calendar days. Additional materials listed in the above quotation are not subject to price protection and will require new pricing at time
of purchase.  All direct shipments require carton quantities as specified by the vendor.  Acceptance of materials constitutes
customer's agreement to comply with credit terms and conditions as specified in Wesco Turf's credit application.

Freight:
All materials are subject to freight and handling charges not included in the above pricing. This includes but is not limited to
non-Toro products, direct shipments from the manufacturer and express shipping.  Customer is responsible for having the proper
equipment on site for unloading of materials at time of delivery.

Material/Shipping Discrepancies:
Discrepancies regarding quantities shipped must be reported immediately. All pipe, Toro and non-Toro shipping errors or shortage
of material must be accounted for and documented on the delivery and acceptance paperwork at time of arrival. 

Return Policy:
All returns must be pre-approved and accompanied by a RGA (Return Goods Authorization) in order to receive credit. Only materials
and products currently sold by Wesco Turf will be considered for return. Materials must be of current design and do not include obsolete
materials.  Returned goods must be in original packaging and are subject to a 20% restocking fee. Wesco Turf will not be responsible for

August 18, 2016



any pipe returns.  Pipe returns will be the responsibility of the customer and the outside vendor.  Customers are advised not to issue
immediate debit memos on returned material. Wesco Turf will issue credit to the customer's account upon inspection and completion
of the receiving process. All pre-authorized returns scheduled for pickup must be palletized and accessible upon arrival.  Multiple pallet
returns will require separate packing slips. All returns must be made within 90 days of receipt to receive credit less associated restock
fees. Product exceeding the ninety day (90) timeframe may be negotiated at a lesser value or denied credit.

Cancellation Policy:
Cancellations will be considered for requests made within 48 hours of placing an order. All cancellations must be provided in written
format and documented by all parties involved. Cancellation requests will not be entertained if the order has been communicated to
outside vendors or has been shipped. Customers wil be responsible for all restock fees incurred by Wesco Turf, Inc.

Requested Delivery Date:  

State: Zip:

Fax:

Thank you for considering Wesco Turf, Inc. for your irrigation needs.  If I can be of any further assistance, please do not 
hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,
WESCO TURF, INC.Andrew Johnston
Territory Manager
Irrigation Division
Sarasota
(407) 504-9571
TD/tw
.qt
Fax:

Contact Name:
Phone Number:

E-Mail:

Ernie Cruz Date of Acceptance

Ship To Address:
Street Address:

City:



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    E

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Revised Food & Beverage Principles of Operations  

 

Dept/Office: Food & Beverage 

 

Requested Action: Review, Modify if Needed and Approve 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

The BOT adopted the original Food & Beverage Principles of Operations on 10Oct14 

which serves as the guiding operational values in the management of the department.  

The BOT reviewed an updated draft on 04Aug16 and made the following changes: 

 

 Allow staff the flexibility to close early if sales warrant 

 Shift from fixed menu pricing (raised once a year per approved budget) to a dynamic 

process where prices can be changed mid-year to off-set for sudden increased in 

commodity costs 

 More themed meal events 

 

 

Staff recommends the BOT approve the revised Principles of Operations as attached. 

 

 
Exhibits Attached:  Revised draft Principles of Operations 

Contact: Kathy Mendes, Food & Beverage Manager; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

Food & Beverage Department 

 

Revised Draft 

Principles of Operations 
 

“Management is doing things right;  

leadership is doing the right things.” 
 

 

Approved by the BBRD Board of Trustees on 10 October 2014 

Revised draft presented to BOT on 04Aug16 for review and on 09Sep16 for adoption  



 

 

Board of Trustees 

Joseph Klosky, Chairman 

Frank Cavaliere, Treasurer 

Steven Diana, Secretary 

Lee Wright, 1st Vice-Chairman 

Brian Lavier, 2nd Vice-Chairman 

 

 

General Counsel 

Clifford R. Repperger, Jr., Esq. 

 

 

Community Manager 

John W. Coffey 

 

 

Food & Beverage Manager 

Kathy Mendes 

  



Table of Contents 

 

 

Purpose…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…...…….. 2 

Introduction……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………....… 2 
Finances verse Level of Service…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..… 2 

Componential factors of the relationship between the direct subsidy and customer service levels …..… 5 
Hours of Operations……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 5 

Days of Operations………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………………… 6 
Target Resident Demographic…………………………………………………………………………………………………..……. 6 

Lounge……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……. 6 
19th Hole………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 6 
Pasta Night…………………………………………….……………………………………………………………………………….. 6 
Fish Fry……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 6 
Resident/club requested catering events…………………………………………………………………………..……. 7 
Golf Tournament events……………………………………………………………………………………………………..…… 7 
Street Dances and other BBRD Sponsored Special Events…………………………………………………..……. 7 

Live Entertainment………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……… 7 
Lounge……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….……. 8 
19th Hole………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 8 

Pricing……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…… 8 
Non-operational restraints…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..… 9 

Alternate Principles of Operations for Consideration by the Board of Trustees (BOT)…………………….…….10 
Appendices 

A: Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Date Charts…………………………………………………………………. 11 

B: Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Date………………………………………………………………………..…… 12 

C: Subsidy Data by Year and Season……………………………………………………………………………………………… 17 

D: Month of October Fiscal Analysis…………………………………………………………………………………………….. 20 

E: Days and hours of Operations by Season………………………………………………………………………....……... 21 

F: Comparative Menu Prices and Charts.………………………………………………………………………………………. 22 

G: Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week Charts…………………………………………….… 24 

H: Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week…………………………………………………….…… 22 

I: Employee Discount Meal Program…………………………………………………………………………………………..… 31 

 

 



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

2 
 

Purpose 
This document serves as a communications and educational vehicle for BBRD Trustees, residents and 
staff to understand the guiding principles of how the Food and Beverage Department is operated and 
managed.  The following sections offer a brief summary of key principles that guide BBRD Management 
in the daily operations of the department and in planning for future events.  A list of optional alternate 
principles is provided for the Board of Trustee’s (BOT’s) consideration if they desire to alter the current 
guiding principles of F&B operations. Finally, appendices provide a series of financial analyses, 
associated charts, comparative data, a listing of hours of operations, etc. 
 
This document was originally developed by staff and later reviewed and adopted by the BOT on 
23Sep14.  Unless otherwise directed by the BOT, staff intends to review and update this document every 
two years and present it to the BOT for review and re-adoption.  Due to the time intensiveness of the 
data manipulation, some of the appendices will not be updated unless staff believes other data indicates 
the findings of the appendices are no longer representative of the current operational environment.  
Hence, based on monthly and annual review of budgetary and actual revenue and expenditure patterns, 
staff believes the findings of appendices (A,B,G & H) originally developed in 2014 remain valid. 
 
On 04Aug16, the BOT reviewed the revised document and instructed staff to make the following 
changes: 

 Add more themed food nights 

 Shift from fixed to flexible pricing when commodity prices spike unexpectedly 

 Modify fixed hours of operations protocol to allow staff the flexibility to close an establishment or 
function early based on sales. 

 
 
Introduction 
The BBRD Food & Beverage Department (F&B) operates two fixed site facilities (Lounge and 19th Hole), 
one regularly scheduled weekly event (Pasta Night, numerous special events (street dances, holiday 
events, etc.) and catering to BBRD clubs and organizational needs as requested and contractually agreed 
upon.  To accommodate maximum flexibility in operations, due to the seasonal influx of winter 
residents, the majority of F&B employees are part-time and/or seasonal employees.  Five full-time 
positions are budgeted, one department manager, two supervisors and two employees who serve as 
back-ups to the supervisors.   
 
 
Finances verse Level of Service 

F&B has operated under the over-arching principles of quality customer service, reasonably priced menu 
items targeted at a moderate priced target consumer while striving to minimize the level of subsidy 
from non-F&B revenue streams.  Understood by staff, but often over-looked by residents, is the amount 
of indirect subsidy BBRD provides to F&B.  In larger public sector organizations, administrative support 
(portion of time and costs of Community Manager, Finance, IT and Legal devoted to F&B) is charged to 
user departments such as F&B.  This in-direct cost combined with the absence of rent paid for the space 
(or return on investment payments) is in the range of $65,000-80,000 a year.  Hence, a subsidy of F&B is 
required given the size of the facilities; the question is “how much is acceptable?” 
 



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

3 
 

The causation of the annual operating subsidy is a combination of historically and current decisions by 

BBRD that are not commonly made by private sector restaurants.  The most prominent aspects include: 

 Wages of long-term employees.   

Sometime in the past (over 8 years ago) a decision was made to hire all new F&B employees at non-

tipped minimum wage regardless whether they received tips or not.  Although this decision was 

later reversed, some legacy employees still make well in excess of tipped minimum. 

 BBRD employee benefits. 

While BBRD’s benefits package for full-time employees is on the low range for public sector 

organizations in Florida, 5 current employees are eligible for health, dental and life insurance at a 

cost of a $8,330 (FY17 projected).  Additionally, all employees receive holiday pay in addition to 

regular pay when special events are held on observed holidays (attendance at prior special events 

and antidotal evidence indicates a preference by homeowners and their guests for special events 

that fall on actual holidays – i.e. Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, etc.).  

 Days and hours of operations. 

Per the 2014 BOT approved F&B Principles of Operations, the primary rational for days and hours of 

operations of the Lounge and 19th Hole is to maximize availability of the two establishments since 

F&B is deemed an “amenity” versus a break even or money generating department.  This approach 

was softened in 2016 when the BOT amended this document to allow staff to close early  when sales 

warrant. 

 Employee Training. 

In response to a very high workers’ compensation claim in 2011 and a prior trend of high liability 

claims, management instituted additional employee safety training requirements in FY15 which 

adds additional payroll costs. This additional payroll cost (incurred in all BBRD departments) is 

needed to reduce the cost of excessive insurance premiums currently being paid and to safeguard 

employees and homeowners/guests. 

 

This overriding issue of the proper amount, if any, of the direct subsidy can also be viewed in the 
spectrum of the relationship between the direct subsidy of F&B’s operations and the level of customer 
service to residents.  Simply put, the direct subsidy can easily be erased and a surplus generated each 
year if operations are curtailed in the summer months.  Currently, F&B operates on a seven day a week 
and morning to evening hours (see appendix E for specific summer and winter hours for the Lounge and 
19th Hole).  An analysis of  seven months in FY14 (coupled with a review of FY13 data) from February 
through August clearly indicate that the 2014 summer hours of Lounge operations on Sundays without 
music and weekdays excluding Fridays is 
a financial losing venture during the May 
through September (see Appendices 
A&B).  An example of the average 
monthly gross receipts for Wednesdays is 
to the right.  However, based on previous 
resident and Trustee reactions (FY13 and 
early FY14) when the bartenders used to 
be allowed to close the Lounge early 
based on slow business (prior to mid-

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Wednesday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts

Lounge

19th Hole



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

4 
 

2014), F&B operated on a fixed schedule for hours of operations regardless of sales volumes from mid-
2016 to October 2016.  This preference for customer service via the perspective of the Lounge and 19th 
Hole being amenities precluded the realistic elimination of the direct subsidy due to the labor cost of 
operating these facilities when sales do not cover expenses.  Beginning in October 2016 with the 
adoption of the Revised Principles of Operation (2016 edition), F&B returned to a flexible closing policy 
where specific closing times 
are advertised but staff has 
the flexibility to close early if 
sales warrant. 
 
The FY13 Actual through 
FY17 Budget comparison on 
the following page illustrates 
how the Lounge and 19th 
Hole have the largest need 
for direct subsidies given 
current operational 
methodologies.   
 
However, the seasonal 
nature of Food & Beverage 
sales (where the winter 
season dramatically 
outpaces the rest of the 
year) is masked when the 
annual data is solely 
presented.  Below are similar 
information for the first 6 
months and second six 
months of fiscal year (the 
reader should note that the 
BBRD winter season 
historically consisted of 
gradual increasing sales in 
November and December 
with very strong sales in the 
three months of January 
through March with a steady 
drop off in business in April 
[the timing of Easter can 
impact this cycle]).  
 
Additionally, the reader 
should note the following 
factors that have an impact 
on the trend lines of said 
data: 

Surplus/Deficit FY 13 Actual FY 14 Actual

FY 15 

Actual

FY 16 

YE Est. *

FY 17

Budget

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (75,330)    (76,081)        

Lounge (23,682)        (73,185)        (36,428)      (6,199)       (2,961)           

19th Hole 3,001            (31,796)        (40,396)      (38,412)    (34,814)        

Pasta Night 3,647            4,722            9,924          10,566      16,756          

Fish Fry (229)              (1,028)          -              -             -                 

Special Events 26,108          35,715          43,280       65,409      33,851          

Items not expensed 

to a Sub-Dept. (46,358)        -                -              -             -                 

F&B Total (37,513)        (65,572)        (23,620)      (43,966)    (63,249)        

Surplus/Deficit

FY 13 

1st 6 

months

FY 14

1st 6 

months

FY 15 

1st 6 

months

FY 16 

1st 6 

month

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (38,247)    

Lounge (5,643)          (22,334)        (16,956)      9,306        

19th Hole 13,740          (2,224)          (2,617)        (15,673)    

Pasta Night 2,950            2,464            6,548          11,656      

Fish Fry 685                (359)              -              -             

Special Events 22,331          24,625          36,672       43,310      

Items not expensed 

to a Sub-Dept. (31,657)        -                -              -             

F&B Total 2,406            2,172            23,647       10,352      

Surplus/Deficit

FY 13 

Last 6 

months

FY 14

Last 6 

months

FY 15 

Last 6 

months

FY 16 

Last 6 

month 

est.*

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (37,083)    

Lounge (18,039)        (50,851)        (19,472)      (15,505)    

19th Hole (10,739)        (29,572)        (37,779)      (22,739)    

Pasta Night 697                2,258            3,376          (1,090)       

Fish Fry (914)              (669)              -              -             

Special Events 3,777            11,090          6,608          22,099      

Items not expensed 

to a Sub-Dept. (14,701)        -                -              -             

F&B Total (39,919)        (67,744)        (47,267)      (54,318)    

* From FY17 Working Draft Proposed Budget submitted to BOT on 01Mar16.

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

5 
 

 The Lounge was closed for over 60 days in early FY15 due to repairs at Pool #1. 

 In mid FY15, staff changed labor accounting methodology between the 19th Hole and Pasta Night to 
more accurately reflect the cost of each event. 

 At the beginning of FY16, two part-time positions were converted to full-time, one part-time 
custodian was moved to Property Services and several one-time expenditures were made in the 
R&M accounts. 

 
Clearly the reader can see the historic trend of larger deficits in the second six months of the year for 
The Lounge and 19th Hole while Pasta Night and Special Events remain profitable year round but do see 
dramatic decreases in revenue in the summer months.  For more complete data (separate revenue and 
expenditure tables corresponding to the same time frame), please see the Appendix C. 
 
A closer analysis of the winter season period indicates the month of October has become the de facto 
start of season for year-round residents combined with the early returning winter residents.  One 
example is how the four Dart Leagues, held in the Lounge, starts their winter season in October. The 
following chart illustrates the trend in sales/expenditures in the month of October, while a complete 
analysis of the month is found in Appendix D. 
 

  
 
 
Componential factors of the relationship between the direct subsidy and customer service levels  
Hours of operations  
Prior to mid-2014, F&B operated on a flexible schedule where staff could close the Lounge or 19th Hole 
early if sales warranted.  In response to residents’ complaints in the Spring of 2014, the BOT changed 
this to fixed hours of service that change each May and October.    The F&B Manager attempted to 
maintain the spirit of this direction while shaving unprofitable times from the margins of operating 
hours while conversely increasing hours of operations when net revenues over expenditures are 
possible.  The current winter season and summer hours are provided in Appendix E.  Although the fixed 
closure hours provides a greater level of customer service (i.e. residents have certainty that the facility 
will be open till specific times as opposed to going to a site and finding out that it closed early), the 

Surplus/Deficit

FY 13 

Actual

FY 14 

Actual

FY 15 

Actual*

FY 16 

Actual

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (3,896)     

Lounge N/A (3,908)     (10,282)  2,012      

19th Hole N/A 1,336      (207)        3,503      

Pasta Night N/A 595          2,682      2,169      

Fish Fry N/A (275)        (125)        -           

Special Events N/A 2,529      2,461      3,201      

Items not expensed 

to a Sub-Dept. N/A (3,487)     -           -           

F&B Total (8,352)     (3,210)     (5,472)     6,990      

* Indicates Lounge was closed the majority of each day from 

** Administration costs were split between Lounge and 19th Hole 



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

6 
 

additional hours of operations result in higher labor expense which usually exceeds gross receipts during 
weekdays in the summer months.  
 
In mid-2016, the BOT modified this approach to allow staff the flexibility to close an establishment or 
event early if sales warrant.  A log of said early closures will be maintained by staff and reported in the 
2018 update of this document. 
 
 
Days of Operations 
As previously indicated, the Lounge and 19th 
Hole are open year-round with minor 
fluctuations in hours of operations between 
the winter season and non-season. In the 
winter season, every day of the week is 
profitable for the Lounge and 19th Hole due to 
high volume of business.  However, during the 
summer off-season, Sundays through 
Thursdays are not cost effective days of 
operations.  The provision of live music can lessen the costs of being open during the day, but has not 
proven to bring in enough business to allow for break-even or profitable days outside of Friday and 
Saturday nights and Street Dance days (see Appendices G & H for details). 
 
 
Target Resident demographic 
Although BBRD specific demographics are not available from the U.S. Census Bureau (due to BBRD not 
being a commonly recognized form of local government), some generalities are assumed based on 
casual observation of the community.  Targeting a specific demographic of a community is an industry 
best practice.  F&B attempts to appeal to all segments of BBRD socio-economic strata, although not 
each element of BBRD’s population can be served by all facilities at the same time.   As a predominantly 
older, middle income community with a high percentage of residents with significant disposable income, 
the F&B Department targets the following demographic via listed facilities/events: 
 

 Daytime Lounge:  Middle income residents seeking a relaxing environment for alcoholic beverages 
at happy hour prices, low priced snacks and food items. 

 Evening Lounge:  Middle income residents seeking an entertaining venue for early to mid-evening 
social activities.  This demographic excludes those seeking the least expensive alcoholic drinks and 
individuals desiring a venue open till 2:00am. 

 19th Hole:  Middle income residents seeking a full-service bar and table side service restaurant 
atmosphere. This demographic expects moderately priced food and beverage items and excludes 
menu items that appear “cheap” (see Appendix F for menu comparisons with local restaurants). 

 Pasta Night:  Middle income residents and their guests seeking full bar, wine and table side service 
featuring quality meals at a fair dinner price.  A simple, consistent and value priced Italian menu is 
available.  Additionally, two specials that change weekly make up 40-50% of food sales.  

 Fish Fry:  Residents with a variety of income levels who desire a traditional fish fry meal on a Friday 
and/or those abstaining from eating meat on Fridays during Lent.  These residents are willing to pay 
more for quality fish and appreciate the option of an additional special for their non fish eating 
companions. This stand-alone event held during season was discontinued at the end of FY14 and 



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

7 
 

incorporated into the daily specials offered at the 19th Hole based on the fact the Friday night event 
lost money 4 out of 6 months when held at Building A.   

 Resident/club requested catering events:  Catered events to residents and clubs are planned on an 
individual basis according to the type of event and type of food requested.  Menu price per person is 
typically higher since they may include appetizers, entrees and dessert.  Requests are made for 
either table side service or buffet.  Resident events include a variety of themes, such as  memorial 
lunches, anniversaries, birthday party, etc.  Club events requested during season are for monthly 
dinner meetings, holiday parties or end of the year picnics.   

 Golf Tournament events:  Catered lunches provided for the women and men’s league tournaments 
and various club membership tournaments at a moderate price.  Members of the golf course also 
run special tournaments during season in which dinner or lunch catering is requested. 

 Street Dances and other BBRD sponsored special events: A broader range of socio-economic 
residents seeking a daytime live music and food/beverage entertainment event close to their 
homes.  The structure of some of these events allows individuals with less disposable income to 
attend and enjoy the atmosphere without spending more than a typical casual dining experience.  
Other events such as New Year’s Eve, St. Patrick’s Day, Mother’s Day, etc. cater to residents with 
moderate to higher income levels, although pricing levels are consistent with other table service 
restaurants in the area. 

 
Additional events planned for FY 16/17 from resident and trustee input. 
 F&B will plan diversified gatherings with food from Southern European regions, a “Farm-to-

Fork” event featuring local seasonal ingredients, a family style chicken dinner event to promote 
socialization. Other evenings to celebrate fun holidays such as Cinco de Mayo and Mardi Gras 
will also be scheduled.  Music will be arranged to fit the venue.   

 A dinner dance event with ballroom dancing has been requested for this year.  This will attract 
many residents who love the art of couples dancing.  Music is played to complement a variety of 
styles of dance including the waltz, cha cha, tango and rumba to name a few.  Dance classes are 
held separately from the event.   A “tiny tastings” global buffet celebrating the regions the 
dance style came from will be a great kick off to this energetic evening.  

 There is growing interest in planning more family oriented activities for the community. In 
August or September of each year, a Chili Cook Off and summer party is held at Pool #1.  Adults 
and children participate in a variety of games.  There is a lot of friendly competition and fun.  An 
additional event of this type will be planned in season to include families and active “kids at 
heart” members of the community. 

 
 
Live Entertainment 
A variety of music and entertainment is scheduled weekly, bi-monthly and during special events to 
appeal to the different tastes and preferences of the community. F&B management believes live 
entertainment increases attendance, sales and the numbers of residents who seek a social event to 
attend close to home.  Although a saturation 
point can be reached (where additional live 
entertainment does not increase revenues 
due to exceeding the desire of regular F&B 
patrons to frequent BBRD venues), the chart 
to the right illustrates the non-season impact 
of live entertainment in F&B venues.  

Impact of Live Music (Thursdays)* Sales % Inc.

Jun-14 Lounge - no music (4 weeks ave.) 358   
19th Hole - no music (4 weeks ave.) 439   

Jul-15 Lounge - no music (4 week ave.) 360   1%

19th Hole - music (4 week ave.) 818   87%

* July 4th w eek excluded



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

8 
 

 
Specifically, the following highlights the differing venues for live music and F&B’s operational strategies.  
 
Lounge: 
Located next to Pool #1, the Lounge is a live entertainment venue that also offers beverages, bar snacks, 
sandwiches and salads during the day to pool patrons and residents.  Capacity is currently 119 which 
demand far exceeds during season thereby requiring a counter on Friday nights to ensure the maximum 
capacity is not exceeded.  Once the pool host clocks out at 9 p.m. (changed to 10p.m. starting 08Aug16), 
F&B staff strives to check badges. to ensure only residents with badges and their guests with a pass 
enter the Lounge.   As capacity issues arise we are able to open the bi-folding doors which open to the 
outdoor patio, weather permitting.  This area allows for residents to sit just outside the lounge and 
enjoy the music and dancing without jeopardizing capacity.   
 
The Lounge is a bar, food and music venue, however, in season activities such as the dart leagues have 
historically played in the lounge and have a positive impact on revenue.  It does, however, reduce the 
days available for other revenue producing activities as the leagues use the Lounge for the dart league 
on Monday nights, Wednesday and Thursday afternoons and Thursday evenings.  The known schedule 
of the dart league is an unspoken inhibiting factor that discourages residents from coming to the Lounge 
unless they are intent on playing darts.  The bigger issue is once the leagues end; there are a few people 
who continue to practice on Monday and Thursday evenings.  A second shift is scheduled to 
accommodate them, however, sales average $86 which does not cover expenses.   
 
Trivia Night is an interactive game hosted by a husband and wife team.  Trivia questions are displayed on 
television screens and announced to the participants.  Six games of 9-10 questions each.  Teams are 1-6 
persons so any one person or group of persons can attend and play.  Recent experience with $1 Taco 
Tuesday has given us a big boost in traffic and food sales on that night so a low cost food item will also 
be featured during Trivia night.  Wednesday evening is the slowest night of the week at the Lounge so 
this is a good location and night to hold this event.  Trivia night starts Wednesday, September 14 from 
6:30-8:30 p.m. in the Lounge. 
 
19th Hole: 
Strategically located at the Golf Course, the 19th Hole caters to golfers and residents desiring a full bar 
and table side restaurant service.  The lunch menu is a mix of cold and hot sandwiches, salads and daily 
blackboard specials.  In season, a bar menu with offerings such as nachos or wings and fries are popular 
items from 3-6 p.m. and on Sundays during NFL Ticket times. Beginning in FY16, breakfast was added 
with regular menu items of sandwiches, house made turnovers and special egg casseroles.  The new 
expanded hours for a limited breakfast was well received during the first season and has maintained 
profitability during the summer months up to the date of the drafting of this document. 
 
The 19th Hole also hosts Music Bingo on Monday nights and live music on Thursday nights. Capacity is 
102 and is increasingly threatened as the 19th Hole’s popularity grows.  During those busy times, the 
porch is used to avoid capacity issues. Conflicts between residents who enjoy different recreational or 
entertainment is an annual seasonal issue that is growing due to increased use of the venue by residents 
and their guests.  
 
 
 



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

9 
 

Pricing 
Prices for food and beverages items are based on the goal of  the following targets. 

 Alcoholic beverages: cost of ingredients x 3 

 Non-alcoholic beverages: cost of ingredients x 3 

 Lounge food (prepared to order):  cost of ingredients divided by 0.45 

 Lounge microwavable food: cost x 3 

 19th Hole food: cost of ingredients divided by 0.45 

 Pasta Night food: cost of ingredients divided by 0.30 

 Employee discount: BBRD employees and on-site vendors are eligible for a discounted lunch meal 
and non-alcoholic beverage on the days they work for $4.00.  An analysis of the lunch menu items in 
FY14 indicated some menu items (combined with beverage and to go containers) were slightly 
above the previous $3.00 price, necessitating an increase to $4.00.  An increase to $5.00 per meal is 
planned for FY17.  

 
An analysis of the past fiscal years (FY13-current) illustrate the difficulty management has in staying 
under the 45% food costs for the Lounge and 19th Hole.  Additionally, the demand for variety and quality 
weekly Pasta Night specials skew the food costs percentage of sales when compared to traditional pasta 
dishes that are regular menu items.  Please see page 6 “Targeted Resident Demographic” and page 9 
“Employee Meal Discount” for additional information impacting the food and beverage cost percent of 
sales metrics.  
 
In 2016, the BOT amended the pricing methodology of F&B Operations to allow flexible pricing when 
specific commodities experience a sudden shock increase in costs (i.e. price of eggs, meat, milk, etc.). 
Previously, prices of food and beverage menu items in the Lounge and 19th Hole were only adjusted 
annually based on the approved budget increase as authorized by the BOT. 
 
Non-operational restraints 
Several non-operational factors impact the previous sections.  A concise explanation of them is provided 
as follows: 

 The Affordable Health Care Act requires part-time employees not to exceed an average of 29 hours 
worked per week per 52 weeks or BBRD is required to provide health insurance at a FY16 cost to 
BBRD of $7,376.  Currently only five F&B employees are full-time (out of 14.28 FTEs), although 
multiple part-time employees are close to the threshold.  Per direction from the Community 
Manager, F&B Management is closely monitoring part-time hours worked and will ensure all part-
time employees stay under the 29 hour threshold. 

 R&M responsibilities for F&B facilities are split between Property Services and F&B based on a 
leased space concept.  For example, if an expense is required that BBRD would incur regardless of 
the occupancy of the Lounge (i.e. roof repair, a/c compressor replacement, etc.) then Property 
Services pays for the expense.  On the other hand, if an R&M expense specific to F&B’s use of a 
facility (i.e. cooler repair, carpet replacement, etc.) then the F&B budget is charged.   

 In FY 12, F&B assumed the cost of the part-time custodian ($16,852 in FY13 payroll costs) who 
performs night time porter services which historically was part of the Custodial Department.  This 
shift in personnel was made since the F&B Manager provided direction to the position regarding 
work assignments.  Upon further review of this allocation made 5 years ago, management realized 
only a portion of the night time porter work (4 nights) was allocated to F&B while Property Services 
assumed the cost of porter services the rest of the week and during absences of the dedicated 



Food and Beverage Principles of Operations 
 
 

10 
 

custodian. To provide consistent custodial and porter services, said part-time position was moved 
back into the Property Services budget in FY16. 

 Historically, capital projects included in the annual budgets are funded as a direct subsidy from 
Capital Department.  This direct subsidy is customarily not included in the F&B Budget.. In FY16, the 
F&B Budget includes the non-capital project costs of a refrigerator and ice machine for the 19th Hole, 
an ice machine for D/E and an evaporator/condensing unit for the walk in cooler at the Lounge. 
These items were planned to be procured via financing over a three to five year period to smooth 
the impact on the subsidy.  However, the BOT decided to purchase them outright verse financing 
thereby increasing the FY16 subsidy by over $5,000. 

 The employee meal discount skews the cost of food and beverage sales as compared to other 
comparable restaurants.  An analysis of FY15 data illustrates F&B “lost” approximately $9,360 in 
revenue as related to approximately $,7,000 is sales (please see Appendix I for monthly data).  
However, without a detailed statistical analysis of employee purchasing price points, the reader is 
cautioned to avoid assuming ending the employee meal discount program would automatically lead 
an increase in net revenues. Additionally, the employee meal discount should be viewed as a 
component of the overall employee compensation and benefits package and not as a stand-alone 
program.    

 
Alternate Principles of Operations for Consideration by the Board of Trustees (BOT) 
The following list of alternate operational principles is provided for the BOT, if they desire to modify the 
current set of principles used by F&B Management and the Community Manager to operate the 
department.  The list is illustrative and meant to be deemed as exhaustive.   

 Decrease direct subsidy of F&B Department by reducing hours and/or days of operations of the 
Lounge and/or the 19th Hole during the summer months when direct costs exceed daily revenues 
received. 

 Eliminate lunch menu during summer months. 

 During summer season, eliminate table side service during lunch at the 19th Hole in lieu of a limited 
buffet. 

 During the summer season, open the Lounge later in the day. 

 During the summer season, allow non-residents access to the Lounge for a fee. 
 



Appendix A:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Recipts by Date Charts

20341.3

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

1
-F

e
b

3
-F

e
b

5
-F

e
b

7
-F

e
b

9
-F

e
b

1
1

-F
e

b

1
3

-F
e

b

1
5

-F
e

b

1
7

-F
e

b

1
9

-F
e

b

2
1

-F
e

b

2
3

-F
e

b

2
5

-F
e

b

2
7

-F
e

b

February 2014 Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

1
-M

ar

3
-M

ar

5
-M

ar

7
-M

ar

9
-M

ar

1
1

-M
ar

1
3

-M
ar

1
5

-M
ar

1
7

-M
ar

1
9

-M
ar

2
1

-M
ar

2
3

-M
ar

2
5

-M
ar

2
7

-M
ar

2
9

-M
ar

3
1

-M
ar

March 2014 Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

1
-A

p
r

3
-A

p
r

5
-A

p
r

7
-A

p
r

9
-A

p
r

1
1

-A
p

r

1
3

-A
p

r

1
5

-A
p

r

1
7

-A
p

r

1
9

-A
p

r

2
1

-A
p

r

2
3

-A
p

r

2
5

-A
p

r

2
7

-A
p

r

2
9

-A
p

r

April 2014 Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

1
-M

ay

3
-M

ay

5
-M

ay

7
-M

ay

9
-M

ay

1
1

-M
ay

1
3

-M
ay

1
5

-M
ay

1
7

-M
ay

1
9

-M
ay

2
1

-M
ay

2
3

-M
ay

2
5

-M
ay

2
7

-M
ay

2
9

-M
ay

3
1

-M
ay

May 2014 Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

1
-J

u
n

3
-J

u
n

5
-J

u
n

7
-J

u
n

9
-J

u
n

1
1

-J
u

n

1
3

-J
u

n

1
5

-J
u

n

1
7

-J
u

n

1
9

-J
u

n

2
1

-J
u

n

2
3

-J
u

n

2
5

-J
u

n

2
7

-J
u

n

2
9

-J
u

n

June 2014 Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

1
-J

u
l

3
-J

u
l

5
-J

u
l

7
-J

u
l

9
-J

u
l

1
1

-J
u

l

1
3

-J
u

l

1
5

-J
u

l

1
7

-J
u

l

1
9

-J
u

l

2
1

-J
u

l

2
3

-J
u

l

2
5

-J
u

l

2
7

-J
u

l

2
9

-J
u

l

3
1

-J
u

l

July 2014 Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 11



Appendix B:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Date

Lounge 19th Hole

Date

 (2014)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

1-Feb Sat -      862            862        Y 303       592            896           
2-Feb Sun 149       900            1,049        
3-Feb Mon 99       629            727        372       817            1,189        
4-Feb Tue 74       1,266         1,340     Y 414       918            1,333        
5-Feb Wed 149     897            1,046     Y 264       326            590           
6-Feb Thu 113     502            615        -        428       1,018         1,447        Y
7-Feb Fri 46       1,082         1,128     Y 535       1,155         1,690        
8-Feb Sat 138     841            979        Y 172       503            675           
9-Feb Sun 102     833            936        Y 83         936            1,020        

10-Feb Mon 190     916            1,106     280       759            1,039        
11-Feb Tue 134     1,277         1,411     Y 275       539            815           
12-Feb Wed 185     916            1,101     Y 248       233            480           
13-Feb Thu 66       695            761        -        875       434            1,309        Y
14-Feb Fri 77       1,746         1,823     Y 289       1,069         1,358        
15-Feb Sat 26       821            847        Y 213       509            722           
16-Feb Sun 140       876            1,016        
17-Feb Mon 248     902            1,150     -        275       794            1,069        
18-Feb Tue 272     1,274         1,546     Y 446       783            1,229        
19-Feb Wed 327     1,151         1,478     Y 202       233            434           
20-Feb Thu 263     765            1,028     432       861            1,293        Y
21-Feb Fri 213     1,483         1,696     Y 455       1,241         1,696        
22-Feb Sat -      -             -         127       556            683           
23-Feb Sun 181     838            1,019     Y 79         803            882           
24-Feb Mon 54       521            575        -        190       707            897           
25-Feb Tue 225     1,157         1,382     Y 548       788            1,336        
26-Feb Wed 82       419            501        Y 125       352            477           

27-Feb Thu 69       604            673        -        191       1,029         1,219        Y

28-Feb Fri 183     1,391         1,574     Y 305       609            914           

Feb Total 3,518  23,787       27,305   -        8,415    20,341       28,756      

1-Mar Sat 140     1,178         1,318     Y 211       559            770           
2-Mar Sun 77         872            950           
3-Mar Mon 203     920            1,123     -        305       779            1,085        
4-Mar Tue 177     1,053         1,230     Y 592       943            1,535        
5-Mar Wed 108     900            1,008     Y
6-Mar Thu 125     567            691        424       735            1,159        Y
7-Mar Fri 137     1,727         1,864     Y 488       990            1,478        
8-Mar Sat 172     934            1,105     Y 349       662            1,010        
9-Mar Sun 157     882            1,039     Y 1,336    752            2,088        

10-Mar Mon 165     871            1,036     359       991            1,350        
11-Mar Tue 228     1,180         1,408     Y 337       437            774           
12-Mar Wed 83       944            1,027     Y 155       260            415           

12



Appendix B:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Date

13-Mar Thu 21       598            619        373       1,157         1,530        Y
14-Mar Fri 113     1,658         1,771     Y 486       1,012         1,497        
15-Mar Sat 205     981            1,186     Y 525       525           
16-Mar Sun 147     888            1,035     79         700            780           
17-Mar Mon -         536       805            1,341        Y
18-Mar Tue 76       815            891        Y 236       536            772           
19-Mar Wed 433     1,381         1,814     Y 148       175            323           
20-Mar Thu 155     1,215         1,370     502       962            1,463        Y
21-Mar Fri 151     1,934         2,085     Y 324       813            1,137        
22-Mar Sat 177     909            1,087     Y 326       631            957           
23-Mar Sun 117     744            861        Y 81         720            801           
24-Mar Mon 76       578            655        230       654            884           
25-Mar Tue 30       1,104         1,135     Y 398       590            988           
26-Mar Wed 61       735            796        Y 117       130            247           
27-Mar Thu 37       593            630        468       973            1,441        Y
28-Mar Fri 39       1,118         1,157     Y 417       787            1,204        
29-Mar Sat 78       110            189        185       500            685           
30-Mar Sun 156     911            1,066     Y 81         863            943           
31-Mar Mon 41       500            541        165       853            1,018        

Mar Totals 3,810  27,928       31,738   10,312  20,841       31,153      

1-Apr Tue 108     1,128         1,235     Y 255       636            892           
2-Apr Wed 112     1,024         1,136     111       204            315           
3-Apr Thu 143     751            894        360       726            1,086        Y
4-Apr Fri 145     1,804         1,948     Y 434       1,045         1,479        
5-Apr Sat 196     883            1,079     Y 298       463            761           
6-Apr Sun 112     1,090         1,202     Y 52         846            898           
7-Apr Mon 129     611            740        292       630            922           
8-Apr Tue 29       692            720        Y 134       384            518           
9-Apr Wed 73       668            741        170       276            446           

10-Apr Thu 176     929            1,106     432       633            1,066        Y
11-Apr Fri 126     1,024         1,150     Y 262       688            950           
12-Apr Sat -         131       425            556           
13-Apr Sun -         55         578            633           
14-Apr Mon 119     758            877        294       568            862           
15-Apr Tue 201     909            1,110     Y 163       500            663           
16-Apr Wed 65       434            498        157       116            273           
17-Apr Thu 122     1,174         1,296     380       670            1,050        Y
18-Apr Fri 165     1,118         1,283     Y 311       854            1,165        
19-Apr Sat 290     1,540         1,830     Y 71         245            316           
20-Apr Sun 8         376            384        35         298            333           

21-Apr Mon 200     718            917        188       588            776           
22-Apr Tue 171     876            1,047     Y 228       610            839           
23-Apr Wed 139     638            777        175       109            284           
24-Apr Thu 249     862            1,112     192       270            462           Y
25-Apr Fri 176     1,765         1,941     Y 336       935            1,272        
26-Apr Sat 106     852            958        Y
27-Apr Sun 275       992            1,267        

13



Appendix B:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Date

28-Apr Mon 115     517            632        171       517            688           
29-Apr Tue 93       506            599        Y 297       536            833           
30-Apr Wed 44       252            297        141       208            349           

Apr Totals 3,612  23,899       27,510   6,402    15,552       21,954      

1-May Thu 72       510            581        233       596            829           Y
2-May Fri 104     890            994        Y 305       767            1,072        
3-May Sat 29       397            426        Y 69         363            431           
4-May Sun -         74         549            623           
5-May Mon 46       339            386        237       412            649           
6-May Tue 51       602            653        Y 245       311            556           
7-May Wed 79       525            604        166       254            419           
8-May Thu 70       511            581        192       455            647           
9-May Fri 90       1,023         1,113     Y 283       813            1,097        

10-May Sat 112     761            873        Y 224       437            662           
11-May Sun -         32         365            397           
12-May Mon 65       270            336        193       422            615           
13-May Tue 47       343            390        216       512            728           Y
14-May Wed 54       375            429        121       144            265           
15-May Thu 49       168            217        182       205            387           
16-May Fri 37       875            911        Y 312       608            920           
17-May Sat 26       590            617        Y 158       229            387           
18-May Sun 47       510            558        39         421            459           
19-May Mon 73       326            398        212       377            590           
20-May Tue 62       363            425        245       606            851           Y
21-May Wed 53       321            374        115       221            335           
22-May Thu 50       403            453        135       305            440           
23-May Fri 83       757            840        Y 261       958            1,218        
24-May Sat 118     730            848        Y 245       301            545           
25-May Sun 99       806            905        13         459            473           
26-May Mon -         103       278            381           Y
27-May Tue 30       152            183        194       415            608           Y
28-May Wed 80       311            391        80         166            246           
29-May Thu 53       143            196        99         215            315           
30-May Fri 49       873            922        Y 244       524            768           
31-May Sat 51       635            686        Y 88         211            299           

May Totals 1,780  14,509       16,290   5,316    12,898       18,214      

-       
1-Jun Sun 39       219            258        42         516            558           
2-Jun Mon 71       275            346        172       280            451           
3-Jun Tue 39       228            267        280       688            968           Y
4-Jun Wed 117     244            361        160       142            301           
5-Jun Thu 89       349            438        126       265            391           
6-Jun Fri 102     744            846        Y 316       478            794           
7-Jun Sat 34       374            408        Y 185       432            617           
8-Jun Sun 88       502            590        37         422            459           
9-Jun Mon 41       287            328        104       176            280           

10-Jun Tue 29       274            302        155       495            650           

14



Appendix B:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Date

11-Jun Wed 17       63              80          156       128            284           
12-Jun Thu 77       218            296        208       336            544           
13-Jun Fri 74       611            684        Y 223       388            611           
14-Jun Sat 12       237            249        Y 164       388            552           
15-Jun Sun -         23         296            319           
16-Jun Mon 35       222            257        Y 145       208            353           
17-Jun Tue -         222       714            936           Y

18-Jun Wed 102     325            427        88         99              186           
19-Jun Thu 25       223            248        162       385            547           
20-Jun Fri 52       557            609        Y 136       210            346           
21-Jun Sat 98       534            632        Y 110       265            375           
22-Jun Sun 112     314            426        20         472            492           
23-Jun Mon 76       281            357        Y 199       218            417           
24-Jun Tue 50       212            262        238       481            719           Y
25-Jun Wed 71       372            443        25         66              91             
26-Jun Thu 69       380            449        123       150            273           
27-Jun Fri 295     1,013         1,308     Y 164       207            371           
28-Jun Sat 76       438            514        Y -            
29-Jun Sun 30         336            366           
30-Jun Mon 116     322            438        83         175            258           

Jun Totals 2,007  9,816         11,823   4,093    9,414         13,507      

1-Jul Tue 60       178            238        208       604            813           Y
2-Jul Wed 56       292            348        
3-Jul Thu 98       522            621        237       353            591           
4-Jul Fri 33         269            303           
5-Jul Sat 113     344            457        Y 81         148            230           
6-Jul Sun 65       180            245        35         188            223           
7-Jul Mon 79       314            393        168       235            402           
8-Jul Tue 82       287            368        258       444            702           Y
9-Jul Wed 66       455            1,207     154       95              249           

10-Jul Thu 58       224            281        240       600            840           Y
11-Jul Fri 115     636            751        Y 282       442            724           
12-Jul Sat 100     405            505        Y 200       203            402           
13-Jul Sun -         29         439            468           
14-Jul Mon 39       217            256        190       281            471           
15-Jul Tue 53       126            179        212       471            683           Y
16-Jul Wed 65       208            274        107       67              175           

17-Jul Thu 93       271            364        304       578            882           Y
18-Jul Fri 96       709            804        Y 250       307            557           
19-Jul Sat 152     760            912        Y 86         245            331           
20-Jul Sun 149     403            552        29         265            294           
21-Jul Mon 69       168            237        167       230            397           
22-Jul Tue 43       216            259        318       575            893           Y
23-Jul Wed 75       249            323        109       64              174           
24-Jul Thu 83       299            381        268       453            721           Y

15



Appendix B:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Date

25-Jul Fri 138     720            858        Y 288       392            679           
26-Jul Sat 160     720            880        Y 185       243            428           
27-Jul Sun -         21         371            392           
28-Jul Mon 93       351            444        150       252            402           
29-Jul Tue 35       180            215        349       651            1,000        Y
30-Jul Wed 63       341            404        46         74              120           
31-Jul Thu 133     282            415        311       520            831           Y

Jul Totals 2,426  10,057       13,170   5,316    10,060       15,376      

16



Appendix C:

Food Beverage Subsidy by Year and Season

Revenues FY 13 Actual FY 14 Actual FY 15 Actual

FY 16 

YE Est.

FY 17

Budget

Administration* N/A N/A N/A -              -                  

Lounge 239,765        228,059        248,283      268,275     273,190         

19th Hole 273,951        261,141        349,672      376,880     386,301         

Pasta Night 64,868           57,214           68,630        68,033       71,789           

Fish Fry 17,330           14,547           -               -              -                  

Special Events 82,861           126,653        154,728      169,805     174,049         

F&B Total 678,775        687,614        821,313      882,993     905,329         

check 680,827        821,312      882,993     905,329         

2,052             

* From FY17 Working Draft Proposed Budget submitted to BOT on 01Mar16.

Revenues

FY 13 

1st 6 months

FY 14

1st 6 months

FY 15 

1st 6 

months

FY 16 

1st 6 

month

Administration*

Lounge 135,685        146,392        129,233      172,049     

19th Hole 165,262        154,597        206,839      234,805     

Pasta Night 40,347           32,728           37,598        39,299       

Fish Fry 16,883           13,050           -               -              

Special Events 62,563           74,191           105,741      108,486     

F&B Total 420,740        420,958        479,411      554,639     

check 422,083        420,958        479,411      554,638     
1,343             

Revenues

FY 13 

last 6 

months

FY 14

last 6 

months

FY 15 

last 6 

months

FY 16 

last 6 

month

Administration* N/A N/A N/A -              

Lounge 104,080        81,667           119,050      96,226       

19th Hole 108,689        106,544        142,833      142,075     

Pasta Night 24,521           24,486           31,032        28,734       

Fish Fry 447                1,497             -               -              

Special Events 20,298           52,462           48,987        61,319       

F&B Total 258,035        266,656        341,902      328,354     

check
2,052             

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

17



Appendix C:

Food Beverage Subsidy by Year and Season

Expenditures

FY 13 

Actual FY 14 Actual FY 15 Actual

FY 16 

YE Est.

FY 17

Budget

Administration* N/A N/A N/A 75,330        76,081           

Lounge 263,447         301,244        284,711       274,474      276,151        

19th Hole 270,950         292,937        390,068       415,292      421,115        

Pasta Night 61,221           52,492           58,706          57,467        55,033           

Fish Fry 17,559           15,575           -                -               -                 

Special Events 56,753           90,938           111,448       104,396      140,198        

F&B Total 669,929         753,186        844,933       926,959      968,578        

718,339         844,933       926,958      968,578        

48,410           

* From FY17 Working Draft Proposed Budget submitted to BOT on 01Mar16.

Expenditures

FY 13 

1st 6 months

FY 14

1st 6 months

FY 15 

1st 6 months

FY 16 

1st 6 month

Administration* 38,247        

Lounge 141,328         168,726        146,189       162,743      

19th Hole 151,522         156,821        209,456       250,478      

Pasta Night 37,397           30,264           31,050          27,643        

Fish Fry 16,198           13,409           -                -               

Special Events 40,232           49,566           69,069          65,176        

F&B Total 386,677         418,786        455,764       544,287      

419,677         418,335        455,765       544,286      
33,000           

Expenditures

FY 13 

last 6 months

FY 14

last 6 

months

FY 15 

last 6 

months

FY 16 

last 6 

month

Administration* N/A N/A N/A 37,083        

Lounge 122,119         132,518        138,522       111,731      

19th Hole 119,428         136,116        180,612       164,814      

Pasta Night 23,824           22,228           27,656          29,824        

Fish Fry 1,361             2,166             -                -               

Special Events 16,521           41,372           42,379          39,220        

F&B Total 283,252         334,400        389,169       382,672      

718,339         844,933       926,958      
48,410           

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

18



Appendix C:

Food Beverage Subsidy by Year and Season

Surplus/Deficit

FY 13 

Actual

FY 14 

Actual FY 15 Actual

FY 16 

YE Est. *

FY 17

Budget

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (75,330)    (76,081)    

Lounge (23,682)    (73,185)    (36,428)       (6,199)      (2,961)      

19th Hole 3,001       (31,796)    (40,396)       (38,412)    (34,814)    

Pasta Night 3,647       4,722       9,924           10,566     16,756     

Fish Fry (229)         (1,028)      -               -            -            

Special Events 26,108     35,715     43,280         65,409     33,851     

Items not expensed to a 

Sub-Dept. (46,358)    -            -               -            -            

F&B Total (37,512)   (65,572)   (23,620)       (43,966)   (63,249)   

* From FY17 Working Draft Proposed Budget submitted to BOT on 01Mar16.

Surplus/Deficit

FY 13 

1st 6 

months

FY 14

1st 6 

months

FY 15 

1st 6 

months

FY 16 

1st 6 

month

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (38,247)    

Lounge (5,643)      (22,334)    (16,956)       9,306       

19th Hole 13,740     (2,224)      (2,617)          (15,673)    

Pasta Night 2,950       2,464       6,548           11,656     

Fish Fry 685           (359)         -               -            

Special Events 22,331     24,625     36,672         43,310     

Items not expensed to a 

Sub-Dept. (31,657)    -            -               -            

F&B Total 2,406       2,172       23,647        10,352     

Surplus/Deficit

FY 13 

last 6 

months

FY 14

last 6 

months

FY 15 

last 6 

months

FY 16 

last 6 

month 

est.*

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (37,083)    

Lounge (18,039)    (50,851)    (19,472)       (15,505)    

19th Hole (10,739)    (29,572)    (37,779)       (22,739)    

Pasta Night 697           2,258       3,376           (1,090)      

Fish Fry (914)         (669)         -               -            

Special Events 3,777       11,090     6,608           22,099     

Items not expensed to a 

Sub-Dept. (14,701)    -            -               -            

F&B Total (39,918)   (67,744)   (47,267)       (54,318)   

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

** Sub-department created in FY16.  Previously costs were allocated to operating sub-

departments.

19



Appendix D: 

Month of October Fiscal Analysis

October Monthly Data

Revenues

FY 13 

Actual

FY 14 

Actual

FY 15 

Actual

FY 16 

Actual

Administration** N/A N/A N/A -           

Lounge N/A 16,613     9,288       21,379     

19th Hole N/A 20,009     31,312     34,547     

Pasta Night N/A 5,990       6,331       4,931       

Fish Fry N/A 1,058       -           -           

Special Events N/A 7,272       7,254       7,994       

Items not expensed to 

a Sub-Dept. N/A 489          -           -           

F&B Total 47,035     51,431     54,185     68,850     

Expenditures

FY 13 

Actual

FY 14 

Actual

FY 15 

Actual

FY 16 

Actual

Administration** N/A N/A N/A 3,896       

Lounge N/A 20,521     19,570     19,367     

19th Hole N/A 18,673     31,520     31,043     

Pasta Night N/A 5,396       3,649       2,762       

Fish Fry N/A 1,332       125          -           

Special Events N/A 4,743       4,793       4,793       

Items not expensed to 

a Sub-Dept. N/A 3,976       -           -           

F&B Total 55,387     54,641     59,657     61,860     

Surplus/Deficit

FY 13 

Actual

FY 14 

Actual

FY 15 

Actual*

FY 16 

Actual

Administration** N/A N/A N/A (3,896)      

Lounge N/A (3,908)      (10,282)   2,012       

19th Hole N/A 1,336       (207)         3,503       

Pasta Night N/A 595          2,682       2,169       

Fish Fry N/A (275)         (125)         -           

Special Events N/A 2,529       2,461       3,201       

Items not expensed to 

a Sub-Dept. N/A (3,487)      -           -           

F&B Total (8,352)      (3,210)      (5,472)      6,990       

* Indicates Lounge was closed the majority of each day from October 

** Administration costs were split between Lounge and 19th Hole prior to 

20



Appendix E:

Days and Hours of Operations by Season

Days Lounge 19th Hole

October - April 

Monday 11 A.M.-10 P.M. 7:00 A.M.-9:00 P.M 

Darts 7-10 P.M. Music Bingo 6-10:30

Tuesday 11 A.M.-11 P.M.                                 7:00 A.M.-7:30 P.M.

Karaoke 6-10 P.M.

Wednesday 11 A.M.-9 P.M. 7:00 A.M.-9:00 P.M. 

Pasta Night 4-7:30 P.M.

Thursday 11 A.M.--9 P.M                                     7:00 A.M.-9:00 P.M.          .

Darts 1-4 & 7-10 Music 4:30-8 P.M

Friday 11 A.M.-11 P.M.                                 7 A.M.-8 P.M.

Music 7-10:30 P.M.

Saturday 11 A.M. - 11 P.M.                                                                                      7:00 A.M.-9:00 P.M.

Music Lounge 3-6 P.M. 

Music Lakeside 6-9 P.M.

Sunday 11 A.M.-9:00 P.M. 7:00 A.M.-9:00 P.M. 

Kitchen Hours Monday - Sunday  11 A.M.-3 P.M.                                               Mon. & Tues.  7-7 P.M.  

Saturday Grill is open 4-7:30 P.M.  Wed.  7-3 P.M. 4-7:30 P.M.

Street Dance Grill is open 12-5 P.M. Thurs. & Fri. 7-7:30 P.M.

Sat. 7 A.M.-6 P.M.

Sun. NFL ticket 7 -7 P.M

May - September

Monday 12 - 9 P.M. 7:30 A.M.-9 P.M.

Darts Music Bingo

Tuesday 12-11 P.M.                                       7:30 A.M.-7:30 P.M.

 Karaoke 6-10 P.M.

Wednesday 12-9 P.M. 7:30 A.M.-9 P.M.

Pasta Night

Thursday 12-9 P.M. 7:30- A.M.-9 P.M.

Darts Music 4:30-8 P.M.

Friday 12-11 P.M. 7:30 A.M.-8:00 P.M.

Music 7-10:30 P.M.

Saturday 11-11 P.M. 7:00 A.M.-7:30 P.M.

Music 6-9 P.M.

Sunday 11 A.M.-9 P.M. 7:00 A.M.-7:30 P.M.

Street Dance 2-6 P.M.

Kitchen Hours Mon.-Sun. 12-2 P.M.   Monday 7 A.M.-7:30 P.M.

$1 Taco Tuesday 4:30-9 P.M. Tuesday 7 A.M.-3 P.M.

Saturday Grill Open 4-7:30 P.M. Wed. 7-3, 4-7:30

Street Dances Grill Open Noon-5 P.M. Thurs.&Fri. 7-7:30 P.M.

Saturday 7-3 P.M.

Sunday 7-1 P.M.

21



Appendix E:

Comparative Menu Prices

Casual Dining/Sports Bar/Entertainment Venue Comparison

Barefoot Bay Vics Pizza

Fish 

House Sandy's

Chubby 

Mullet Rib City

Hamburger 6.34               7.80         8.00        8.99                  10.00 8.19            

Chicken Sandwich 7.05               8.19         8.00        8.99          N/A 8.19            

Fish Sandwich 7.05               5.95         13.00      7.99                  12.00 8.69            

Cod Haddock Red fish Swai  Mahi unlisted

Salad 6.53               8.80         7.00        7.99                    7.00 8.69            

   add chicken 2.82               included 4.00        4.00                    5.00 included 

Wings 7.28               8.30         10.00      8.99                  10.00 N/A

BLT 5.22               5.29         N/A 7.99          N/A N/A

Linguini Marinara 7.49               9.05         N/A N/A N/A N/A

Linguini Alfredo 9.35               11.29      N/A N/A N/A N/A

Linguini Agio Olio 8.41               9.29         N/A N/A N/A N/A

Meatball Sub 6.11               8.05         N/A N/A N/A N/A

Soda 1.51               2.79         2.00        1.25                    2.00 2.29            

Bottled Domestic Beer 2.63               3.55         3.75        2.75                    3.25 3.50            

House Wine 4.23               5.50         5.00        5.00                    5.00 3.75            

Diners

Barefoot Bay Pelican

Country 

Ham & 

Egg 2002

 

BLT 5.22               4.95         5.75        5.99         

Tuna Salad 5.64               4.45         5.75        5.99         

Chick Salad 5.92               4.95         5.75        5.99         

Egg Salad 4.70               3.95         4.60        4.99         

Hamburger 6.34               4.50         6.75        5.99         

Fish & Chips 7.47               8.50         No Price 8.99         

Coffee 1.00               1.75         1.50        1.99         

Soda 1.51               1.95         1.85        1.95         

22



Appendix E:

Comparative Menu Prices

 -

 10.00

Hamburger   

(Casual Dinning Comparison) 

 -

 5.00

 10.00

 15.00

Fish Sandwich 
(Casual Dining Comparison) 

 -

 2.00

 4.00

Soda 
(Casual Dining Comparison) 

 -

 2.00

 4.00

Bottled Domestic Beer  
(Casual Dining Comparison) 

 -

 1.00

 2.00

 3.00

 4.00

 5.00

 6.00

 7.00

 8.00

 9.00

Barefoot Bay Pelican Country Ham &
Egg

2002

Diner Comparison 

BLT

Hamburger

Fish & Chips

Coffee

Soda

23



Appendix G:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week Charts

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Sunday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Monday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Tuesday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Wednesday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Thursday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Friday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Saturday 2014 Ave. Gross Receipts 

Lounge

19th Hole

24



Appendix H:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week

Lounge 19th Hole

Date

(2014)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live

Music 

(Y/N)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

2-Feb Sun 149     900           1,049      
9-Feb Sun 102       833            936         Y 83       936           1,020      

16-Feb Sun 140     876           1,016      
23-Feb Sun 181       838            1,019      Y 79       803           882         
2-Mar Sun 77       872           950         
9-Mar Sun 157       882            1,039      Y 1,336  752           2,088      

16-Mar Sun 147       888            1,035      79       700           780         
23-Mar Sun 117       744            861         Y 81       720           801         
30-Mar Sun 156       911            1,066      Y 81       863           943         
6-Apr Sun 112       1,090         1,202      Y 52       846           898         
13-Apr Sun -         55       578           633         
20-Apr Sun 8           376            384         35       298           333         
27-Apr Sun 275     992           1,267      
4-May Sun -         74       549           623         

11-May Sun -         32       365           397         
18-May Sun 47         510            558         39       421           459         
25-May Sun 99         806            905         13       459           473         
1-Jun Sun 39         219            258         42       516           558         
8-Jun Sun 88         502            590         37       422           459         

15-Jun Sun -         23       296           319         
22-Jun Sun 112       314            426         20       472           492         
29-Jun Sun 30       336           366         
6-Jul Sun 65         180            245         35       188           223         
13-Jul Sun -         29       439           468         
20-Jul Sun 149       403            552         29       265           294         
27-Jul Sun -         21       371           392         

Monthly Averages (Sundays)
Feb 142       836            977         113     879           992         
Mar 144       856            1,000      331     781           1,112      
Apr 60         733            793         104     679           783         
May 73         658            731         40       448           488         
Jun 79         345            425         30       408           439         
Jul 107       292            398         28       316           344         

3-Feb Mon 99         629            727         372     817           1,189      
10-Feb Mon 190       916            1,106      280     759           1,039      
17-Feb Mon 248       902            1,150      -      275     794           1,069      
24-Feb Mon 54         521            575         -      190     707           897         
3-Mar Mon 203       920            1,123      -      305     779           1,085      

10-Mar Mon 165       871            1,036      359     991           1,350      
17-Mar Mon -         536     805           1,341      Y
24-Mar Mon 76         578            655         230     654           884         
31-Mar Mon 41         500            541         165     853           1,018      

25



Appendix H:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week

Lounge 19th Hole

Date

(2014)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live

Music 

(Y/N)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

7-Apr Mon 129       611            740         292     630           922         
14-Apr Mon 119       758            877         294     568           862         
21-Apr Mon 200       718            917         188     588           776         
28-Apr Mon 115       517            632         171     517           688         
5-May Mon 46         339            386         237     412           649         

12-May Mon 65         270            336         193     422           615         
19-May Mon 73         326            398         212     377           590         
26-May Mon -         103     278           381         Y
2-Jun Mon 71         275            346         172     280           451         
9-Jun Mon 41         287            328         104     176           280         

16-Jun Mon 35         222            257         Y 145     208           353         
23-Jun Mon 76         281            357         Y 199     218           417         
30-Jun Mon 116       322            438         83       175           258         
7-Jul Mon 79         314            393         168     235           402         
14-Jul Mon 39         217            256         190     281           471         
21-Jul Mon 69         168            237         167     230           397         
28-Jul Mon 93         351            444         150     252           402         

Monthly Averages (Mondays)
Feb 148       742            889         279     769           1,048      
Mar 121       717            839         319     816           1,136      
Apr 141       651            792         236     576           812         
May 61         312            373         186     372           559         
Jun 68         277            345         140     211           352         
Jul 70         262            332         169     250           418         

4-Feb Tue 74         1,266         1,340      Y 414     918           1,333      
11-Feb Tue 134       1,277         1,411      Y 275     539           815         
18-Feb Tue 272       1,274         1,546      Y 446     783           1,229      
25-Feb Tue 225       1,157         1,382      Y 548     788           1,336      
4-Mar Tue 177       1,053         1,230      Y 592     943           1,535      

11-Mar Tue 228       1,180         1,408      Y 337     437           774         
18-Mar Tue 76         815            891         Y 236     536           772         
25-Mar Tue 30         1,104         1,135      Y 398     590           988         
1-Apr Tue 108       1,128         1,235      Y 255     636           892         
8-Apr Tue 29         692            720         Y 134     384           518         
15-Apr Tue 201       909            1,110      Y 163     500           663         
22-Apr Tue 171       876            1,047      Y 228     610           839         
29-Apr Tue 93         506            599         Y 297     536           833         
6-May Tue 51         602            653         Y 245     311           556         

13-May Tue 47         343            390         216     512           728         Y
20-May Tue 62         363            425         245     606           851         Y
27-May Tue 30         152            183         194     415           608         Y
3-Jun Tue 39         228            267         280     688           968         Y

10-Jun Tue 29         274            302         155     495           650         Y

26



Appendix H:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week

Lounge 19th Hole

Date

(2014)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live

Music 

(Y/N)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

17-Jun Tue -         222     714           936         Y
24-Jun Tue 50         212            262         238     481           719         Y
1-Jul Tue 60         178            238         208     604           813         Y
8-Jul Tue 82         287            368         258     444           702         Y
15-Jul Tue 53         126            179         212     471           683         Y
22-Jul Tue 43         216            259         318     575           893         Y
29-Jul Tue 35         180            215         349     651           1,000      Y

Monthly Averages (Tuesdays)
Feb 176       1,244         1,420      421     757           1,178      
Mar 128       1,038         1,166      391     626           1,017      
Apr 120       822            942         216     533           749         
May 48         365            413         225     461           686         
Jun 39         238            277         224     594           818         
Jul 54         197            252         269     549           818         

5-Feb Wed 149       897            1,046      Y 264     326           590         
12-Feb Wed 185       916            1,101      Y 248     233           480         
19-Feb Wed 327       1,151         1,478      Y 202     233           434         
26-Feb Wed 82         419            501         Y 125     352           477         
5-Mar Wed 108       900            1,008      Y

12-Mar Wed 83         944            1,027      Y 155     260           415         
19-Mar Wed 433       1,381         1,814      Y 148     175           323         
26-Mar Wed 61         735            796         Y 117     130           247         
2-Apr Wed 112       1,024         1,136      111     204           315         
9-Apr Wed 73         668            741         170     276           446         
16-Apr Wed 65         434            498         157     116           273         
23-Apr Wed 139       638            777         175     109           284         
30-Apr Wed 44         252            297         141     208           349         
7-May Wed 79         525            604         166     254           419         

14-May Wed 54         375            429         121     144           265         
21-May Wed 53         321            374         115     221           335         
28-May Wed 80         311            391         80       166           246         
4-Jun Wed 117       244            361         160     142           301         

11-Jun Wed 17         63              80           156     128           284         
18-Jun Wed 102       325            427         88       99             186         
25-Jun Wed 71         372            443         25       66             91           
2-Jul Wed 56         292            348         
9-Jul Wed 66         455            1,207      154     95             249         
16-Jul Wed 65         208            274         107     67             175         
23-Jul Wed 75         249            323         109     64             174         
30-Jul Wed 63         341            404         46       74             120         

27



Appendix H:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week

Lounge 19th Hole

Date

(2014)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live

Music 

(Y/N)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

Monthly Averages (Wednesdays)
Feb 186       846            1,032      210     286           495         
Mar 171       990            1,161      140     189           329         
Apr 86         603            690         151     183           334         
May 67         383            450         120     196           316         
Jun 77         251            328         107     109           216         
Jul 65         309            511         104     60             144         

6-Feb Thu 113       502            615         -      428     1,018        1,447      Y
13-Feb Thu 66         695            761         -      875     434           1,309      Y
20-Feb Thu 263       765            1,028      432     861           1,293      Y
27-Feb Thu 69         604            673         -      191     1,029        1,219      Y
6-Mar Thu 125       567            691         424     735           1,159      Y

13-Mar Thu 21         598            619         373     1,157        1,530      Y
20-Mar Thu 155       1,215         1,370      502     962           1,463      Y
27-Mar Thu 37         593            630         468     973           1,441      Y
3-Apr Thu 143       751            894         360     726           1,086      Y
10-Apr Thu 176       929            1,106      432     633           1,066      Y
17-Apr Thu 122       1,174         1,296      380     670           1,050      Y
24-Apr Thu 249       862            1,112      192     270           462         Y
1-May Thu 72         510            581         233     596           829         Y
8-May Thu 70         511            581         192     455           647         

15-May Thu 49         168            217         182     205           387         
22-May Thu 50         403            453         135     305           440         
29-May Thu 53         143            196         99       215           315         
5-Jun Thu 89         349            438         126     265           391         

12-Jun Thu 77         218            296         208     336           544         
19-Jun Thu 25         223            248         162     385           547         
26-Jun Thu 69         380            449         123     150           273         
3-Jul Thu 98         522            621         237     353           591         
10-Jul Thu 58         224            281         240     600           840         Y
17-Jul Thu 93         271            364         304     578           882         Y
24-Jul Thu 83         299            381         268     453           721         Y
31-Jul Thu 133       282            415         311     520           831         Y

Monthly Averages (Thursdays)
Feb 128       642            770         482     836           1,317      
Mar 84         743            828         442     957           1,398      
Apr 173       929            1,102      341     575           916         
May 59         347            406         168     355           523         
Jun 65         292            358         155     284           439         
Jul 93         319            412         272     501           773         

28



Appendix H:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week

Lounge 19th Hole

Date

(2014)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live

Music 

(Y/N)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

7-Feb Fri 46         1,082         1,128      Y 535     1,155        1,690      
14-Feb Fri 77         1,746         1,823      Y 289     1,069        1,358      
21-Feb Fri 213       1,483         1,696      Y 455     1,241        1,696      
28-Feb Fri 183       1,391         1,574      Y 305     609           914         
7-Mar Fri 137       1,727         1,864      Y 488     990           1,478      

14-Mar Fri 113       1,658         1,771      Y 486     1,012        1,497      
21-Mar Fri 151       1,934         2,085      Y 324     813           1,137      
28-Mar Fri 39         1,118         1,157      Y 417     787           1,204      
4-Apr Fri 145       1,804         1,948      Y 434     1,045        1,479      
11-Apr Fri 126       1,024         1,150      Y 262     688           950         
18-Apr Fri 165       1,118         1,283      Y 311     854           1,165      
25-Apr Fri 176       1,765         1,941      Y 336     935           1,272      
2-May Fri 104       890            994         Y 305     767           1,072      
9-May Fri 90         1,023         1,113      Y 283     813           1,097      

16-May Fri 37         875            911         Y 312     608           920         
23-May Fri 83         757            840         Y 261     958           1,218      
30-May Fri 49         873            922         Y 244     524           768         
6-Jun Fri 102       744            846         Y 316     478           794         

13-Jun Fri 74         611            684         Y 223     388           611         
20-Jun Fri 52         557            609         Y 136     210           346         
27-Jun Fri 295       1,013         1,308      Y 164     207           371         
4-Jul Fri 33       269           303         
11-Jul Fri 115       636            751         Y 282     442           724         
18-Jul Fri 96         709            804         Y 250     307           557         
25-Jul Fri 138       720            858         Y 288     392           679         

Monthly Averages (Fridays)
Feb 130       1,425         1,555      396     1,019        1,415      
Mar 110       1,609         1,719      429     901           1,329      
Apr 153       1,427         1,581      336     881           1,216      
May 73         884            956         281     734           1,015      
Jun 131       731            862         210     321           530         
Jul 116       688            804         213     352           566         

1-Feb Sat -       862            862         Y 303     592           896         
8-Feb Sat 138       841            979         Y 172     503           675         

15-Feb Sat 26         821            847         Y 213     509           722         
22-Feb Sat -       -             -         127     556           683         
1-Mar Sat 140       1,178         1,318      Y 211     559           770         
8-Mar Sat 172       934            1,105      Y 349     662           1,010      

15-Mar Sat 205       981            1,186      Y 525     525         
22-Mar Sat 177       909            1,087      Y 326     631           957         
29-Mar Sat 78         110            189         185     500           685         
5-Apr Sat 196       883            1,079      Y 298     463           761         
12-Apr Sat -         131     425           556         

29



Appendix H:

Lounge and 19th Hole Daily Receipts by Day of the Week

Lounge 19th Hole

Date

(2014)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total 

Sales 

Live

Music 

(Y/N)

 Food 

Sales 

 Beverage 

Sales 

 Total

Sales 

Live 

Music 

(Y/N)

19-Apr Sat 290       1,540         1,830      Y 71       245           316         
26-Apr Sat 106       852            958         Y
3-May Sat 29         397            426         Y 69       363           431         

10-May Sat 112       761            873         Y 224     437           662         
17-May Sat 26         590            617         Y 158     229           387         
24-May Sat 118       730            848         Y 245     301           545         
31-May Sat 51         635            686         Y 88       211           299         
7-Jun Sat 34         374            408         Y 185     432           617         

14-Jun Sat 12         237            249         Y 164     388           552         
21-Jun Sat 98         534            632         Y 110     265           375         
28-Jun Sat 76         438            514         Y -          
5-Jul Sat 113       344            457         Y 81       148           230         
12-Jul Sat 100       405            505         Y 200     203           402         
19-Jul Sat 152       760            912         Y 86       245           331         
26-Jul Sat 160       720            880         Y 185     243           428         

Monthly Averages (Saturdays)
Feb 55         841            896         204     540           744         
Mar 154       823            977         319     470           790         
Apr 198       1,092         1,289      166     378           544         
May 67         623            690         157     308           465         
Jun 55         396            451         153     361           514         
Jul 131       557            689         138     210           348         

30



Appendix I:

Employee Discount Meal Program

Average Menu cost of employee meal 10.06        

Percentage employee paid for meal 0.40          

Lounge 

Emp. 

Meal 

Receipts

19th Hole

Emp. Meal 

Receipts

Total F&B

Emp. Meal 

Receipts

Menu 

Price of 

Emp. 

Meals

 Cost to 

BBRD 

June '15 49             603           651           1,516        914              

July '15 53             661           714           1,664        1,003           

Aug '15 90             531           621           1,336        805              

Sep '15 45             642           687           1,615        973              

Oct '15 64             595           659           1,498        902              

Nov '15 75             384           459           966           582              

Dec '15 82             421           502           1,058        638              

Jan '16 98             401           498           1,008        608              

Feb '16 60             432           492           1,086        655              

Mar '16 94             492           586           1,237        745              

Apr '16 87             541           628           1,362        821              

May '16 101          472           573           1,187        715              

Totals 897          6,174        7,071        9,360           

Monthly Average 780              

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

June
'15

July
'15

Aug
'15

Sep
'15

Oct
'15

Nov
'15

Dec
'15

Jan
'16

Feb
'16

Mar
'16

Apr
'16

May
'16

Cost of Employee Meal Discount 

31



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    F

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  FY18 Budget Preparation Calendar  

 

Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 

 

Requested Action: Approval of Proposed FY18 Budget Calendar 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

Per the BBRD Policy Manual and recent BOT preferences, the FY18 Working Draft Proposed 

Budget is required to be provided to the BOT, Advisory Committees and public (via website and 

hard copies within BBRD offices) no later than 01Mar17.   

 

The attached schedule complies with this requirement and is essentially the same as the one used 

for the FY17 Proposed Budget. Of note, Trustees, advisory committees and residents have until 

16Dec16 to submit R&M/Capital ideas for the FY18-22 Five-Year Financial Model & Capital 

Improvement Program (5yrFM&CIP) (06Jan17 distribution of the 5yrFM&CIP to BOT, 

Facilities Planning Advisory Committee, Finance Advisory Committee and posting on 

www.bbrd.org) 

 

Staff recommends the BOT approve staff proceeding with the proposed FY18 Budget Preparation 

Calendar. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  Proposed FY18 Budget Calendar 

Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



FY18 (01Oct17 - 30Sep18) Proposed Budget Preparation Calendar

Task # Description Due

Date

1

BOT approves FY18 Budget Prep. Calendar (workshops and 

public hearing dates to set later). 9-Sep

2 Budget prep. Forms developed by Comm. Mgr. Oct-Nov

3

Management Team Budget Preparation Kick-off Meeting (staff 

only) 5-Dec

4

Trustees, advisory groups, residents & Department Managers 

individually develop and submit list of CIP (Capital Improvement 

Plan) ideas for FY18-22 to the Comm. Mgr. 28Nov-16Dec

5 BBRD staff develops cost proposals for non-staff CIP ideas 12Dec-6Jan

6

FY18-22 Five Year Financial Model and CIP (5yrFM&CIP) finalized 

by Comm. Mgr. and Finance Mgr. and distributed to BOT, 

Finance Comm. & Facilities Comm. 6-Jan

7

Department Managers’ FY18 narrative information (dept. 

description, goals, objectives and perf. measures) due to 

Community Manager 12Dec-6Jan

8

Dept. Mgrs. prepare FY17 year-end est.'s, FY18 projected 

revenues, and FY18 requested expenditures 3Jan-26Jan

9

Finance Comm. & Facilities Comm. Individually review 

5yrFM&CIP and recommendations forwarded to BOT 09Jan-20Jan

10 BOT FY18-22 5yrFM&CIP workshop 26-Jan

11

Dept. Mgrs.’ FY17 year-end est.'s, FY18 projected revenues, and 

FY18 requested expenditures reviewed by Comm. Mgr. and Fin. 

Mgr. 30Jan-01Feb

12

Additional meetings between Dept. Mgrs. and Comm. Mgr. (and 

Fin. Mgr.), if needed.  02Feb-10Feb

13 Comm. Mgr. balances FY18 revenues and expenditures 13-Feb

14 Final drafting of FY18 Working Draft Proposed Budget (WDPB). 13Feb-19Feb

15 Final editing, printing and assembly of FY18 WDPB. 20Feb-28Feb

16

Prior fiscal year Financial Statement and FY18 WDPB submitted 

to Trustees, Finance Comm. & Facilities Comm.  Public inspection 

copies placed in BBRD offices and electronic copy placed 

BBRD.org 1-Mar

8/31/2016 3:04 PM



FY18 (01Oct17 - 30Sep18) Proposed Budget Preparation Calendar

17

Finance Comm. & Facilities Comm. Individually review FY18 

WDPB and recommendations forwarded to BOT March

18 BOT Budget workshops as established by BOT Apr-May

19

Publish prior fiscal year Financial Statement in generally 

circulated newspaper within Brevard County. 24Apr-28Apr

20

BOT adopt proposed draft (line-item budget) for mail out to 

property owner of record and set Public Hearing date (must be 

21 days after notice is published). 23-May

21

Publish notice of Public Hearing in newspaper of general 

circulation (must be 21 days prior to hearing).  Mail proposed 

budget (line-items), proposed assessment rate, and prior year 

financial statements to all property owners of record. 29-May

22

Public Hearing, for community input, on proposed budget and 

proposed assessment.  BOT will consider two resolutions: one to 

adopt the FY18 Budget and one to set the assessment rate. 27-Jun

Shaded cells indicate public meetings/workshops

8/31/2016 3:04 PM



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda  

Section 9 

Item No. G   

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject: Violations Committee Member Re-appointments  

 

Dept/Office: Resident Relations/DOR Enforcement 

 

Requested Action: To reappoint Violations Committee member, John Atta whose term ends on 

September 12, 2016 

 

Summary Explanation and Background:   

Resolution 2008-1 Section 3 - Violations Committee (d) The Board shall appoint the members of 

the Violations Committee and the appointments shall be made for a term of three years.  

Resolution 2010-18 amending Resolution 2008-1 Section 3(f) A member of the Violations 

Committee may be reappointed upon approval of the Board of Trustees. 

 

Exhibits Attached: Resolution 2010-18, Current list of Violations Committee members, 

contacts, reappointment and expiration schedule. 

Contact: Susan Cuddie, Resident Relations Manager 

Fiscal Impact:  N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community Manager’s Approval: 



 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 M. Joy Liddy, Chair 

412 Papaya Circle 

Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 

sunshinerents@gmail.com 

664-8470 home - 664-4411wk  
Appoint Date:  2/8/06  

Reappointed retro 2/8/09  

2nd term ends 2/8/12 

3
rd

 term ends 2/8/15 

4
th

 term ends 2/8/18 
 

 John Atta, 2
nd

 Vice Chair 

 1213 Apache Drive 

 Barefoot Bay, FL  32976  

 jjatta84@att.net 

 664-5021 home 
 Appoint Date:  9/12/07  

 2nd term 9/12/10 ends 9/12/13 

 3
rd

 term 9/12/13 ends 9/12/16 
 

 Arlene Maguire 

712 Amaryllis Drive 

Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 

arlenejm@yahoo.com 

663-1617 home 

828-301-3483 

Appoint Date:  10/11/06  

Reappointed retro 10/11/09  

2nd term ends 10/11/12 

3
rd

 term ends 10/11/15 

4
th

 term ends 10/11/18 
 

 Mary Firlein  

639 Marlin Circle 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

MaryDFirlein@hotmail.com 

663-3326 home 

Appoint Date:  4/13/05 

Reappointed retro 4/13/08  

1st term ends 4/13/11 

Reappointed 4/8/11  

2
nd

 term ends 4/8/14 

3
rd

 term ends 5/9/17 

 

 

 

 Albert O. Grunow, Vice Chair 

484 Marlin Circle 

Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 

AlGrunow@aol.com 

 228-3000 c. 321-544-6061 

Appoint Date: Alternate– 6/23/15 

1st term ends 6/23/18 

 

 Ed Dunham “Alternate” 

843 Hyacinth Circle 

Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 

(no email) 

772-388-7055 

Appoint Date: 7/28/15  

1st term ends: 7/28/18 

 

  Hurrol Brinker “Alternate” 

554 Tarpon Drive 

Barefoot Bay, FL  32976 

EMAIL Address 

      321-312-8940 

Appoint Date: 8/28/15 

1st term ends: 8/28/18 

 
 

 Joe Klosky, Trustee, DOR Enforcement 

Liaison ARCC Chairperson  

 JKlosky@bbrd.org – 664-3324 

 Sue Cuddie, Resident Relations Mgr.  

  SusanCuddie@bbrd.org  664-4839 

 Thomas O’Donnell, Officer  
 Todonnell@bbrd.org  664-4722 

 Rich Armington, Officer  
RichArmington@bbrd.org 664-4722 

 Thelma Gruseck, Officer/Admin. Clerk  

 DOR/ARCC Recording Secretary  

 ThelmaGruseck@bbrd.org 664-4722 

 Matt Goetz, Property Services – 

Recording 

      MattGoetz@bbrd.org 664-2063  

 

 

mailto:sunshinerents@gmail.com
mailto:jatta84@att.net
mailto:arlenejm@yahoo.com
mailto:MaryDFirlein@hotmail.com
mailto:AlGrunow@aol.com
mailto:petedotdodge@yahoo.com
mailto:JKlosky@bbrd.org
mailto:SusanCuddie@bbrd.org
mailto:Todonnell@bbrd.org
mailto:RichArmington@bbrd.org
mailto:ThelmaGruseck@bbrd.org
mailto:MattGoetz@bbrd.org


Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    H

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Baenziger Report Discussion  

 

Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 

 

Requested Action: Discussion and Direction to Staff 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

Trustee Cavaliere requested this item be placed on the agenda for discussion purposes 

regarding the governance of BBRD (role of the Community Manager, Trustees and 

Advisory Committees). 

 

The Baenziger report, 2015 BBRD-HOA survey and 2016 HOA survey are scheduled to 

be discussed by the BOT in a workshop (date to be determined). 

 

Staff requests direction regarding this issue. 

 

 
Exhibits Attached:  Baenziger Report 

Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 













































































Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    I

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Adoption of Revised Policy Manual 

 

Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 

 

Requested Action: Adoption of Policy Manual as Attached 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

Staff submitted the draft revised Policy Manual to the BOT with a host of proposed revisions.  

The BOT reviewed the document on 28Jul16 and 30Aug16 with a consensus to bring the revised 

Policy Manual to a BOT meeting for adoption:  Areas amended include: 

 

General Operating Policy 

 Travel Policy 

 

General Financial Policies 

 Accounts Payable 

 Inventories 

 Investment Policy 

 Long-term Debt Note Payable 

 Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing 

 Exception to Competition 

 Purchase from State Contract 

 Purchase of Services from a Goods and Sole Source Provider 

 

General Rules Applicable to District Facilities 

 Definitions 

 General Rules 

 Identification Badges and Dress 

 Membership 

 Games/Meeting Rooms 

 Swimming Pools 

 Tennis Courts 

 Golf 

 Beach 

 RV Lots 

 Fee Schedule 

 Guidelines for Registering as a Club or Organization and Use of District Facilities 

 

Public Records Request Policy 

 Copies and Fees 

 

Staff recommends the BOT approve the resolution adoption revisions to the BBRD Policy 

Manual as attached. 
Exhibits Attached:  Revised Policy Manual and Resolution 



Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2016-_____

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT;
PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF VARIOUS
COMPREHENSIVE REVISIONS TO THE POLICY
MANUAL ADOPTED MAY 8, 2009, AS
SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED THROUGH FEBRUARY
13, 2015; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has previously adopted Resolution
2009-05 establishing a Policy Manual for the residents of Barefoot Bay in relation
to the operation of the Recreational Facilities of Barefoot Bay; and

WHEREAS, the Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees has
discussed suggested comprehensive revisions to the above referenced
document, as amended through February 13, 2015, at a public workshops on
July 20, 2016 and August 30, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District is
desirous of amending the Policy Manual previously adopted and revised
consistent with the revised version attached and incorporated hereto as “Exhibit
A;”

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD
COUNTY, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The Policy Manual for Barefoot Bay Recreation District is
hereby amended in accordance with Exhibit “A” attached and specifically
incorporated hereto this Resolution.

Section 2: If any portion, clause, phrase, sentence or classification of this
resolution is held or declared to be either unconstitutional, invalid, inapplicable,
inoperative or void, then such declaration shall not be construed to affect other
portions of the resolution; it is hereby declared to be the expressed opinion of the
Trustees of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District that any such unconstitutional,
invalid, inapplicable, inoperative or void portion or portions of this resolution did
not induce its passage, and that without the inclusion of any such portion or
portions of this resolution, the Trustees would have enacted the valid
constitutional portions thereof.



# 1703022 v1

Section 3. Conflict with other Provisions.

All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and
all resolutions or parts or resolutions not in conflict herewith are hereby continued
in full force and effect.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective
immediately.

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee
___________________. The motion was seconded by Trustee
________________and, upon being put to a vote, that vote was as
follows:

Chairman, Joseph Klosky ______
Trustee Frank Cavaliere ______
Trustee, Brian Lavier ______
Trustee Lee Wright ______
Trustee, Steve Diana ______

The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Done, Ordered,
and Adopted this 9th day of September, 2016.

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

By:_____________________________________
JOSEPH KLOSKY
CHAIRMAN

ATTEST: By: __________________________________
STEVE DIANA
SECRETARY



 

 

  
 Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
 Policy Manual 

  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Includes Revisions Adopted by BOT on 10Jun16 
 
   



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District     
  Policy Manual 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

` 

i 

 

PURPOSE _____________________________________________________________________      

Part One.  General Operating Policy ________________________________________ Part 1 -1 

1.0 EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING __________________________________________ Part 1-1 

1.1 TRAVEL POLICY _________________________________________________________ Part 1-1 

1.2 REPORTS REQUESTED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES _________________________ Part 1-2222 

1.3 JOB INSTRUCTION TRAINING MANUAL ___________________________________ Part 1-2222 

Part Two.   General Financial Policies _______________________________________ Part 2-1 

2.0 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE _____________________________________________________ Part 2-1 
Sales Tax __________________________________________________________________________ Part 2-1 

2.1 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE __________________________________________________ Part 2-1 

2.2 ASSESSMENT FEE COLLECTION POLICY _______________________________________ Part 2-1 

2.3 CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY _______________________________________________ Part 2-1 

2.4 PAYROLL ____________________________________________________________ Part 2-2222 

2.5 RETIREMENT PLAN ___________________________________________________ Part 2-2222 

2.6 INVENTORIES ________________________________________________________ Part 2-2222 

2.7 FIXED ASSETS ________________________________________________________ Part 2-2222 

2.8 YEARLY BUDGET SCHEDULE AND LEVY OF ASSESSMENTS _____________________ Part 2-3333 
Fiscal Year and Budget Process _____________________________________________________ Part 2-3333 

2.9 ESTABLISHING A NEW FUND ____________________________________________ Part 2-4444 
Charter Reference _______________________________________________________________ Part 2-4444 
Fund Identification and Interaction with Other Funds ___________________________________ Part 2-4444 

2.10 Budget Amendments and Transfer  _____________________________________ Part 2-4444 
Budget Amendments _____________________________________________________________ Part 2-4444 
Budget Transfers ________________________________________________________________ Part 2-4444 

2.11 CHART OF ACCOUNTS – GENERAL LEDGER ACCOUNT STRUCTURE _____________ Part 2-5555 

2.12 BANK ACCOUNTS ____________________________________________________ Part 2-5555 
Investment Policy________________________________________________________________ Part 2-6666 

2.13 LONG TERM DEBT-NOTES PAYABLE _____________________________________ Part 2-6666 
Primary Mortgage Instrument _____________________________________________________ Part 2-6666 
Irrigation Loan (Irrigation System) __________________________________________________ Part 2-7777 
Annual Debt Payment ____________________________________________________________ Part 2-7777 

2.14 PROCUREMENT POLICY _______________________________________________ Part 2-8888 
Ethical Standards and Their Application to Procurement ________________________________ Part 2-8888 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District     
  Policy Manual 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

` 

ii 

Payment of Sales Tax _____________________________________________________________ Part 2-8888 
Capital Budget Expenditures _______________________________________________________ Part 2-8888 
General Purchasing Requirements __________________________________________________ Part 2-9999 
Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing __________________________________________ Part 2-9999 
Blanket Purchase Orders __________________________________________________________ Part 2-9999 
Exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders ________________________________________ Part 2-10101010 
Exceptions to Competition ____________________________________________________ Part 2-10101010 
Emergency Purchases ________________________________________________________ Part 2-10101010 
Purchases from Purchasing agreements of Special Districts, Municipalities, or Counties (Piggybacking) _____
 ___________________________________________________________________________ Part 10101010 
Emergency Payment _________________________________________________________ Part 2-11111110 
Purchase of Services From a Goods and Sole Source Provider ________________________ Part 2-11111111 
Awards Quotes/Bids under $50,000 _____________________________________________ Part 2-11111111 
Tie Bids ____________________________________________________________________ Part 2-11111111 
Waiver of Irregularities _______________________________________________________ Part 2-11111111 
Signatures on Contracts _______________________________________________________ Part 2-11111111 
Change Orders or Amendments ________________________________________________ Part 2-12121211 
Purchase of Computer, Related Equipment and Supplies ____________________________ Part 2-12121212 
Receiving and Approving Goods and Services _____________________________________ Part 2-12121212 
Services Performed on BBRD Property ___________________________________________ Part 2-12121212 
Hiring or Use of Employment Service Workers-Temporary Employees _________________ Part 2-13131313 
Unacceptable Purchasing Practices _____________________________________________ Part 2-13131313 

2.15 FORMAL SEALED BIDS (FOR PURCHASES OF $50,000 OR MORE) __________ Part 2-14141414 
Competitive Procurements Process For Formal Bids ________________________________ Part 2-14141414 
Specific Procedures for Formal Sealed Bids/Quotes ________________________________ Part 2-14141414 

Award of Bids_____________________________________________________________ Part 2-14141414 
Waiver of Irregularities _______________________________________________________ Part 2-15151515 
Evaluation Committee ________________________________________________________ Part 2-15151515 
Vendor Complaints & Disputes (Protests) ________________________________________ Part 2-17171717 

PART THREE.  GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITES ______________ Part 3-1 

3.0 GENERAL ______________________________________________________________ Part 3-1 
Definitions: ________________________________________________________________________ Part 3-1 
Objective ______________________________________________________________________ Part 3-2222 
Management ___________________________________________________________________ Part 3-2222 
General Rules ___________________________________________________________________ Part 3-3333 
Identification Badges and Dress ____________________________________________________ Part 3-6665 

3.1 MEMBERSHIP ________________________________________________________ Part 3-6666 
Types of Membership ____________________________________________________________ Part 3-6666 

Social memberships: ___________________________________________________________ Part 3-6666 
Family Social Membership: ______________________________________________________ Part 3-7776 
Golf Membership: _____________________________________________________________ Part 3-7776 

Applications for Social and Family Social Membership: __________________________________ Part 3-8888 
Fees and Dues __________________________________________________________________ Part 3-8888 
Property Damage ________________________________________________________________ Part 3-9999 

3.2  RULES FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICT FACILITIES __________________________ Part 3-10101010 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District     
  Policy Manual 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

` 

iii 

General ____________________________________________________________________ Part 3-10101010 
Use of Buildings or Amenities __________________________________________________ Part 3-10101010 
Game/Meeting Rooms _______________________________________________________ Part 3-11111111 
Swimming Pools _____________________________________________________________ Part 3-12121212 
Shuffle Board-Bocce- Lawn bowling – Horseshoes and Basketball _____________________ Part 3-13131312 
Lounge ____________________________________________________________________ Part 3-13131313 
Tennis Courts  ______________________________________________________________ Part 3-13131313 
Softball Field Rules and Regulations _____________________________________________ Part 3-13131313 

Golf _______________________________________________________________ Part 3-13131313 
Beach  _____________________________________________________________________ Part 3-14141414 
Fishing Pier _________________________________________________________________ Part 3-14141414 
RV Lots ____________________________________________________________________ Part 3-15151515 
Temporary Parking __________________________________________________________ Part 3-16161615 

3.3 FEE SCHEDULE ________________________________________________ Part 3-16161616 
Residents  __________________________________________________________________ Part 3-16161616 
Fees Applicable to Renters/Tenants _____________________________________________ Part 3-17171716 
Badges ____________________________________________________________________ Part 3-17171717 
Guest Passes/Temporary Social Membership _____________________________________ Part 3-17171717 
Additional Fees _____________________________________________________________ Part 3-18181818 

3.4  Guidelines for Registering as a Club or Organization  and Use of District Facilities __ Part 3-
21212121 

Registration of Clubs/Organizations/Private Parties ________________________________ Part 3-21212121 
Use of District Facilities _______________________________________________________ Part 3-21212121 
Non-Discrimination Policy _____________________________________________________ Part 3-22222222 
Use of Alcoholic Beverages ____________________________________________________ Part 3-22222222 
Scheduling and Set-Up ________________________________________________________ Part 3-22222222 
Use of District Facilities Where Fees Are Charged __________________________________ Part 3-23232323 
Use of Facilities for Gambling and Games of Chance ________________________________ Part 3-23232323 
Use of Kitchen Facilities/Bringing in Incidental Food ________________________________ Part 3-23232323 
Payment of Guest Fees _______________________________________________________ Part 3-24242424 

3.5 Guidelines for Gift and or Memorials for the Barefoot Bay Recreation District _____ Part 3-
25252525 

Part 4.  Public Records Request Policy ________________________________________ Part 4-1 

4.0 PURPOSE. ___________________________________________________________ Part 4-1 

4.1 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST PROCEDURE. __________________________________ Part 4-1 
A.  Intake of Request. _____________________________________________________________ Part 4-1 
B.  Notification and Response. ___________________________________________________ Part 4-2222 
C.  Public Record Inspections. ____________________________________________________ Part 4-2222 

4.2   REQUESTS FOR VOLUMINOUS RECORDS REQUIRING EXTENSIVE STAFF  TIME/EXTENSIVE 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES. ___________________________________ Part 4-3333 

4.3 COPIES AND FEES._________________________________________________________ Part 4-4444 

Endnotes ____________________________________________________________________ 1 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District vi 
Policy Manual 

PURPOSE 

 

 

PURPOSE 
 
The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual has been developed to provide the Board 
of Trustees and employees of the District with assistance in effectively performing their 
responsibilities by stating the policies of the District and the Financial Department and the 
ways and means of accomplishing its goals. 
 
This Policy Manual was established based on the criteria identified by applicable state law and 
statutes, administrative code and Uniform Accounting System Manual and recommendations 
from the District's financial auditors. 
 
The reasons for developing a Policy Manual include: 
1. Written policies promote teamwork. 
2. Written policies promote clarity, consistency and continuity of performance. 
3. Written policies provide useful information for training programs and a means of 

comparing competent practice to the written approved descriptions of policies. 
4. The written manual is a central source of adding, changing or deleting policy.  
5. Written policies promote proper delegation of authority. 
6. Using a policy manual supports effective time management for supervisors to provide 

for planning and departmental development functions. 
7. Policy manuals save supervisory time spent in answering repetitive questions.  
8. Policy manuals serve as a source document for inspection by approval agencies. 
 
The Board of Trustees will modify and adopt changes to the Policy Manual as needed to best 
serve the operation and intent of the Recreation District and will conduct a full review as 
needed to address any recommended changes to the entire document.1   Revised Policy 
Manuals will replace the outdated policy manuals (if changes are made) in all Departments as 
soon as possible after adoption.  The Department Managers will be responsible for replacing 
the Policy Manuals and the necessary review and training required by the updates.  The 
Policy Manual will be updated and printed though the Administration Department of the 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District. 
 
To the extent that these policies reference any specific statute, ordinance, law or rule, the 
Board specifically intends that these policies shall comport with and/or incorporate any 
amendments to such statute, ordinance, law, or rule subsequent www.myflorida.com is the 
website for easy access to Florida Statutes. As the statute(s) change(s), this policy manual 
will be modified accordingly. 
 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District    Part 1- 
  Policy Manual 

General Operating Policy  
 

` 

1 

Part One.  General Operating Policy 

1.0 EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District recognizes the value of employees, and wishes to acquire 
talented personnel, providing the necessary training to allow employees to advance within the 
organization.  Barefoot Bay Recreation District will hire the most suitable candidate for any 
open position, and employees to learn about the organization and to work as a valued team 
member.    
Standard hiring practice is to perform open recruitment for job openings.  To encourage 
employee personal and professional development growth, the hiring manager may elect to 
use internal recruitment only when the hiring manager and his or her supervisor believes there 
is more than one qualified employee to fill the position. Under special circumstances (key 
critical positions), the Community Manager may authorize promotion or appointment of a 
qualified candidate to a position without using the recruitment process. Upon such 
circumstances a written statement will be place in the employees file explaining why the 
normal process was not used.  
Within budgetary restraints, the District recognizes the importance of professional continuing 
education to maintain and grow skills sets of professional positions. Training will be completed 
in state only.  In the event there is a need for out of state training, the Board will approve out 
of state travel.  2 
 

1.1 TRAVEL POLICY 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District does not recommend the use of personal vehicles for 
business purposes.  Employees will not be reimbursed for mileage when they use their 
personal vehicle for Barefoot Bay Recreation District business.  An exception is made when 1. 
an employee is required to attend a seminar, training or any overnight business travel, or 2. 
An employee is on an official assignment and a Barefoot Bay vehicle is not available, subject 
to prior approval of district management. If necessary, during a declared emergency, district 
management may waive this policy. 3 
 
Per diem and travel expenses of public officers, employees and authorized persons shall be 
reimbursed in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.  Training will be completed 
in state only.  In the event there is a need for out of state training, the Board will approve the 
travel.  4These basic policies apply to all BBRD travel: 
 
a. All travel, if pre-authorized by the Community Manager  
b. Receipts are required for reimbursed expenses 
c. Rates of per diem and subsistence allowance and mileage rate for use of personal 

vehicles is reimbursed in accordance with Sec. 112.061, F.S.  
d. Expense reports that approved by the Department Head and Community Manager are 

reimbursed in a timely manner. 
e. ARCC committee members are reimbursed for travel expenses at a rate of $10.00 per 

house permit in lieu of mileage as provided above.5 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District    Part 1- 
  Policy Manual 

General Operating Policy  
 

` 

2 

e.f. Traveler must elect prior to travel use of per diem or reimbursement for meal expense 
(including up to 15% tip and sales tax). 

1.2 REPORTS REQUESTED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 
The following reports shall be provided by the 15th of each month: 
 
1. A financial report showing the actual expenses and revenues for each month and year 

to date compared to the budget amount for the year for all departments and overall 
district.  

2.  Revenues and Expenditures of any federal, state, or local agency grant funds 
applicable to any budgeted project shall be accounted for as separate line items. 

 

The following report shall be provided at each meeting: 
 
1. A listing of all checks paid by the District from the previous meeting to the current 

report time. The list will include the amount of the check, vendor, and description. 

1.3 JOB INSTRUCTION TRAINING MANUAL 
 
Job Instruction Training Manual will be established and updated by management on an “as 
needed” basis.  Input from the Department Managers and employees will be valuable in 
keeping these documents current and representative of actual procedures.  Attention will be 
focused on best practices as recommended by management, audit recommendations, and 
legal professional recommendations.  Department Managers will be responsible for instruction 
and training on the updated JIT and Procedure Manual. 
  



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

1 

Part Two.   General Financial Policies 
 

2.0 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 
All bills, packing slips, filled purchase orders and applicable paperwork must be turned into accounts 
payable on a daily basis, and all bills must be signed by the department manager or designee. Unsigned 
bills will be returned to the department and payment will be delayed. 

Sales Tax  
 
Sales tax is collected on all taxable items and paid in accordance with Florida Statutes.  This includes, but is not 
limited to, shopping center rentals, pro shop sales, food and beverage sales and resident user fees. 

2.1 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
All receipts are recorded when received and coded to the proper General Ledger accounts.  Bank 
deposits from each location are compiled into one deposit and deposited with the bank of record each 
day.  Customer accounts will be credited with payment receipts by the next business day following the 
receipt of the payment. 

2.2 ASSESSMENT FEE COLLECTION POLICY 
 
Customers delinquent 30 days or more are subject to a monthly $10.00 delinquent fee until their account 
is current. Payments are due on the first day of each month. Accounts are delinquent after 30 days. 
 
When a resident goes 60 days past due, the District mails a demand letter that documents the 
delinquency and notifies the property owner of the District's intent to collect the debt. If there is no 
response to the demand letter, 10 days from the date of the letter, a lien is recorded on the property. The 
District sends a copy of the signed and notarized lien to the resident, both by certified mail and by regular 
mail and the District files the lien with the county. If there is still no response sixty (60) days after the date 
of recording or one year after the delinquent installment first became due (whichever is later), the 
overdue account will be sent to the District's attorney for collection. 
 
In cases where a property owner disputes the District's assertion that an assessment payment is 
delinquent, the District shall reimburse the property owner up to an amount of $50.00 in bank fee charges 
incurred by the owner to obtain bank documentation which affirmatively demonstrates that payment of 
the delinquent assessment was made timely by the owner.  Such reimbursement shall be made only after 
verification of valid payment by the District, and in no instance shall District funds be advanced to an 
owner for such purpose prior to verification of valid payment. 
 
Effective October 1, 2009, the District shall collect its assessment via the uniform method for the levy, 
collection, and enforcement of non-ad valorem assessments pursuant to Sec. 197.3632, Florida Statutes.  
Delinquent accounts as of that date will be processed by the District in the manner provided for above.    

2.3 CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

2 

The appropriate social membership fee plus sales tax is collected from each new owner each time the 
property changes hands, in accordance with the District's General Rules Applicable to District Facilities 
and the Deed of Restrictions.  

2.4 PAYROLL 
 
Payroll is processed on a biweekly schedule. The pay period runs Monday 12:01 AM to Sunday at 11:59 
PM.   
 
All employees must use the accepted method of time keeping for recording time in and out as well as 
sick, vacation, and personal time off.   

2.5 RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

A retirement plan is available for any full time employees who wish to participate. The District will match 
one for one up to 3% of employee‟s deduction of gross wages. 

2.6 INVENTORIES  
 
Monthly a physical inventory is taken of food and beverage supplies, food stock, and pro shop 
merchandise and reconciled to the ledger. 
 
A listing of all equipment for each department, with a purchase price greater than $250 1,000 shall be 
maintained. Each item received is tagged with an all-weather tag. 

2.7 FIXED ASSETS 
 
A listing of all assets with a value of $2,000.00 or more will be maintained, updated, and completed for 
each year by September 30th. Each item received is tagged with an all-weather tag.  Both additions and 
deletions to the asset list require approval by Community Manager.   
 
Surplus or otherwise obsolete tangible personal property owned by the District may be disposed of in any 
manner as provided in Chapter 274 Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by general law.  
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

3 

2.8 YEARLY BUDGET SCHEDULE AND LEVY OF ASSESSMENTS   
 

The audit should be completed according to Florida Statutes.  The yearly budget schedule is prepared in 
accordance with the requirements as provided in Article VI BREVARD COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 84-05 
(The Charter of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District) as excerpted below: 

Fiscal Year and Budget Process  
“The fiscal year of the district shall commence on October 1 of each year and end on September 30 of 
the following year. The trustees shall, on or before April 1 of each year, prepare an annual financial 
statement of income and disbursements during the prior fiscal year. On or before July 1 of each year, the 
trustees shall prepare and adopt an itemized budget showing the amount of money necessary for the 
operation of the district for the next fiscal year and the special assessment to be assessed and collected 
upon improved residential parcels of the district for the next ensuing year. Each year such a financial 
statement shall be published once during the month of April in a newspaper of general circulation within 
the county. A copy of the statement and a copy of the budget shall also be furnished to each owner of an 
improved residential parcel within 30 days after its preparation, and a copy of each shall be made 
available for public inspection at the principal office of the district at reasonable hours." 
 
In order to meet the time frame mandated by the Charter, and the Florida 
Statutes, the Community Manager will begin to hold pre-budget meetings with each department of the 
district in order to have a draft of the proposed budget available for trustee perusal and public meetings. 
The Community Manager shall have a working draft available by April 1 of each year. 

 April 1 Prior fiscal year Financial Statement and working draft of next fiscal year‟s 
Budget to be presented to Trustees. 

 First Week of April First working draft presented to the Trustees 

 Third Week of April Workshop for the Trustees to give their recommendations to the 
Community Manager.   

 Fourth Week of April Publish prior fiscal year Financial Statement in generally circulated 
newspaper within Brevard County. 

 Third week of May Workshop to present proposed draft for mail out to community and hear 
comments from both Trustees and citizens. 

 Regular May Meeting Adopt proposed draft for mail out to property owner of record and set Public 
Hearing date (must be 21 days after notice is published). 

On or before Monday after  Publish notice of Public Hearing in newspaper of general circulation 
 May meeting (must be 21 days prior to hearing).  Mail proposed budget, proposed 

assessment rate, and prior year financial statements to all property owners 
of record. 

 June  20th to June 30th  Time frame for Public Hearing, for community input, on proposed budget, 
proposed assessment that was received in mail.  Board will have to 
consider two resolutions.  One to set the special assessment rate, and one 
to adopt the formal budget. 

 September 15 Deadline to certify the Non-Ad valorem Assessment Roll to Brevard County 
Tax Collector 

 September 30 Current fiscal year ends 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

4 

 October 1 New fiscal year starts 
 

2.9 ESTABLISHING A NEW FUND 
 
It is the policy of the Recreation District to establish a new fund based on the criteria identified by the 
State of Florida in the Uniform Accounting System Manual. The manual recommends that only a 
minimum number of funds consistent with the legal and operational requirements of the District should be 
established. Each new fund adds complexity and costs to the administration of the District‟s financial 
system. A fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity consisting of a self-balancing 
set of accounts segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities in accordance with defined 
regulations, restrictions and limitations. This policy should address the following areas when opening a 
new fund: 

Charter Reference 
The terms of reference are required, giving authority to open a new fund and setting out its purpose, 
manner of operation and peculiarities, if any. 

Fund Identification and Interaction with Other Funds 
The named fund is allocated an identifying number for General Ledger data collection and reporting. 
 
The General Ledger set-up should take cognizance of the relationship of the new fund to existing funds 
and the appropriate codes put in place to facilitate operation. 
 
 

2.10 Budget Amendments and Transfer 6 

Budget Amendments 
Budget amendments that either increase or decrease the amount of a fund or department within the 
General Fund will be recommended by the Finance Manager, approved by the Community Manager and 
authorized by a affirming vote of the Board of Trustees with an accompanying resolution to the budget 
amendment. 
 
The only exception to this policy will be the annual allocation of the employee incentive budget once all 
employees have received their annual evaluations.  This Budget Transfer will be recommended by the 
Finance Manager and approved by the Community Manager.  A copy of said budget amendment will be 
provided electronically to the Trustees on the date of execution. 
 

Budget Transfers 
Budget transfers that do not either increase or decrease the amount of a fund or department within the 
General Fund will be recommended by the Finance Manager and approved by the Community Manager. 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

5 

2.11 CHART OF ACCOUNTS – GENERAL LEDGER ACCOUNT STRUCTURE 
 
Each fund has its own chart of accounts for all transactions relating to:  
 Balance Sheet 
 Revenues 
 Cost of Sales (if applicable)  
 Expenditures /Expenses 
 
The funds and purposes are listed below. The General Fund and the Debt Service Fund consist of 
revenue and expenses for various operations. The other funds listed below are maintained as record-
keeping funds. 
 
                 Description 

 
Purpose 

 
 General Fund Legislative Expenses, includes G/L accounts for Special Reserve, 

Stormwater, Capital, and Shopping Center departments. Revenue received 
as federal, state, or local agency grant funds shall be maintained in a 
separate account within the General Fund. 

 Debt service fund To record deposits and payments to long term debt 
  General Fixed Assets Fund  Used to record capital assets and accumulated     

  depreciation 
 General Long Term Debt Fund    Current balances for Long Term Debt 

    Government Wide Fund Reconciling/conversion entries to Government Wide Statements 
 

 2.12 BANK ACCOUNTS 
 
The District maintains bank accounts necessary to provide for operations.    
 
  Account    G/L Account #  

 
General Fund  001-101000    
 
 Purpose: receipts and expenditures for the General Fund.  
  



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

6 

Investment Policy 
The District has an investment policy whereby the District can invest in various instruments and 
programs. The District currently participates in the State Board Association Pooled Investment Program 
(SBA) The interest earned on the SBA investments is recorded annuallymonthly.  Funds moved out only 
by Board of Trustees resolution. 
 
 SBA Reserve -Emergency ReserveAccount 
  (Purpose:  to reserve money for emergency needs).  
 
 SBA Reserve - Capital ReserveCapital Improvement Account  
  (Purpose: to reserve funds for capital expenditures). 
 
 SBA Debt Service Account 
  (Purpose: to reserve funds for payment of long term debt). 
 
   

2.13 LONG TERM DEBT-NOTES PAYABLE 

Primary Mortgage Instrument 
 
In December, 1996  the Barefoot Bay Recreation District entered in a loan agreement (Obligation No. 18, 
Public Improvement Revenue Bond Series 1996 A) with Barnet Bank for the purchase of property, 
buildings, common grounds, facilities and recreation amenities.  This bonded indebtedness or primary 
loan for the purchase of the above referenced items was in the amount of $8,370,500.00.  The loan is a 
variable interest rate loan and has a swap rate adjustment factor tied to bond prices and inflationary 
indexes.  As a result, the amount of interest charged on the loan may vary from year to year.  Payments 
are due annually to 2017.  Copies of the original loan documents shall be maintained in safety deposit 
box located at the district‟s bank of record. The terms of loan established a principal and interest payment 
based on the following payment schedule: 
 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
REVISED AMORITIZATION 
$8,370,500.00 
       Principal         Outstanding 
  Year  Payment  Payment      Balance 
 1/31/1997      0   $8,370,500.00  
 1/30/1998      1 $223,904.00  $8,146,596.00 
 1/31/1999                2 $237,674.00  $7,908,922.00 
 1/31/2000      3 $252,292.00  $7,656,630.00 
 1/31/2001      4 $267,807.00  $7,388,823.00 
 1/31/2002      5 $284,277.00  $7,104,546.00 
 1/31/2003      6 $301,761.00  $6,802,785.00 
 1/30/2004       7 $320,318.00  $6,482,467.00 
 1/31/2005      8 $340,018.00  $6,142,449.00 
 1/31/2006      9 $360,930.00  $5,781,519.00 
 1/31/2007     10 $383,126.00  $5,398,393.00 
 1/31/2008     11 $406,689.00  $4,991,704.00 
 1/31/2009     12 $431,700.00  $4,560,004.00 
 1/29/2010     13 $458,250.00  $4,101,754.00 
 1/31/2011     14 $486,432.00  $3,615,322.00 
 1/31/2012     15 $516,348.00  $3,098,974.00 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

7 

 1/31/2013     16 $548,103.00  $2,550,871.00 
 1/31/2014     17 $581,811.00  $1,969,060.00 
 1/30/2015     18 $617,593.00  $1,351,467.00    
 1/29/2016     19 $655,574.00      $695,893.00  
 1/31/2017     20 $695,893.00            $0.00 

 

Irrigation Loan (Irrigation System) 
 
A second long term debt instrument-line was entered into on September 7, 2001  by the Barefoot Bay 
Recreation District with Bank of America Inc. (Obligation No. 265, Public Improvement Revenue Bond 
Payable Series 2001.  The principal amount borrowed was $500,000 and was used for the installation of 
an irrigation system for the Golf Course.  Annual installments are due through December, 2016.  The 
payment schedule is established as follows: 
 
                            Bank of America  $500,000 

 
Year               Amount 

 2002           $16,286.93 
 2003      24,429.53 
 2004     25,523.60 
 2005      26,788.16 
 2006     28,053.01 
  2007  29,377.59 
  2008 30,719.48 
   2009 32,215.18 
   2010 33,736.28 
   2011 35,329.19 
   2012 36,969.19 
   2013 38,742.89 
   2014 40,572.21 
   2015 42,487.90 
   2016 58,768.86 

Annual Debt Payment 
 

The Long Term Debt is paid once per year. Payment on the original loan is due on January 31 annually 
and payment on the $500,000 credit line is due on December 30 annually.  
 
 
 
  



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

8 

2.14 PROCUREMENT POLICY 

Ethical Standards and Their Application to Procurement 
No officer or employee of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District shall have any financial interest in the 
profits of any contract, service, or other work performed for BBRD; nor shall an officer or employee 
personally profit directly or indirectly from any contract, purchase, sale, or service between BBRD or any 
person or company, nor personally or as an agent provide any surety bail or bond required by law or 
subject to approval by the Board of Trustees. No officer or employee shall accept any free or preferred 
service, benefits, or concessions directly or indirectly, from any person or company doing business with, 
or soliciting business from BBRD. 

Payment of Sales Tax 
In accordance with State law, Barefoot Bay Recreation District is exempt from paying sales tax on 
purchases.  A copy of the District‟s sales tax exemption certificate shall be maintained and available at 
the administrative offices. 

Capital Budget Expenditures 
The Board of Trustees and Community Manager must approve all Capital budget purchases.  Capital 
budget purchases or outlays are for the acquisition of or addition to fixed assets.  They generally add 
value to the land or building, have a useful life of more than one year, are of a non-consumable nature, 
and must exceed $5,000.007 in value.   
 
Capital Budget expenditures are classified as: 
 
1. Land: including land acquisition cost, easements, and/or rights of way. 
 
2. Buildings 
 
3. Improvements other than buildings: including, but not limited to, roads, bridges,  curbs and 

gutters, docks, wharves, fences, landscaping, lighting systems, parking areas, storm drains, and 
athletic fields. 

 
4. Machinery and equipment: includes motor vehicles, heavy equipment, office furniture and 

equipment 
 
5. Construction in progress:  used to account for undistributed work in progress on  construction 

projects. 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

9 

General Purchasing Requirements 
Community Manager shall ensure that the funds are sufficient and authorized for all expenditures.   Each 
department/area of operation purchases supplies and inventory items according to the department's 
budget plan for the fiscal year. This policy has been deemed the most cost-effective, efficient approach to 
purchasing. The purchase of office supplies shall be coordinated through the community manager‟s 
office.  The department heads/managers shall be responsible for staying within their budget as adopted 
by the Board of Trustees.  
 

 Department    Department Head or Designee 
 
 Administration   Community Manager or Designee 
 
The Community Manager is authorized to approve budgeted expenditures of up to $7,500.00 without 
Board authorization.  All expenditures of $7,500.008 or more shall be authorized by the Board of Trustees 
and have two authorized signatures on ANY check.  

Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing  
The primary method of purchasing a product is through a purchase order. A purchase order ensures that 
proper procedures and approvals have been obtained prior to placing the order for the product. Certain 
items do not require a purchase order and are listed under exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders. 
 
1. For purchases of up to $999.999, a purchase order and competitive pricing is not required; 

however, obtaining quotations is recommended whenever practical.  
 
2. For purchases of $1,000.00 to $19,999.99 10  informal quotes are required from at least two 

sources. A "No Bid" does not constitute a quote. These quotations should be submitted in writing, 
and kept on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
3. For purchases in the amount of $20,000.00 to $49,999.9911 written, signed bids are required from 

at least three sources.  A “No Bid” does not constitute a bid.  These bids should be kept on file in 
the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
4. For all purchases in the amount of $50,00012 or more, sealed bids are required and the Request 

for Proposal or Invitation to Bid Process must be followed (see Section 2.14).   
 
If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community Manager 
may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager‟s recommendation and use of 
Exception to Competition, #7 8 “Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the 
Community Manager.”  When this exception to competition (a second quote cannot be found in a 
reasonable time) is used, the Community Manager shall notify the Board of Trustees at the next regularly 
scheduled Board meeting and notate the date, vendor and price on an “Exception to Competition log” as 
maintained by the District Clerk.13 

Blanket Purchase Orders 
Blanket purchase orders may be used for small repetitive specified goods or services from the same 
vendor that requires numerous orders / shipments over specified periods of time. The use of blanket 
purchase orders to by-pass the competitive pricing or bid policies is not allowed. 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

10 

Exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders 
Some recurring obligations, which are exempt from the competitive bidding process and the purchasing 
approval process, are as follows: 
 
 Utilities 
 Travel and Training (reimbursements are handled through A/P) 
 Insurance Premiums 
 Debt Service Costs 
 Certain refunds and reimbursements 
 Inventory purchases for retail sale 14 
 
Approval and payments for these items will be processed using the Monthly invoices as back up. These 
items require the approval of the Community Manager or Designee and require separate verification that 
funds are budgeted and available before the expenditure can be made. If funds are not available, a 
budget transfer shall be made upon approval of the Board of Trustees.  

Exceptions to Competition 
The competitive procurement process may be waived: 
 
1. In defined emergencies, documented in accordance with the Emergency Purchases section of 

these policies. 
2. For sole source procurements documented and approved in accordance with the Sole Source 

Purchases section of these policies. 
3. For seminars registrations and professional membership dues and fees. 
4. For purchase of local utility services for BBRD owned or operated facilities. 
5. Postage expense, when billed by a vendor at the currently prevailing postage rates established by 

the U.S. Postal Service. 
6. Repair or services for proprietary equipment, software, hardware, etc. 
7. Repairs that require action within 72 hours.15  
8. Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager. 

Emergency Purchases 
In cases of a declared emergency which require the immediate purchase of supplies or contractual 
services, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures. 
 
In the event of the need to repair existing infrastructure that impacts the health welfare and safety of 
residents, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures.  The Community Manager 
shall place the contract for repairs on the next regularly scheduled BOT meeting agenda for 
confirmation.16 

Purchases from Purchasing agreements of Special Districts, Municipalities, or Counties 
(Piggybacking)17 

District purchases based on purchasing agreements from other Special Districts, Municipalities, or 
Counties (Piggybacking) per Sec. 189.4221 F.S. will be allowed. 
 

Purchases from State Contract 

District purchases based on the use of state contracts will be allowed. 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

11 

Emergency Payment 
In a declared emergency either the Community Manager and one Trustee, or two Trustees, are required 
to sign checks over $7,50018 to pay for needed purchases, supplies or contracted services.  19 

Purchase of Services From a Goods and Sole Source Provider 
Sole source is an award of contract to the only known source for the required goods or services.  A sole 
source purchase cannot be justified on the basis of quality or price, as quality can be a subjective 
evaluation based on individual opinion, and price considerations must be evaluated by competitive 
bidding. If there is more than one product or service that will perform essentially the same functions under 
essentially the same conditions as the requested product or service, a sole source is deemed not to exist.  
 
Some of the factors considered to qualify as a sole source are: 

1. The stated vendor is the only producer of the product or service, and no commercial substitute is 
available. 

2. The information or data is proprietary.  
3. The maintenance or repair requires specialized equipment or expertise, which is available only 

from the original vendor, or vendor representative.  
3.4. If the District currently has a continuing service contract with the vendor. 

 
Sole source items must be justified and contain the following information: 

1. How was a determination made, that the goods or services being purchased, are only available 
from one source.  

2. What contacts, (if any), were made in an attempt to identify alternate sources. 
3. What is the rationale that the goods or services being purchased cannot be substituted with 

similar goods or services from other sources. 

Awards Quotes/Bids under $50,00020 
Award recommendations exceeding $7,500.00 21  will be submitted by the Community Manager for 
approval by the Board of Trustees, unless previously exempted or approved. 
 
Suppliers shall be selected based on total cost, which considers delivery, freight costs, prices, quality, life 
cycles costs, warranty, services, terms and conditions.  Awards to other than the low bidder, shall be 
documented to show the rationale for rejection (i.e. does not meet specifications, delivery and past 
performance problems). 

Tie Bids 
Award of all tie quotes/bids shall be made by the District in accordance with Sec. 287.087, F.S., which 
allows a firm certified as a Drug-Free Workplace to have preference. In the event that both or neither firm 
is a Drug-Free Workplace, tie quote/bids may be awarded by lot. 

Waiver of Irregularities 
The Board of Trustees shall have the authority to waive irregularities in any proposal, and/or bid.  

Signatures on Contracts  
The Community Manager must execute all contracts for on-going and/or routine purchases of goods and 
services.   
 
The Board of Trustees must approve and the Chair of the Board must execute contracts that exceed one 
year (1) in duration, including renewal term or that exceed $7,500 in value.  



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

12 

Change Orders or Amendments 
Change order means changes, due to unanticipated conditions or developments, made to a contract, 
which do not substantially alter the character of the work contracted for and which do not vary so 
substantially from the original specifications as to constitute a new undertaking. Such changes must be 
reasonably and conscientiously viewed as being in fulfillment of the original scope of the contract. 
Further, such changes when viewed against the background of the work described in the contract and 
the language used in the specifications, must clearly be directed either to the achievement of a more 
satisfactory result of the elimination of work not necessary to the satisfactory completion of the contract. 
 
The Community Manager is hereby authorized to approve and initiate work on the following types of 
change orders determined in his or her judgment to be in the best interest of the public and which do not 
materially alter the scope of the work contemplated by the initial contract. 
 

1. All change orders resulting in a cumulative net decrease to the initial cost of the contract to 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District. 

2. All change orders increasing the initial contract cost by under 10%, provided sufficient 
documentation is provided. 

3. All change orders or amendments involving procedural or other matters that will not result in any 
change to the contract's cost. 

 
The Board of Trustees must formally approve all other change orders before work may be authorized to 
begin. 

Purchase of Computer, Related Equipment and Supplies 
Purchase of any IT related product or service will be coordinated through the IT services contract 
manager for vendor analysis and approval. 22 

Receiving and Approving Goods and Services 
It is the responsibility of each department to inspect all goods or services to determine their conformance 
with the specifications set forth in the purchase agreement. 
If goods or services are not acceptable, the department manager take appropriate action and if 
necessary, notify the Community Manager. 

Services Performed on BBRD Property  
Vendors performing work on Barefoot Bay Recreation District property, regardless of value of the project 
or scope of work, are required to: 
 
1. Be properly licensed under existing Federal, State and local laws.  
2. Provide a Certificate of Insurance to assure BBRD's insurance provider will not be responsible for 

any losses in any way arising out of or resulting from the contractor's operations, activities, or 
services provided to BBRD. Further, contractors must agree to hold harmless and indemnify 
BBRD for any claims whatsoever, which may arise as a result of the contractor's actions. The 
amounts and types of insurance required will be specifically detailed in the bidding, purchase, 
and/or contract documents for each specific project.  However, the amounts and types of 
insurance required shall be no less than those as provided for herein unless otherwise waived or 
approved by the Board of Trustees: 

 
Workers‟ Compensation Insurance: statutory benefits, as provided by statute; 
 
Employer‟s Liability Insurance:  $1,000,000 per occurrence; 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

13 

Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability Insurance (Including, but not limited to, the 
following Supplementary Coverages:  (i) Contractual Liability to cover liability assumed under 
this Agreement; (ii) Product and Completed Operations Liability Insurance; (iii) Broad Form 
Property Damage Liability Insurance; and, (iv) Explosion, Collapse, and Underground Hazards 
(Deletion of the X,C,U Exclusions), if such exposure exists): 
 
Bodily Injury: $1,000,000 per occurrence 
Property Damage: $1,000,000 per occurrence; 
 
Automobile Liability Insurance:  
Bodily Injury: $1,000,000 per occurrence 
Property Damage: $1,000,000 per occurrence  
If a Combined Single Limit is provided, the total coverage shall not be less than $2,000,000 per 
occurrence;  
 
Professional Liability Insurance (For professional services as defined  pursuant to Florida 
Law, environmental contractors, or as otherwise specifically required by BBRD):  $1,000,000 
per occurrence  
 
The most recent Rating Classification Financial Size Category of the Insurer regarding any 
coverage‟s as required herein, as published in the latest edition of AM Best‟s Rating Guide 
(Property-Casualty), shall be a minimum of A. 

 
3. Obtain all permits required for the nature of the work. 
 
4. Have the completed job inspected by appropriate staff to affirm correctness of the job before 

submitting the invoice for payment 

Hiring or Use of Employment Service Workers-Temporary Employees   
The contract for services or use of an Employment Agency for temporary employees shall have the 
approval of the Community Manager up to a $7,500.00 (or existing budgetary restraints).  Any contract 
greater than $7,500.00 will be brought to the Board of Trustees for approval. 23 

Unacceptable Purchasing Practices  
The following practices are prohibited: 
 

1. Purchase of a product or service prior to obtaining an approved purchase order.  
2. Splitting purchase orders into smaller amounts for the purpose of avoiding the need for 

quotations, or formal bidding.  
3. Specifying a purchase as a sole source when other sources, or substitute products or services are 

available. 
4. Miscoding purchases to accounts in order to avoid having to process a budget transfer. 
 

  



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

14 

 

2.15 FORMAL SEALED BIDS (FOR PURCHASES OF $50,000 OR MORE)24 

Competitive Procurements Process For Formal Bids 
Formal bids are written documents issued by the Department Heads, and approved by the Community 
Manager, inviting potential contractors to submit sealed, written pricing for specific goods or services in 
conformance with specifications, terms, conditions and other requirements described in the bid invitation 
documents. Formal bids shall be utilized to document procurements of goods and contractual services 
with an aggregate cost of $50,000 or more.  
 
Request for Proposals or Request for Qualifications (RFP's, RFQ‟s) are written documents issued by the 
Department Heads and approved by the Community Manager, inviting potential vendors to submit sealed 
proposals for specific professional services or goods in conformance with the scope of services, terms, 
conditions and other requirements described the RFP documents. RFP's are utilized for procurements of 
professional services or goods with an aggregate cost of $50,000 or more.  At the time of publication of 
the RFP/RFQ a copy shall be furnished to each member of the Board of Trustees. 
 
RFQ‟s/RFP‟s for engineers/consultants will follow Sec. 287.055 F. S. 
Request for Proposals/Qualifications.  RFQ‟s/RFP‟s shall be publicly advertised as provided by law or 
otherwise.  

Specific Procedures for Formal Sealed Bids/Quotes 
Bids/Quotes shall be opened in public at the date, time and place stated in the public notices. No bids 
shall be accepted after the time and date or at any location other than that designated for bid opening. 
Bids received late will be returned unopened. All quotes/bids received and accepted will be made 
available for public inspection ten (10) days after opening or upon recommendation of award, whichever 
occurs first as per Sec. 119.07 (3) (m), F.S. 
 
A tabulation of all formal sealed bids/quotes received with the recommended award(s) will be available 
for public inspection in the main offices of the District during regular business hours no later than (3) 
business days after a public opening. Vendors filing protest of award must do so as per the section titled, 
“Vendor Complaints and Disputes.” 

Award of Bids 
For formal sealed bids/quotes, the user department shall submit a recommendation of award to the 
Community Manager prior to final award. On all procurements, to determine the lowest responsive and 
qualified quoter/bidder, the following will be considered: 
 

1. The ability, capacity, equipment, and skill of the quoter/bidder to perform the contract. 
2. Whether the quoter/bidder can perform the contract within the time specified, without delay or 

interference. 
3. The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, experience and efficiency of the quoter/bidder 
4. The quality of performance on previous contracts. 
5. The previous and existing compliance by the quoter/bidder with laws and ordinances relating to 

the contract. 
6. The sufficiency of the financial resources to perform the contract to provide the service 
7. The quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual services to the particular 

use required. 
8. The ability of the quoter/bidder to provide future maintenance and service. 
9. The number and scope of conditions attached to the quote/bid. 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

15 

 

Waiver of Irregularities 
The Board of Trustees shall have the authority to waive irregularities in any and all formal sealed 
quote/bids.  

Evaluation Committee 
An evaluation Committee, identified by the Community Manager prior to issuance of the RFP or RFQ, 
shall review all responses to the RFP or RFQ.  The Board shall be advised of the membership of the 
committee at the time of the issuance of the RFP or RFQ. 25 
 
Members of the Evaluation Committee shall consist of at least one (1) user department representative, 
one (1) Board member, and one (1) third-party non-employee resident chosen at the discretion of the 
Community Manager. The Community Manager and Board Chairman shall serve on the committee as 
non-voting members.26 
 
The Committee should consist of an odd number of people to avoid a tie when selecting the awarded 
vendor. Selection committee meetings are subject to Sunshine Law; and therefore, public notice of the 
intended meeting of the committee must be posted in advance to allow for the provision of any special 
accommodation needs of any attendees.  Committee members should not conduct, with another voting 
committee member, any discussion related to the proposals received except during public meetings.  A 
memorandum explaining the evaluation process and committee member responsibilities will be provided 
to each committee member prior to any meeting. 
 
The user department, in conjunction with the Community Manager shall select evaluation criteria (to 
include price whenever possible). Such criteria must be stated in the RFP. The user department may also 
assign a weight to each criterion by its relative importance, with the total weights equal to 100. If used, 
these weights will be assigned prior to issuance of the solicitation but may or may not be published in the 
solicitation. If unpublished, the weights will be revealed at the opening of the RFP unless otherwise 
directed within the RFP. If weights are not assigned, the RFP shall set for the relative importance of the 
factors in addition to price that will be considered in award. The intent of which is to provide a complete 
understanding on the part of all competitors of the basis upon which award will be made. 
 
The user department/Community Manager shall issue and receive the RFP proposals. Committee 
members shall review the received proposals and independently score each proposal for each criterion. 
Price will be objectively scored, as shown, when applicable. 
 
The lowest priced proposal receives the maximum weighted score for the price criteria. The other 
proposals should receive a percentage of the weighted score based on the percentage differential 
between the lowest proposal and the other proposals. All weighted scores are then multiplied by the 
maximum score available (i.e. 45%) to determine the total percentage awarded. 
 
VENDOR PRICE % AWARDED            X      WEIGHT  WEIGHTED SCORE 
 
A $20,000 (100 %)  X 45%    =  45 
B $25,000 (80%)   X 45%    =  36 
C $28,000 (71%)   X 45%    =  31 
 
*Vendor B‟s percentage is $20,000/$25,000 = 80% 
** Vendor C‟s percentage is $20,000/$28,000 = 71% 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

16 

NOTE:  Weighted Score shall be rounded to nearest whole number price evaluation and calculation may 
be revised to conform to the needs for each individual RFP selection committee. Each committee 
member shall then rank each vendor‟s score. A scoring sheet (Exhibit A) shall be completed by each 
voting committee member. The rankings are then added for each vendor and the vendor with the lowest 
sum of collective rankings is recommended for award. A ranking sheet (Exhibit B) compiling the ranking 
of each proposal shall be completed by the Community Manager and posted with the scoring sheets. 
 
If oral presentations are requested and the vendors short-listed, the original rankings are eliminated and 
the process begins again. At a minimum, three (3) vendors should be short-listed. A summary of total 
scores and rankings will be prepared for the vendors after all members of the evaluation committee have 
reviewed and evaluated the written and, if required, oral presentations. A copy of all evaluation forms and 
notes completed by each evaluator must be maintained by the Community Manager for review and audit 
records. The Community Manager will prepare an agenda item for Board approval of the recommended 
award. 
 
If fewer than three sealed and qualified proposals are received by the Evaluation Committee, by a 
majority vote the Evaluation Committee may request the Community Manager to seek non-sealed bids 
for comparative analysis or forward their recommendation for award of contract or (in the case of a RFQ) 
their recommended ranking order for staff to negotiate a contract to the Board of Trustees for their 
consideration.27 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District  Part 2- 
Policy Manual 

GENERAL FINANCIAL POLICIES  
 

` 

17 

Vendor Complaints & Disputes (Protests) 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District encourages prompt and fair handling of all complaints and disputes with 
the business community. In order to resolve disputed matters in an equitable manner, the following 
procedures are adopted: 
 
1. Posting of Bid/RFP Award Notices 

No later than three (3) business days after a bid opening the Community or his/her designee shall 
post the intended award recommendation. If after posting the tabulation, the highest ranked 
vendor is found non-responsive to the specifications, the next highest vendor shall be the 
intended award recommendation. The time for filing a protest will begin on the date of the notice 
of posting of intended award. 

 
2.  Posting of Formal Sealed Proposals 

No later than three (3) business days after the selection committee recommendations are finalized 
the Community Manager or his/her designee shall post the selection committee‟s rankings and 
recommended award for proposals. 

 
3. Proceedings for Protest of Award 

Any bidder, quoter, or proposer who is allegedly aggrieved in connection with the solicitation or 
pending award of a contract must file a formal written protest with the Community Manager within 
five (5) business days of the posted award recommendation. 

 
The formal written protest shall reference the bid/quote/proposal number, and shall state with 
particularity the facts and laws upon which the protest is based, including full details of adverse 
effects and the relief sought. The Community Manager shall schedule the protest to be heard 
before the Board of Trustees prior to the Board‟s consideration of the intended award. The 
intended award vendor shall be given notice and an opportunity to be heard during the protest 
hearing. 

 
The Board of Trustees shall have the sole discretion to reverse any intended award on the basis 
of a protest; to require re-evaluation by the selection committee, or to take any other action as 
determined by the Board to be appropriate and responsive to the protest. 

 
4. Stay of Procurement During Protests 

Failure to observe any or all of the above procedures shall constitute a waiver of the right to 
protest a contract award.  In the event of a timely protest under the procedure, the District shall 
not proceed further with solicitation or with the award until a protest is resolved.



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

1 

PART THREE.  GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITES 

3.0 GENERAL 

Definitions: 
 
 As used in these rules, the following terms shall have the following meanings:  
 
“Associate Golf Membership” shall mean a golf membership that is available to non-residents of Barefoot 
Bay. 
 
“Board” shall mean the Board of Trustee(s) of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District. 
 
"Cause" shall mean a violation of the rules or a violation of State, Local, or Federal law. 
 
“Club or Social Club” shall mean a Club or Organization consisting of a majority of members who are 
residents of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District.   Certified organizations intended to benefit Veterans or 
their families are not considered to be “clubs or social clubs.” 
 
“Delinquent” shall mean any fee or charge which is not paid by the defined date.   
 
"Dependent" shall mean children who reside with the owner(s) and are: 1. Under 18 years of age and 
unmarried; or 2. Full time students at any institution of higher education and not over 23 years of age; or 3. 
Incapable of total self-support due to physical or mental handicap regardless of age.  
 
"District" shall mean the Barefoot Bay Recreation District as defined in the Brevard County Ordinance No. 
84-05. 
 
"District Management" shall mean the management personnel or authorities designated by the Board to 
manage the District facilities. 
 
“Grandchild pass” shall mean a pass purchased by a social member to be used for their grandchildren (under 
18 years of age) while they are visiting their grandparent. 
 
"Guest " shall mean those persons normally residing outside of the subdivision who have a guest pass, 
which was purchased by a Social Member, for the use of his/her guest to gain access to District Facilities. 
 
“Guest pass” shall mean a pass granting a guest privileges to utilize District Facilities and shall include all 
privileges. 
 
“Invitee” shall mean any non-resident who is invited by a member of an authorized Club or Organization, to 
participate in an activity or a specific event.  An invitee may include, but not necessarily be limited to, a 
speaker, facilitator, or instructor. An invitee has access only to the facility where the event is held.” 
 
“Long term renter” shall mean a renter of one year or more. 
 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

2 

“Members” shall refer to those who are granted membership Under Section 3.1 and in good standing. 
 
“Social Membership Fee” shall refer to a user fee that entitles the member to the use of the District facilities. 
 
“Non-Resident(s)” shall mean a person not residing in Barefoot Bay and not accompanied by a member 
resident. 
 
"Property owner " shall mean the owner(s) of any platted residential lot in the subdivision. 
 
"Renter/Tenants" shall mean non-property owner(s) leasing a dwelling within the subdivision. 
 
"Resident" shall mean person(s) living with a property owner but not on the deed. 
 
"Resident spouse" shall mean the spouse or domestic partner of a property owner who is not on the 
recorded deed. 
 
"Rules" shall mean these rules governing the use of District facilities. 
 
“Seasonal renter” shall mean a renter for less than one year. 
 
"Subdivision" shall mean that group of platted subdivisions recorded in the public records of Brevard County 
and known as Barefoot Bay. 
 
“Temporary Lounge/Business Pass” shall mean a pass obtained by a vendor or realtor that has a stated 
business purpose at the lounge.28 Temporary Lounge/Business Passes will not be issued up to two hours 
before or during any music event.29 30 
 31 

Objective 
1. The objective of the District shall be to provide recreational entertainment facilities for its members 
and guests including but not limited to; Golf, Tennis, Swimming, Shuffleboard, Lawn Bowling, Basketball, 
Bocce ball, Horseshoes, Softball, Handball, Community Center Complex, Golf Clubhouse, Common 
Grounds, Beach property and Fishing pier. 
 

Management 
1. The Board of Trustees (the Board) of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District (the District) shall be 
responsible for the operation and management of all its facilities. Their judgment shall be final in all questions 
involving interpretation of rules, regulations, fees and charges. 
  
  



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

3 

General Rules 
1. The District's facilities are available to members and open to the public and guests paying the 

appropriate fees and meeting membership requirements. 
2. Guests may use District upon payment of appropriate fees. 
3. Fees paid to the District are to be used at the discretion of the “Board.” 
4. The use of District facilities, including the golf course, may be limited or restricted by the board or by 

District management as necessary to allow all eligible persons to have reasonable use of District 
facilities without overcrowding. 

5. District management reserves the right to refuse use of the District facilities to any person or group for 
violations of these rules.  

6. Any member delinquent in payment of fees shall be denied use of facilities.  
7. District management reserves the right to ask the member to have their guest present at the time of 

obtaining a guest pass(es). 
8. Residency in the District does not confer upon any member the unlimited right to use the District 

facilities. 
9. Fees, assessments, and service charges shall be set by the Board. 
10. Office hours of the Community Center complex or other designated facility for the payment of 

membership fees will be as posted.  
11. Property owners shall be responsible for any debt incurred by the Property owner, their family, 

guests, or tenants. 
12. The Property owner is responsible for the conduct and appearance of his/her guest(s) while using the 

District facilities. 
13. Appropriate dress is required in all facilities. 
14. Smoking, use of any tobacco product and/or use of e-cigarettes (ie nicotine vapor devices) are not 

permitted in any District facilities and may only be permitted in designated outdoor 
areas.32 

15. All physical injuries sustained on Barefoot Bay Recreation District Property must be reported to BBRD 
Staff as soon as possible by the injured party or a representative.33 

16. Golf membership shall be renewed annually. 
17.  The Community Manager may suspend, cancel, or revoke  any resident or property‟s social 

membership, family membership, golf membership, or guest pass based on a violation of these rules. 
The affected resident whose membership was suspended, canceled, or revoked may appeal the 
suspension, cancellation or revocation by requesting a hearing before a Special Magistrate. The 
Board of Trustees shall appoint a Special Magistrate to hear and decide cases involving such 
violations. If an appeal is requested, violation cases shall be processed as follows:34 
A. District Management shall provide the owner, resident, and/or guest with written notification of the 

alleged rules violation and penalty. The alleged violator would accept the penalty or request a 
hearing before the Special Magistrate.  If a hearing is requested, a written notice of hearing shall 
be provided at least ten (10) days in advance of any hearing.   After a hearing is requested 
suspension, cancellation or revocation may be stayed by the Community Manager until the Special 
Magistrate hearing.  35 

B. BBRD staff shall present evidence of the alleged rules violation to the Special Magistrate at a 
quasi-judicial hearing held to determine whether such violation occurred, and if so, the appropriate 
penalty to be imposed. The hearing shall not be governed by the formal rules of evidence; 
however, due process shall be provided to the owner, resident, and/or guest. The owner, resident, 
and/or guest shall have the right to cross examine witnesses and to present relevant evidence 
which is responsive to the alleged rule violations. 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

4 

C. The Special Magistrate shall determine whether BBRD staff has established, by a preponderance 
of the evidence, that a rules violation has occurred. If a rules violation is found to have occurred, 
the Special Magistrate shall impose a penalty of suspension, cancellation, or revocation of the 
violator‟s social membership, family membership, golf membership, or guest pass. The violator 
shall be notified in writing of the Special Magistrate‟s ruling within ten (10) days of the hearing. In 
levying any penalty imposed pursuant to this Section, the Special Magistrate is not obligated to 
impose the penalty imposed36 by District Management.  

D. The decision of the Special Magistrate shall constitute final quasi-judicial action of BBRD. Any 
aggrieved party may appeal the ruling of the Special Magistrate to a court of competent jurisdiction 
in Brevard County, Florida. 

E. If a hearing is requested and the violator is found to have committed the violation as alleged, the 
violator shall be responsible for the Districts cost in bringing the matter to hearing.  37 

18. Pets are not allowed in District Recreational facilities, except for service animals. 
19. Special rules applicable to individual buildings will be conspicuously posted and observed by 

members and guests. 
20. Beverage laws and license regulations forbid the bringing in alcoholic beverages of any type for 

consumption on or in District facilities. Therefore, alcoholic beverages of any type consumed on the 
premises must be obtained from District facilities. 

21. The following behaviors may result in the suspension, cancellation or revocation of  a person‟s  social  
membership, family membership, golf membership and/or guest pass: 
A. Violation of District Policies or Rules applicable to District Facilities. 
B. Violation of any local, state, or federal law while using District Facilities. 
C. Fighting and verbal assault. 
D. Discourteous, threatening, or rude behavior to BBRD employees, residents or patrons of District 

Facilities. 
E. Loud and raucous behavior which decreases the enjoyment of other patrons of District Facilities. 
F. Unintentional or deliberate misuse of the BBRD Facility or property which results in, or has the 

potential to result in, damage to the Facility or property, or in any way compromises the safety of 
any Barefoot Bay Recreation District Facility patron or BBRD staff member.  

G. Misrepresentation of facts which may result in the District‟s Policies or fee structure improperly 
administered or collected. 38 

22. A guest fee shall be charged in accordance with the fee schedule to any non-resident for use of 
District facilities.  This fee shall not be charged to any non-resident using District facilities as an 
invitee for a club activity or social function conducted by any approved Club or Social Club or for 
social functions and events authorized by the District. under the following circumstances: 

A. When the facility is rented by a non-resident who has paid the appropriate fee per page 3-19. 
B. When the event is held by a registered club, organization or the District where the public is 

invited to attend 
C. When a registered club, organization or the District is hosting an active  recreational event at 

a District amenity. 
D.  When a non-resident is attending an active recreational event as a spectator at a District 

amenity 
 

23. All non-property owners who intend to use District facilities must register on arrival and become social 
members of the District.  

24. Children under age 12, must be accompanied by an adult when using District facilities. Groups of 
children who are using the facilities with guest passes must have one responsible adult for every five 
children.39 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Not All caps, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.84" + Indent
at:  1.09"

Formatted: All caps, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: All caps, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Not All caps, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Not All caps, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Not All caps

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Formatted: Highlight



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

5 

25. Commercial solicitation is prohibited while on District properties.  The gathering of signatures for 
petitioning of elected officials is prohibited within buildings or upon District facilities.  Bonafide 
nonprofit or 501(c) fundraising efforts shall be permitted.   

26. Any organization or individual desiring to plant trees, shrubbery, flowers, or other vegetation on 
District property must have prior approval of District management.  A landscaping and maintenance 
plan shall be submitted for review and approval prior to any planting activity.  Any vegetation planted 
on District property shall become the property of the District.  No removal of vegetation is permitted 
without District approval.  

27.  Decorations 40 
A. No items or decorations of any type, which may be viewed as offensive to any patrons, may be 

affixed, installed or added to any facility by individuals, residents, clubs, or organizations.   
B. No items or decorations may be applied or attached to any public area facility without the 

expressed permission of management.  This permission must be in writing and cover the type, 
style, material, custodial and maintenance requirements as well as the contact person in charge 
of the decorations. 

C. The use of candles, confetti, birdseed, rice or other non-environmentally friendly products will not 
be used except as authorized by the Community Manager. Requests for said exceptions shall be 
made in writing, reviewed by the Property Services Manager and approved or denied by the 
Community Manager no less than 3 business days before an event.41 

D. All items must be promptly removed from the area at the end of the event (party, meeting, show or 
other) 

E. Failure to adhere to this policy could result in revocation of use of the facilities for the persons 
involved. 

28. If any property has been determined to be in violation of the Amended and Restated Deed of 
Restrictions for Barefoot Bay by the BBRD Violations Committee, then all social, family, and golf 
memberships affiliated with property determined to be in violation shall be automatically suspended 
upon rendition of a Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order by the BBRD Violation 
Committee.  No party, whether they be owner, renter, or guest affiliated with the property in violation 
may use any District Facility until an Order of Compliance is issued by the Violation Committee.  This 
provision shall operate to suspend all referenced memberships regardless of whether the owner owns 
multiple properties or other properties not determined to be in violation.  Should an owner appeal a 
finding of the Violation Committee to the BBRD Board of Trustees (or circuit court), the 
automatic suspension of privileges shall be tolled during the pendency of such appeal.42  

29. Where any vehicle located on any residential lot has been posted with three (3) administrative notices 
of violation of Article III, Section 3 (D) of the Amended and Restated Deed of Restrictions for Barefoot 
Bay related to prohibited parking on the lawn, grass, or landscaped area of said lot, within any thirty 
(30) day period, all social, family, and golf memberships affiliated with the lot shall be automatically 
suspended for thirty (30) days.   For any subsequent posted violation of Article III, Section 3 (D) of the 
Amended and Restated Deed of Restrictions for Barefoot Bay occurring of the same lot, subsequent 
to the issuance of the initial thirty (30) day suspension, and within one (1) year from the date of the 
initial posted notice, all social, family, and golf memberships affiliated with the lot shall be 
automatically suspended for six (6) months.  For any subsequent posted violations of Article III, 
Section 3 (D) of the Amended and Restated Deed of Restrictions for Barefoot Bay occurring on the 
same lot at any time subsequent to the issuance of any six (6) month suspension, all social, family, 
and golf memberships affiliated with the lot shall be automatically suspended for one (1) year for each 
subsequent posted violation.  An owner may appeal any notice of suspension issued pursuant to the 
provisions of Paragraph 17 herein.43 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

6 

30. Non-employees (including but not limited to trustees, advisory committee members, residents and/or 
guests) shall not enter an employee work area (i.e. behind a bar, kitchen, work shop, private office, 
etc.) without being accompanied by the Community Manager, Department Manager or designee. 

 

Identification Badges and Dress 
1. Identification badges are issued to identify members, their dependents, guests and renters.  The 

issuance of badges will be controlled by District management. Badges are required for all.  
2. Unless waived by District Policy or Management, members and guests are required to wear, or have 

in their possession, an appropriate District identification badge when using District facilities.  The 
identification badge must be produced upon request by Barefoot Bay staff.  If not presented, 
resident/member/guest must leave the facilities.44 

2.a. If a resident with an expired social membership badge wishes to enter a facility on the 
when business offices are closed, the resident may purchase a daily guest pass to enter the 
facility when business offices are closed. Said residents must update their badges the next 
business day at which point they may apply for reimbursement of the guest pass paid. 

3. Shoes and shirts shall be required when using District facilities, except for the swimming pool areas. 
  4. Unidentified persons using District facilities should be reported to the District Management. 

 5. Property owner(s), guest(s) or rental tenant(s) shall not make, or have made duplicate keys to gain 
access to fishing pier, beach property or RV storage compounds, or allow unauthorized persons 
access to such keys. Keys shall be returned to the Community Center office when no longer needed. 
Violators will be subject to prosecution for trespassing and/or revocation of social membership 
privileges. 

 6. Any violators may be subject to prosecution for trespassing and/or revocation of membership 
privileges. 

 
 

3.1 MEMBERSHIP 

Types of Membership 

Social memberships: 
1. Social membership entitles the member to the use of the District facilities. Social membership fees for 

property owners are a one-time fee except as further defined herein.  Social membership fees for 
guests and renters/tenants are annual fees as defined herein.  Golf privileges may be extended upon 
registration at the Pro shop and payment of current green fees. 

2. Social membership is available to: Property owners, resident spouses or domestic partners, and 
unmarried children as an incident of such ownership. 
a. Property owners, resident spouses or domestic partners, and unmarried children as an incident of 

such ownership. 
b. Non-property owners renting in the subdivision as tenants or guests as an incident of residence. 
c. Other guests upon payment of appropriate fees. 

3. Social Membership fees shall be due and payable upon application for social membership in 
accordance with adopted fee schedules. 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted

Formatted: Highlight



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

7 

Family Social Membership: 
1. A. Privileges and fees under this type of membership are the same as social membership. 

Family Social membership shall include the adult property owner(s) and their children, when the 
children reside with the owner(s) and are: 

  a.  Under 18 years of age and unmarried. 
 b.  Full-time students at any institution of higher education and not over 23      

years of age. 
  c.   Incapable of total self-support due to physical or mental handicap    

   regardless of age. 
2. B. Other adults and children no longer qualified under paragraphs A 1, 2 and 31 a, b & c, of this 

section residing with the property owner(s) shall secure a social membership of the District in their 
own name and pay the appropriate membership fees. 

Golf Membership:45 
 
A. Golf membership entitles the member to the use of the golf course and attendant facilities in 

consideration of annual membership dues as provided in these rules. Application for membership by 
eligible persons is made to the Pro Shop Golf Operations Manager.  

 
B. Golf membership is available to: 

 
a. Property owner(s) and unmarried children of property owner(s) under 18 of years age and 

residing at a property owner(s) home under the Family Social Membership or full-time 
students at any institution of higher education and not over 23 years of age. 

 
b. Unmarried children over 18 years of age and other adults residing in a property owner(s) 

home must obtain a membership in their own name. 
 

c. Renters/Tenants with a lease agreement and residing in the subdivision may be granted a golf 
membership upon application to the Pro Shop Golf Operations Manager. 

 
d.  Associate Golf Membership is:                                                   

 
i. Open to persons outside of Barefoot Bay. 
 

ii. Annual Single & Family Golf Memberships available. 
 

iii. Associate Golf Memberships entitles the member the use of the golf course and 19 th 
Hole. 

 
iv. Annual Associate Golf Membership dues include a one-time Initiation Fee and 

appropriate User Fees. 
 

v. Application for membership by eligible persons is made to the Pro Shop Golf 
Operations Manager. 

 
Priorities with respect to golf membership. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5",
Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned
at:  0.75" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Hanging:  0.5",
Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned
at:  0.75" + Indent at:  1"



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

8 

Because the number of golf memberships is subject to a maximum limit as set forth in the golf course rules 
and regulation adopted by the District, priority in availability of memberships shall be in the order of the 
categories set forth in paragraphs 1 through 3, of these rules.  No person(s) on a waiting list in any category 
shall be offered a golf membership so long as there is a person on the waiting list in the immediate prior 
category. 
 
Changes of Golfing Membership   

A member may terminate his or her golf membership, or Trail fees only for medical reasons, or death. 
Documentation from his or her doctor either limiting or prohibiting the member's ability to play shall be 
required.  This request must be in writing to the Pro Shop Golf Operations Manager, and must be approved 
by the Community Manager prior to any return of any funds for unused fees. Both membership and trail fees 
will be returned on a pro-rata basis for the first six (6) months of the  fiscal year. After  March 31 of any  fiscal 
year, there will be no return of any unused portion of fees. 46 
 

Applications for Social and Family Social Membership: 
 

1. Property owner(s) in the District and members of a property owner‟s immediate family need not make 
formal application, since membership is required at the time of recording of the title to such property. 

 
2. The non-property owner adult family member in residence must apply in person at the Community 

Center office or other designated District facilities for membership when no longer qualified under 
"Family Social Membership". 

 
3. Renter/Tenants and guests who intend to use District facilities shall register and arrange for 

membership in the District. 

Fees and Dues 
 
1. Social and Family Social Membership 

A.   A membership fee shall be paid for Social and Family Social membership. 
B.   A property owner shall pay the fee only once for each home site of which they are owner of 

record.  This fee is non-transferable between parties.   
C. Non-property owner, such as tenants or guests shall pay the fee upon becoming a member. 
D. The tenants or guests who concurrently pays the fee and enters into a home purchase contract 

may have his/hers unused monthly or initial annual rental social membership or guest fee amount 
applied toward the property owner membership fee due at the time of closing provided that 
closing occurs within 12 months of initial membership. 

 
2. Golf Membership 

A.  Fees for the golf membership are as specified in these rules and subject to change by the 
Board of Trustees. 

B. Golf membership fees are for one fiscal  (October 1 thru September 30) year; six-month 
memberships are available for the time period between October 1st thru March 31st of any 
fiscal year. 

C. A member accepting a golf membership after October 1 shall pay a pro-rated share of the 
annual fee.  Dues shall be on an annual basis only. 

Formatted: Strikethrough



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

9 

D.  Membership dues or the first of three (3) installments are due on or before October 1st of 
each fiscal year.  (Second and third payments are due November 1st and December 1st).  
Statements will be issued thirty (30) days in advance of the due date. If the installment method 
of payment is utilized, there will be a $310.00 processing fee per payment for each additional 
payment.47 

E.  Membership fees are categorized as “family” or “single” as follows: 
  a. Family - joint property owners owning a home as defined in definitions.  

  b. Single - one property owner with non-playing spouse, unmarried children over 18                              
years, or other adults in residence. 

  c. Family and single memberships are also available to eligible renter/tenants. 
  d. Annual Associate Family and Single Memberships are available. 
                        
                       No six month memberships available. 
                        All other Associate Golf Membership policies apply. 
   Refer to 3.1 Membership, Section 3 Golf Membership Item B.d2-d 

Property Damage 
 
1. Personal Property 

The District shall not be responsible or liable for damage, destruction, loss, or theft of personal 
property belonging to a member. This rule applies also to member's family or guest. 

 
2. District Property 

A. Any District member, non-member, or guests responsible for intentional, accidental, or 
negligent damage or destruction of District property shall be charged for repair or replacement 
costs of the District property. 

 

B. Items removed from District property without permission will be charged to the responsible 
person. 

 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

10 

3.2  RULES FOR SPECIFIC DISTRICT FACILITIES 

General 
 

1. The rules in this section pertain to the buildings, Recreation facilities and common grounds available 
for use by members and registered Clubs or Social Clubs.  More specific rules for each separate 
facility are posted in the building or areas designated and must be observed. 

 
2. Only registered Clubs or Social Clubs and members may use District facilities in accordance with the 

rules herein.  Use of facilities will be governed by BBRD management.48  Use of District facilities by 
non-members shall be required to pay appropriate rental fees according to adopted fee schedules.  

 
3. Keys or combinations to locks shall be provided to all sheds, rooms, cabinets, offices and storage 

facilities used by clubs or groups and which are owned or placed on BBRD property. These shall be 
clearly marked and provided to the BBRD clerk. 49 

 
4. Any club, organization or individual desiring to construct or install any building, sun cover, bench or 

other type of structure on District property must have prior approval of District management.  A 
complete plan including materials and design, along with maintenance, repair and insurance 
requirements must be included.  All local, county, state and federal regulations pertaining to 
excavation and building must be met prior to construction or installation of any structure.  Any 
structure constructed, placed or installed on District property becomes the property of the District.  No 
removal of any such structure is permitted without District approval.50 

Use of Buildings or Amenities 
 

1. Normal hours for use of buildings are posted. Exceptions may be granted by pre-arrangement with 
the District Management offices. 

 
2. Persons or official BBRD organizations desiring to use Barefoot Bay facilities shall make such 

reservations in advance with the appropriate District office in charge of calendar coordination in 
writing.  Persons or organizations may reserve Building A, Building D&E or other facilities for 
exclusive or non-exclusive use. Denial of requests for exclusive use of amenities shall be provided to 
the requestor within 3 business days in writing, citing reasons for denial. Persons or official BBRD 
organizations may appeal staff‟s denial of a request for exclusive use of an amenity to the Board of 
Trustees at the next regularly scheduled meeting.  These facilities are for the principal use of 
residents, who have priority over any outside-sponsored activities.51 

 
3. Changes to reservations shall be made in writing to appropriate District office in charge of calendar 

coordination.52  When two parties or organizations are involved in a change, both parties to the 
change will sign the written request. Calendar dates unconditionally released will be reassigned on a 
first request basis.  Calendar schedules of events will be published monthly and posted on the official 
website. 

 
4. Individuals or organizations authorized for exclusive use of any facility 53are responsible for the 

premises during their occupancy. Such sponsors will prevent damage or destruction and provide 
cleanup, including the kitchen and serving area, following the event. 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

11 

 
5. Abuse of the facilities shall be reported to the District Management offices. 

 
6. Persons or organizations responsible for damage or destruction to the building, furnishings or 

equipment shall be held pecuniary liable.  Payment will be required for cleanup necessitated by the 
failure to leave the building, furnishings, or equipment in the same condition as when they were 
delivered for use of said person(s) or organization. 
 

7. Use of portable items of equipment shall be arranged for in advance by contact with the District 
Management offices.  
 

8. Desired setup plans shall be submitted to the District Management office at least two (2) weeks in 
advance of the scheduled usage date.  
 

9. All setups must meet fire code requirements.  No alterations to the setup are allowed by any person, 
club or organization.  

Game/Meeting Rooms 
 

1. Use of the facilities shall be scheduled in advance by arrangements with the District Management 
offices. 

 
2. Rules for use of the pool tables are posted in the entryway. These rules shall be observed by persons 

using tables. 
 

3. The pool room may be entered on request made to District management officials, or pool host on 
duty. No person under the age 18 shall be allowed in pool room unless supervised by parent, 
grandparent, legal guardian or responsible property owner. 

 
4. Vandalism to the premises or inappropriate conduct by individuals should be immediately reported to 

the District Management offices or pool host. 
 

5. Normal hours for use are postedmaintained by the Calendar Coordinator in Resident Relations.  
Exceptions may be granted by pre-arrangement with District Management offices. 

 
  



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

12 

Swimming Pools 
 

1. The District‟s “Rules for Swimming Pool Use”, as posted at each pool, must be adhered to by 
members and guests in the pools, pool-side areas, and dressing/rest room facilities. The posted pool 
rule signs will be updated to reflect the amended policies as soon as possible. 

2. District management reserves the right to refuse use of the swimming pool to any person or group for 
a violation of any of these rules. 

3. Proper ID, as required by the District, must be presented in order to gain access to the pool areas. 
4. The Pool Host has the authority to check bags or coolers for prohibited items before access is 

granted into the pool area.54  
5. There is no life guard on duty at any of the District‟s pools; swim at your own risk. 
6. Normal hours for use are as posted. 
7. Children under 12 years of age must be accompanied by an adult parent, guardian or family member 

over 18 years old while in the swimming pool area. 
8. Children under 6 years of age are not permitted in the pool without immediate and constant 

supervision of an adultparent, guardian or family member over 18 years old.  
8.9. Guests that have physical issues that decrease their personal safety (i.e. elderly, physically or 

mentally disabled, etc.) in the pool, are not permitted in the pool without immediate and constant 
supervision of a guardian or care taker. 

9.10. It is a violation of Florida law to bring into pool areas or otherwise use glass bottles, 
containers, or other glass products. 

10.11. The State of Florida law prohibits bringing in and consuming alcoholic beverages on premises 
unless purchased from the District.55 

11.12. Flasks  Containers carrying alcohol may not be brought into the pool area.56 
12.13. No food or drink is permitted in or near the swimming pool or within 4 feet of the swimming 

pool. 
13.14. Members and guests are required to use the rest rooms located in the dressing room in pool 

area.  
14.15. Lifesaving equipment shall be used only for the purpose intended. 
15.16. Infants, and those individuals with incontinence issues, shall wear „swim diapers‟ or other 

appropriate apparel which prevents the release of bodily waste while using swimming pools.57 
16.17. No swimmer with open sores that are likely to degrade water quality, infection, or contagious 

disease may use District swimming pools.58 
17.18. Members and guests are required to shower before entering the swimming pool.  Showers are 

for pool users only. 
18.19. Diving, running, jumping, rough play, or profanity are not allowed in or around the pool. 
19.20. No animals are allowed in the pool area, with the exception of service animals. 
20.21. Appropriate cover-up and shoes must be worn when entering any of the facilities. 
21.22. Members and guests should exercise respectful and proper conduct around the pools and 

report all improper behavior to the District Management offices or pool host. 
22.23. Swimsuits or authorized swim wear are the only authorized apparel for use in the pools.  

Cutoff jeans, shorts, and/or colored T-shirts are not permitted in the pool.  Colorfast shirts are 
permitted if in good condition. Anyone entering a pool with clothing that bleeds and requires the pool 
to be closed will be billed the cost to treat the pool. 

23.24. In the event of thunder or other threatening weather, residents must leave the pool when 
instructed by the Pool Host and remain out of pool until instructed by the Pool Host that it is safe to 
re-enter the pool (for at least 30 minutes from the last thunder observed).  59 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

13 

 

Shuffle Board-Bocce- Lawn bowling – Horseshoes and Basketball  
 

1. Normal hours for play are as posted. 
2. Equipment is available for issue from the pool host.  Badges will be left with pool host for security of 

equipment. 
3. Misuse of the courts or equipment should be reported to the District Management offices or pool host. 

Lounge 
 

Days and hours for the lounge will be open and rules to be observed will be posted in bar/lounge area. 
 

Tennis Courts 60 
 

1. Tennis Courts are available to all residents wishing to use this recreational facility. 
2. Tennis Courts are reserved through the Calendar Coordinator. 
3. Gates to the courts are open from dawn to dusk. Operating hours are dawn to 10:00 PM. 

Access after dusk is available by obtaining a key to the gate and to the lights from the Pool Host at 
Pool 1. A  BBRD I. D.District social membership card, guest pass or visitor‟s pass is necessary to 
obtain these keys. 

4. Additional rules for the use of the facility may be posted by BBRD at the courts. 

Softball Field Rules and Regulations 
 

1. Softball Field is reserved through the Calendar Coordinator. 
2. Visiting teams are permitted as guests of any properly constituted Barefoot Bay League.  The 

Sponsors of the visiting teams shall be responsible for the actions of their guests. 
3. Casual use of the field is permitted outside of any pre-reserved time. 
4. Vandalism to the premises or inappropriate conduct by individuals should be immediately reported to 

the District Management offices.  Persons or organizations responsible for damage or destruction 
shall be held peculiarly liable. 

5. Any disputes concerning use of the facilities, may be appealed to the District Community Manager, 
and his/her judgment shall be final. 

Golf 
 

1. The Golf Operation Manager or his/her designee is in charge of the golf course, Pro Shop and the 
facilities at the course. 

2. All players shall register in the Pro shop before play. 
3. Play may be limited by Golf Operation Manager or his/her designee for specific reasons, i.e. 

tournaments, maintenance, weather, etc. 
4. Property owners, members having golf membership and their guests shall have priority for available 

tee time. 
5. Green fees are on a daily basis. Rain check policies are posted in the Pro shop. 
6. Each player must have a set of clubs and putter including a golf bag. 
7. All play must begin at either the 1st. or 10th tee as scheduled by the Pro Shop. 
8. Power golf carts are not to be used for more than two (2) riders and two (2) golf bags. 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

14 

9. Children under 16 years of age are not permitted to operate power golf carts. 
10. Players must be properly attired.  Shirts and shoes are mandatory. 
11. Wading in lakes is prohibited. 
12. Players shall play in foursomes, particularly on Saturday, Sunday and holidays.  "Five some" must 

have permission from Pro shop Golf Operations managerment or his/her designated employee in 
his/her absence.in his absence the starter. 

13. Power golf carts or hand-pulled carts shall not be driven or pulled on high slopes of greens, sand 
traps or tees. 

13.14. ADA validated individuals may park in designated areas (identified by blue stakes). These 
areas may be moved or closed due to inclement weather or any unsafe condition as defined by the 
Golf Operations Manager or his/her designee and/or the Golf Course Superintendent. 

14.15. Faster players must be permitted to "play through." 
15.16. Hawking for golf balls in lakes and canals is strictly forbidden. 
16.17. All play will be on a reserved tee time basis. 
17.18. No fishing permitted in lakes on the golf course. 
18.19. The club will not allow private golf carts or replacements when the total number of private 

carts equals 170. The Board shall be responsible for establishing user fees for private carts and such 
fees are subject to change at any time at the discretion of the Board. 

19.20. The Board reserves the right to terminate the use of private golf carts at any time. 
20.21. All golf guests must be registered by the golf member, fees paid, receipts presented to starter, 

and if requested by the starter, member‟s current year‟s membership card must be presented. 

Beach 61 
 

1. The park and beach are for the use of residents and their guests. Guests must have an appropriate 
guest pass, secured in advance and displayed on their vehicle. 

2. The gate should be locked except when entering and exiting the park. 
3. While the park is open 24 hours per day, quiet is maintained from 10:00 PM to 6:00 AM. 
4. Fires are permitted in the grills only. 
5. Brevard County Ordinance does not permit dogs on the beach.   
5.6. Any pets on any Barefoot Bay property must be on leashes and owners must clean up after 

pets. 
6.7. Campers assume all risks for camping at the park. 
7.8. The following rules apply to overnight camping: 

a. Maximum camping stays are seven days. 
b. Camp sites will be assigned at Customer ServiceResident Relations 
b.c. .A permit must be obtained at Resident Relations office which must be displayed on vehicles. 
c.d. Guests must be accompanied by the resident who obtains the guest pass.  
d.e. Persons under the age of 18 must be accompanied by an adult when camping. 

8.9. Fireworks, loud noise, and outside music are not permitted.  
9.10. A key is required to gain access to these facilities and is available from Customer 

ServiceResident Relations. 
10.11. Members and guests using these facilities are required to observe posted rules. 
11.12. The cutting of bait shall be at authorized stations only.  The cleaning of fish is prohibited in 

District facilities.   

Fishing Pier 
 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

15 

1. Use of these facilities is limited to members and guests. 
2. A key is required to gain access to these facilities and is available from Customer ServiceResident 

Relations. 
3. Members and guests using these facilities are required to observe posted rules. 
4. The cutting of bait shall be at authorized stations only.  The cleaning of fish is prohibited in District 

facilities.   
 

Canoe/Kayak Storage at Fishing Pier 
 

1. Canoe and Kayak owners utilizing the Canoe/Kayak storage must enter into a storage lease 
agreement.  
2. Lessee‟s shall be solely responsible for all loss or damage to Lessee‟s stored property.  
3. Due to limited availability, Barefoot Bay Property Owners with authorized social membership 
privileges may rent one canoe/kayak storage unit.  
4. Assignment or subletting of spaces is prohibited.  
5. Only one (1) unit per space will be allowed.  
6. Nonpayment of lease payments will result in abandonment of space, and removal of stored items.  
7. All lease payments are due on the first day of the current quarter and may be made up to twelve (12) 
months in advance.  
8. All canoes and kayaks must display a Barefoot Bay provided identification sticker.  

 

RV Lots 
 

1. Use of the RV Storage Lots is primarily for Barefoot Bay Residents.  Non-residents may lease the 
facility during the months of May through September. RV owners utilizing the RV Storage lots must 
enter into a storage lease agreement.62 

2. Storage lease agreements shall be on a month-to-month basis. 
3. No stand-alone structures or loose articles will be allowed in any space. 
4. Owners shall be solely responsible for all loss or damage to owners stored property. 
5. Owner shall keep all stored property properly licensed, registered, road-worthy, and/or operational for 

the property‟s intended use at all times. 
6. Assignment or subletting of spaces is prohibited.  
7. No stand-alone structures or loose articles will be allowed in any space. 
8. Owners must assure that all vehicles are chocked. 
9.  Only one (1) unit or trailer per space will be allowed. 

   10. No gate access card63 shall be passed on to anyone else. 
   11. All gate access cards must be returned upon relinquishment of leased space. 
   12. Upon termination of the Lease, owner shall surrender the leased space to the District in the same 

condition as it was originally leased to the owner. 
   13. All lease payments are due on the first day of the current month and may be made up to twelve (12) 

months in advance.  Payment of lease payments in advance shall not prevent Lessor from 
terminating the lease as provided herein.  In the event of such default or upon termination by Lessor, 
Lessee shall only be entitled to the return of any advance payments made by Lessee, prorated 
accordingly. 

14. Nonpayment of lease payments will result in disabling of access cards.  A reactivation fee shall be 
charged as per the BBRD fee schedule. 64 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

16 

15. Owner must give written notice of intent to terminate no later than 10 5 business days prior to the end 
of any month; otherwise owner shall be responsible for payment of full rent for the following month. 65 

16. Failure to comply with the above rules and regulations will result in termination of this Lease 
Agreement.  Any non-compliant Lessee will be held responsible for costs incurred for removal of 
stored property from storage facility.  Costs of removal will be determined by staff.  The monthly fee 
will continue to accrue until the issue of non-compliance is settled. 

17. A replacement fee will be charged if the access card is not returned upon termination of lease or if the 
card is lost. 66 

Temporary Parking 
 
A temporary parking lot is available on Falcon Drive for the parking of Boat/Trailers and Truck/RV‟s. 
 
A permit must be obtained from Customer ServiceResident Relations prior to parking.  Appropriate fees 
apply based on the fee schedule. 
 
No commercial vehicles over 10,000 pounds will be allowed to park in the Falcon Drive lot. 
 
No Boat/Trailer or Truck/RV parking will be allowed in the Building “A” parking lot.  Overnight parking of 
automobiles will be allowed in the Building “A” parking lot provided a permit is obtained from Customer 
ServiceResident Relations and appropriate fees will apply.   
 

3.3 FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Residents 67 
 
All residents and renters/tenants are required to register to use district facilities. The one-time fee for a social 
membership for all residents intending to occupy the residents unit shall be as follows: 
 
Property owner (one-time fee) $495.00 + tax for 2 people. 
Property owner + one adult living with the owner will be considered 2nd on membership and is included in 
fee for property owner. The following ownership transfers shall not require the payment of an additional 
Property owner Social Membership Fee (additional resident fees still apply): 
 
1. Owner placing lot in trust ownership where beneficiaries are immediate family members, including 

subsequent deed transfers to or between named beneficiaries. 
2. Addition or removal of immediate family members to/from deed with owner. 
3. Transfers to immediate family members by way of probate or estate administration proceedings. 
4. Life estate deeds where remaining interest has passed to immediate family members. 
5. Transfer to immediate family members where genuine sale has not occurred. 
 
For purposes of this section, immediate family members shall be defined as, spouses, fathers, mothers, 
children, grandfathers, grandmothers, grandchildren, and siblings. For purposes of this section, genuine sale 
shall be defined as one where the owner retains no interest and substantial consideration (i.e. fair market 
value of the property) has been paid for conveyance of deed. 
 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

17 

Additional resident/property owner (over 2) must pay the resident fee.68 $125.00 + tax  
 
Note: In the event more than 2 people are listed on a deed, additional (over 2) property owners must pay 
resident fee - $125.00 + tax.69 
 
Administrative Fee 
Any changes to 2nd on membership will require a change fee.70   $25.00 + tax 
 
Dependents         $25.00 + tax 
 All dependents are required to register to use District facilities.    
 

Fees Applicable to Renters/Tenants  
 
Seasonal Renter  $20.00 per person per month & tax 
 
 
Long term renter**  

Per Adult 71     $100.00 + tax  
     
Per Dependent72     $25.00 + tax 
  
 
 
 
Annual Renewal  
 

Per Adult73     $25.00 + tax 
      

Per  Dependent    $10.00 + tax74 
 
**A dated copy of the current lease agreement showing address of home and duration of the lease shall be 
provided on an annual basis or on renewal of rental badges. 75 

Badges         
 
1. All registered property owners, residents, renters and dependents (except for children under 12) shall 

require a picture badge.  The initial cost of the picture badge is included in the member fee.   All property 
owners, residents, renters and dependents have to renew picture badges on an annual basis to use 
district facilities. 

 
 All replacement picture badges  $5.00 
 

2. Residents and guests must display their badges and/or guest passes at any event orDistrict meeting or 
workshop in the Lounge, 19th Hole or Pool #1Pavillion. 

 
Guest Passes/Temporary Social Membership (All active military and children under 5 exempt) 
 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

18 

1. One Day Guest Pass  
a. Regular (purchased at Resident Relations or any of the pools) $3.00 per person76 
b. Street dance or other special events (purchased at Pool#1) $5.00 per person 

 
2.   Two to Seven Day (week) Guest Pass77 

a) Purchased at Pools      $7.00 per person 
b) Purchased at Resident Relations Office    $5.00 per person 
The cost of a one-day guest pass (except when purchased at a special event at Pool #1) will be 
credited from the cost of a week guest pass when purchased on the first business day following the 
weekend purchase at a pool. 

.  
 
3. Grandchild Pass (with picture) 

a. Quarterly        $10.00 per child 
b. Annually        $25.00 per child 

 
4.  Non-Residents (Visitor) Pass      $15.00 per person per day   
 
5. Temporary Lounge/Business Pass 78      $0.00 (No Charge)79 

Additional Fees 
 
Rental of building/spaces for any Barefoot Bay club, organization, or resident except for clubs and 
organizations registered with the District before July 1, 2016, are based on the following fee schedule.   
 
1. Bldg A.     $100.00 & tax up to 8 hours     

a. $50.00 fee for use of kitchen (non-refundable) 
2. Bldg. C    $25.00 up to 8 hours 
3. Bldg. D or E   $40.00 & tax up to 8 hours per side   
4. Bldg. D&E    $80.00 & tax up to 8 hours  
5. Pool #1 Pavilion   (exclusive use) $50 
6. Pool #1 (exclusive use)  (exclusive use)  $500 for 4 hours 
7. Pool #2 or #3 (exclusive use) (exclusive use) $500 for 4 hours 
 
Use is based on availability and with advanced booking through the Calendar Coordinator.  These are part of 
the amenities offered to Barefoot Bay residents unless the use is a for profit function, in which case, the 
same rates will be charged as for non-Barefoot Bay residents or commercial businesses. 
 
Property Owners, Residents, Renter 

1. R.V. storage area     Per current lease agreement 80 

2. Reactivation of Access Cards   $10.00 

3. Initial keys for beach and pier   $5.00 

3.4. Replacement keys RV storage, beach and pier 81 $2510.00 per key82 

4.5. RV Storage late fee 83                          Per current lease agreement. 

5.6. Resident for Profit Use of Building   Non-Resident fees apply 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Highlight



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

19 

  
  
 Non-Resident 

1.  Golf course  $5.00 1-day pass plus current green & cart fees  
  (includes all privileges included in temporary social membership)                  
     
2.   Rental of Buildings:  Building “A" $75100.00 per hour (2 hour min.)     
 $50100.00 fee for use of kitchen (non-refundable)  
         Plus $100.00 refundable deposit 
 
 Building "D or E” $4080.00 per hour (2 hour min.) 
 $15.00/hr. thereafter  
 $2550.00 for use of kitchen (non-refundable) 
   Plus $25.00 or $7580.00 refundable deposits  
   Note: Fees are double if both sides are used. 
                                                                                  
 Building "C” $50.00 per hour (2 hour minimum) 
 Pool #1 Pavilion $100 per hour (2 hour minimum 
 Pools $1,000.00 (2 hour minimum) 
 & all other facilities $25.00 first 4 hrs. 
   $10.00/hr. thereafter 
 
Note: All deposits must be paid at the time of reservation.  If renter does not cancel their reservation within 7 
days of reservation, they will forfeit their rental fee. 
 
“Not for profit” and governmental entities that perform free services to support District residents in health and 
well-being may be provided the use of buildings at no charge. The waiver of rental fee must be approved by 
the Community Manager or his/her designee. 
 
Any “for profit” function held at any District facility must be approved by the Community Manager or his/her 
designee. 
  
 
3. RV Storage Area                 $35.00/Month + tax  
       (During months of May to Sept only)84 
 
4  RV Storage Key Deposit 85   Per current lease agreement. 
 
5.       RV Storage Late Fee86    Per current lease agreement. 
 

6.7. Parking fee for allowed vehicles   
        (other than automobiles) at Falcon Dr. Lot       $10.00 per day 

 
Automobiles overnight in Building “A” lot: 

 
   Residents    Free 
 
   Guests 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

20 

      1-2 nights       $ 5.00 
      3-7 nights   $10.00 
      8 or more nights   $25.00/week 
 
7. Beach and Pier    $15.00 1 Day pass 
       $25.00 refundable key deposit 
 
 
Revision Record Page 
 
The Board notes that prior versions of the General Rules Applicable to District Facilities were 
created/amended by numerous Resolutions.  Footnote references which are still applicable have been left in 
the preceding text as found at the time of last amendment.  However, due to the substantial format changes 
being implemented by Resolution 2009-05, the Article and Section references on the prior revision record 
page are no longer applicable.  The Board also notes that some prior amendments were not reflected by 
footnotes.  The Board further notes that the prior revision record page included an incorrect reference to 
Resolution 2001-01 where such reference should have been to Resolution 2003-01. 
 
The following is a list of Resolutions known by the Board to have created and/or amended the General Rules 
Applicable to District Facilities and/or related to fee schedules: 
 
Date  Resolution    Subject  
 
01/30/98 98-01    Fee Schedule. 
 
05/12/00 2000-01   Fee Schedule. 
 
05/11/01 2001-02   Non-Resident Golf Badge Fee; Fee 
Schedule. 
 
09/17/01 2001-09   Revised General Rules. 
 
12/14/01 2001-12   Golf Membership and Membership 
Dues. 
 
03/08/02 2002-02   R.V. Storage Area Fees. 
 
03/08/02 2002-03   A&E Clean Up Deposit. 
 
05/10/02 2002-06   Social/Family Membership Fees  
      when moving within District.   
 
03/14/03 2003-01   $2.00 non-resident guest pass;Softball Fee Schedule deletions. 
 
07/11/03 2003-05   Suspension/cancellation of  
      membership hearing procedure; swimming pool rules. 
  



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

21 

 
 

3.4  Guidelines for Registering as a Club or Organization and Use of District Facilities 

Registration of Clubs/Organizations/Private Parties 
 

1. Any request to form a registered Club or Organization that intends to use District facilities must be 
reviewed by the Community Manager and approved by the Board of Trustees. 

2. An Application form and Building Registration form must be filed as part of the application which shall 
include the following information: 
A.  Name of Club or Organization 
B. Names, addresses, phone numbers of at least four responsible year round residents or 

elected officers or alternates.  All officers of the club or organization must be District residents. 
C. Times, dates, and their choice of established layouts of tables and chairs needed for the 

club/organization.  
D. Definition and purpose of the club or organization. 
DE. Other pertinent information as may be required. 

3. Changes to Club Officers or designated responsible parties must be reported to BBRD management 
staff when changes occur to keep registration forms current.   

3.4. Clubs or Organizations must renew their applications for use of District facilities on an annual basis.  
This must be done no later than the December 31st of each year.  Names and address of officers 
(who must ne District residents) shall be provided.  Failure to maintain residents as officers will result 
in the club or organization being de-certified as a registerd club or organization.  This is necessary to 
reaffirm scheduling for each season/year.  Applicants also need to report if they desire to have their 
names published in the HOA annual phone directory. 

4.5. The designated parties will be the only recognized officials to make new arrangements and changes 
to the schedule or set up plans. 

5.6. The time that has been scheduled for club meetings must be followed.  Members are not allowed to 
come in early.  Other functions or cleaning may be in progress prior to the clubs scheduled time. 

Use of District Facilities 
 

1. Any Club or Organization that uses District facilities must be comprised of a majority of Barefoot Bay 
residents unless permitted by policies adopted by the Board of Trustees.  Only registered Clubs or 
Organizations may use District facilities on a non-fee basis.  No fees, (other than temporary social 
membership fees, as applicable) shall be charged to an invitee of a registered Club or Organization to 
attend an activity or specific event sponsored by a Club, Organization or Resident Group (Resolution 
2003-01).   

2. Residents of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District may utilize District facilities but registered Clubs or 
Organizations shall have priority in scheduling.   

3. Social events held by residents requesting use of District facilities shall be classified as “District 
Resident-Private Parties.” Rental fees shall not apply; however, non-residents who attend these 
functions must register as guests and pay fees in accordance with the District‟s fee schedule. 

4. Residents using District facilities for a “for profit” event are required to pay fees in accordance with the 
District‟s fee schedule. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

22 

5. Non-registered clubs and organizations or non-residents may use District facilities upon payment of 
appropriate fees in accordance with the District‟s fee schedule.  Priority shall be given to registered 
Clubs, Organizations  and District Resident-Private Parties in terms of scheduling. 

Non-Discrimination Policy 
 

1. The Barefoot Bay Recreation District does not discriminate against anyone in a protected class 
including, but not limited to race, creed, color, national origin, religion, gender, or sexual orientation. 
When in use of Barefoot Bay Recreation District facilities, anyone in a protected class including 
employees, residents and guests will not be discriminated against regardless of race, creed, color, 
national origin, religion, gender or sexual orientation.87  

Use of Alcoholic Beverages 
 

1. Bringing alcoholic beverages to District facilities is prohibited. Where permitted, all alcoholic beverage 
purchases must be provided by the Barefoot Bay Recreation District. 

1.2. In accordance with Florida Law, Home owners, residents, or guests may NOT place alcoholic 
beverages that are not purchased through the golf course or 19 th-hole on their property adjacent to 
the golf course for any amenity user to consume. 

2.3. For all functions desiring the use of bar service for the purpose of purchasing alcoholic beverages, 
the minimum service charge shall be $100.00.88 For non-club functions, this fee is payable in advance 
at the Customer ServiceResident Relations office.89 If the Bar takes in less than $100.00, the function 
host will reimburse the bar total.90 Clubs who register a bar must also meet the $100 minimum, but 
are not required to pay in advance.91 Clubs who do not meet the $100 minimum must make up the 
difference.92 

3.4. Clubs or Organizations  must fill out a Bar Form (if a bar is desired) to request a Bar for the function.  
Give a good estimate on the number of people that will attend.  This helps the bartender to stock the 
bar properly. 

4.5. A request for bar service must be made at least two weeks in advance.  If not submitted two weeks 
prior to the event,93 BBRD cannot guarantee that personnel will be available to cover the bar. 

Scheduling and Set-Up 
 

1. It will be necessary to have dates of annual events scheduled prior to November 25 th each year for 
the following year.  There will be no confirmation of these dates until they have been reviewed and 
approved. 

2. Reservations will be booked for eleven months only:  If an entity desires the use of club facilities 
during December, this must be requested on a separate form.  Regular scheduling of facilities shall 
be beginning in January. 

3. Pick more than one date and check with the Calendar Coordinator‟s Office to determine the 
availability of time and building. 

4. At the time of reservation, you will need to know the number of people that will be attending, and if 
you would like round or square tables. Options for table layout are limited to established table layouts.  

5. Buildings will no longer be held for the Clubs or Organizations unless they come into the office and 
sign the necessary paperwork. 

6. In order to cancel a meeting, an authorized representative must come in person to the Calendar 
Coordinator‟s office to cancel.  They will be asked to sign a cancellation form. 

Formatted: Superscript



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

23 

7. The Barefoot Bay Recreation District reserves the right to assign, re-assign or re-schedule any 
function.  The Community Manager shall be responsible for all final decisions regarding conflicts in 
scheduling. 

8. Smaller clubs/organizations/events may be reassigned to a smaller facility to reduce utility and 
maintenance costs.  

9. All functions requiring set-up must be submitted at least 2 weeks in advance.  Failure to provide 
adequate notice by this deadline shall result in payment of set-up fees of $25.00 & tax.  Once set up 
plans are submitted and approved, any changes to the set up plans as submitted may be required to 
pay additional fees. 

10. Persons requesting the use of Building A or D & E and requiring multiple large electrical usage 
appliances must follow the plan outlined by Property Services to safely utilize existing power supplies.  
Failure to follow the set plan will result in loss of usage of the facility for that event.  It is the 
responsibility of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District to strictly adhere to all Fire and Safety 
regulations for events in and around the Recreation District facilities. 

11. Persons requesting the use of Building A or D& E which will result in large groups of mobile guests 
are required to follow the plan outlined by Property Services to safely utilize doorways and exits.  
Failure to follow the set plan will result in loss of usage of the facility for that event.  It is the 
responsibility of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District to strictly adhere to all Fire and Safety 
regulations for events in and around the Recreation District facilities. 

Use of District Facilities Where Fees Are Charged 
 

1. The use of all buildings, pools and Pool #1 Pavilion by clubs, organization or residents require a rental 
fee except for regularly occurring events of clubs and organizations registered with the District before July 
1, 2016.  Said rental fees are listed in section 3.3 of this document. 

 
2. All private functions requiring a fee or individual admissions charge may be subject to additional payment 

fees to the District, unless waived by the Board of Trustees in consideration that the fees accrued go to 
benefit the registered club‟s stated purpose that being of a “non-profit” nature.  Non-resident fees will 
apply.  

Use of Facilities for Gambling and Games of Chance 
 

Gambling/games of chance of any kind shall not be permitted unless authorized by state statute and as may 
be authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

Use of Kitchen Facilities/Bringing in Incidental Food  
1. Any function that requires the use of kitchen facilities including the use of grills stoves, refrigerators, 

sinks shall pay a usage fee and clean-up deposit as may be determined by the Board of Trustees. 
2. Clean up deposits and usage fees may be waived if food and beverages brought into the District 

facilities are of an incidental nature.  However, a clean-up fee may be charged to any entity using 
District facilities if areas have to be cleaned by custodial staff. 

3. Refrigerators and Freezers must be reserved with the Calendar Coordinator at least two weeks prior 
to their use. 

4. If a private caterer requires the use of the stove, refrigerator and/or freezer, the Barefoot Bay club, 
organization representative, or Barefoot Bay resident must reserve them with the Calendar 
Coordinator at least two weeks in advance. There will be no catering charge for the Barefoot Bay 
club, organization, or resident unless the equipment is damaged. Damage to equipment will be 



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

24 

assessed at the repair or replacement cost of the equipment to the Barefoot Bay club, organization, 
or resident.  94 

5. Any function that leaves the facilities in an unclean manner shall be charged a $50100.00 clean-up 
fee.  If the fee is not paid, the entity will lose their privileges until the matter is settled. 

6. Due to insurance requirements, the slicer, deep fryer and use of grill in Building A is are not available 
for use by non-staff persons.  District personnel will provide slicing said services when requested. A 
fee of $1215.00 per hour will be charged for this service for the slicer or deep fryer.  A $3550 fee for 
use of the grill service for two hours, additional hours $1215.00 per hour.95 

7. The gas grill is available for use at Pool 1 by residents and their guests on a first come, first served 
basis. 96 

8. Residents must wipe the grill and cooking area clean when cooking is complete. 
9. Residents assume all responsibility for food safety. 
10. The grill behind Build D & E is available for use by residents.  Reservations for use are made with the 

Calendar Coordinator. 
11.10. Due to the potential risks, residents using grills are required to sign a waiver and assume all 

responsibility for the cooking and safety of the prepared food. 
12.11. Residents must provide their own cooking tools.  
 

Payment of Guest Fees 
 
1. The present “guest pass” fee shall be based on policies adopted by the Board of Trustees and shall 

be established by the Board of Trustees.97 
 
  

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



  Barefoot Bay Recreation District                                                          Part  3 -
   Policy Manual 

GENERAL RULES APPLICABLE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES 
 

` 

25 

 

3.5 Guidelines for Gift and or Memorials for the Barefoot Bay Recreation District98 

 
 All gifts and /or memorials plans must be submitted for review by the Community Manager for 
compliance with the guidelines below. Those meeting the criteria below may be recommended for 
acceptance to the Board of Trustees at a regularly scheduled meeting. Acceptance of any memorial or gift 
meeting the criteria shall be at the discretion of the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees reserves the 
right to decline the acceptance of gifts or memorials due to inappropriateness, restrictions placed upon the 
gift or memorial and any potential financial or legal liability and for any other reason. 
 
1. No gifts or memorials may be considered until the person has been deceased for more than 90 days.  
 
2. Residents desiring to donate gifts and/or memorials shall work with staff to determine the costs of the 

memorial or item.  The cost of the item will be presented to the donor.  BBRD will purchase the item 
after the resident has paid for the item(s) and assume legal liability for the item. 
 

3. No restrictions can be placed on the use or ownership of the gift or memorial. The BBRD is the sole 
owner of all gifts and will determine the use of the gift or memorial. 

 
4. The gift or memorial must be deemed appropriate by the Community Manager and the Board of 

Trustees. 
 
5. The Community Manager must determine all short and long-term costs of all gifts and memorials. 

These costs shall include the maintenance, repair, upkeep, insurance and/or any other hazards or 
liability. The placement of any memorial or gift shall not interfere with the maintenance of District 
facilities. 

 
6. The acceptance, placement, use and removal of gifts and memorials are at the sole discretion of the 

District. 
 
7. Plaques for all memorials shall not be considered permanent, and will be removed at the sole 

discretion of the District when they deteriorate. 
 

 
 
 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

Part 4.  Public Records Request Policy 
 

4.0 PURPOSE.99 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District (“BBRD‟) is committed to the tenets set forth in Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes, governing access to public records, also known as Florida‟s Public Records Act. 

The purpose of this Policy is to provide guidelines and procedures for BBRD staff to assure 
compliance and uniformity with regard to handling of requests for inspection and copies of public 
records not exempted by state law. 

To the extent that any term is not specifically defined herein, the definitions pursuant to Sec. 
119.011, F.S. shall apply to any request for public records submitted to BBRD. 

4.1 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST PROCEDURE. 

A.  Intake of Request. 

1. Parties requesting to inspect and/or receive copies of public records maintained by BBRD 
(“Requesting Parties”) shall be directed to submit their requests to the BBRD Clerk who 
shall serve as the BBRD Records Custodian.   

2. Upon receipt of a public records request, the BBRD Clerk shall coordinate the response.  

3. Each request shall be reviewed carefully by the BBRD Clerk to determine the estimated 
length of time required to gather the records.  All requests shall be satisfied as 
expeditiously as possible considering the nature and volume of the request.  

4. Public records will be made available within a "reasonable period of time" and "under 
reasonable conditions." Although there is no statutory definition of this time period, a 
"reasonable period of time" and "reasonable conditions" shall take into account the 
number of documents sought; the number of locations where the documents are stored; 
whether the records are maintained electronically or as hard copies; whether the 
documents must be examined for confidential information or redacted; and whether 
substantial research will be required to identify, obtain and copy the records requested. 

5. The BBRD Clerk must review the documents to determine if exempt/confidential 
information or material is included in the documents requested.  Exempt/confidential 
information as provided pursuant to the Florida Constitution or Chapter 119, F.S., must be 
redacted prior to review by, or distribution to, the requesting party. 

6. Unless otherwise provided by law, BBRD is not required to create new records in 
response to a request for information, nor is BBRD required to reformat its records in a 
particular electronic format, if requested by the requesting party.  BBRD will provide a copy 
of the record in the medium requested, if BBRD maintains the record in that medium. 
BBRD may also elect to provide a copy of a public record in the requested medium, if not 
routinely used in BBRD, and charge a reasonable fee in accordance with section 
119.07(4), Florida Statutes and as provided herein. 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

B.  Notification and Response.   

1. When a response to a records request has been completed, the requesting party shall be 
notified of the availability of the copied records, if any, and the location where the 
documents will be made available. Notification shall be made by telephone and/or email, if 
the email address of the requesting party is known. Any email notification sent by the 
BBRD Clerk shall be stored in an electronic file pertaining to the public records request. If 
a telephone notification is the only notification provided, the BBRD Clerk shall make an 
email record of the date and time of the telephonic notification and store the email in an 
electronic file set up for the public records request. 

2. The BBRD Clerk shall collect the required fee as outlined in Paragraph 4.3 of this policy 
prior to providing requested copies of public records to a requesting party.  Upon payment 
and delivery of such records, the BBRD clerk shall deliver a written receipt for the amount 
paid. The receipt shall provide a short description of the documents being provided and 
shall specify the number of hard copy pages, DVD's, CD's, VHS, or audio tapes delivered 
to the requesting person.   

3. In instances where electronic records are requested/provided, a copy of the email with the 
responsive documents shall be maintained by the BBRD Clerk as evidence of compliance 
with the request. Any BBRD employee sending a responsive email with documents 
attached shall copy the BBRD Clerk with the responsive email. 

4. The BBRD Clerk or is required to maintain an agency copy of a response to a public 
records request for a period of one year after the response has been received by the 
requesting party.  General Records Schedule GS l-SL, Item 23, requires a minimum of one 
year retention for public information requests and responses.  In this way, BBRD will have 
proof of compliance and the ability to re-inspect the response, if questioned. 

 

C.  Public Record Inspections.  
 
1. Inspections of Public Records may take place at any time throughout the workday, generally 

Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 4:30 pm, except holidays.   
 
2. BBRD must have an employee present to monitor all scheduled records inspections. 
 
3. The BBRD Clerk is responsible for providing safeguards to protect original public   records 

during any scheduled inspection.  
  



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

4.2   REQUESTS FOR VOLUMINOUS RECORDS REQUIRING EXTENSIVE STAFF 
 TIME/EXTENSIVE INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES.  
  

1. For the purposes of this policy, a "voluminous" request, which requires “extensive” use of 
clerical or supervisory assistance/information technology resources by BBRD staff for 
response, is deemed to exist if BBRD staff will be required to expend more than thirty (30) 
minutes researching, reviewing, gathering, redacting, or copying the requested records. 

2. If the nature or volume of public records requested to be inspected or copied pursuant to 
this policy is such as to require extensive use of information technology resources or 
extensive clerical or supervisory assistance by BBRD staff, BBRD may charge the actual 
cost incurred for duplication as provided in Paragraph 4.3 of this policy, as well as a 
special reasonable service charge based on the cost incurred for extensive use of 
information technology resources or the labor cost attributable to the clerical and 
supervisory assistance required to provide the response to the request. 

3. In the case of requests for voluminous as described above, the BBRD Clerk should 
provide the requesting party with a written response providing the following information 
after coordinating a projected response time and cost with the applicable BBRD staff 
members who will assist in the preparing the response: 

a.   an estimate of the staff time required to respond to the request; 
b.   the projected cost that will be charged to comply with the request; 
c.  a request for a deposit in the amount of 50% of the projected cost, before BBRD 

staff  will begin preparing the response; 
d. an offer to allow the requesting party the alterative of inspecting any nonexempt 

or non-confidential records requested and identifying which specific records, if 
any, the requesting party would like to have copied.  

4. A deposit in the amount of 50% of the estimated charge shall be required before 
undertaking a response to a request for voluminous public records. All charges shall be 
invoiced and collected by the BBRD Clerk based upon the number of copies made and the 
amount of time spent complying with the request in excess of thirty (30) minutes. 

5. Charges for extensive staff time will be assessed at the hourly rate of the lowest paid staff 
person who is qualified to respond to or supervise (where required) a response to the 
request for public records. 

6. Charges for extensive use of information technology resources shall be billed at the actual 
 cost incurred by BBRD for the extensive use of such information technology resources in 
 filling the request for public records.   

7. In the event of non-retrieval of records copied as a result of a public records request, any 
advance deposit may be retained and the requesting party may also be billed for any 
difference between the deposit and actual costs incurred by BBRD to produce the records.  
BBRD may require any requesting party who fails to retrieve or pay the charges 
associated with a request for voluminous public records, as provided herein, to pay the full 
costs associated with filling any subsequent public records requests in advance of 
providing any response to such subsequent request.  

 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

4.3 COPIES AND FEES. 
 
Those seeking copies of public records will be charged only the actual costs of making copies. 
However, if the nature or volume of the request requires extensive use of information technology 
resources or clerical assistance by BBRD staff, BBRD may charge, in addition to actual cost of 
duplication, an additional special service charge in accordance with Section 119.07(4)(d), Florida 
Statutes, and Paragraph 4.2 above. 
 
A receipt for the amount of payment must be provided to the person paying for the records.  
 
Homeowners and residents may obtain one free copy of the following documents per calendar 
year: 

 Charter 
 Deed of Restrictions 
 ARCC Guidelines 
 Policy Manual 
 Employee Handbook 
 Homeowners‟ Copy of Proposed Budget 
 Homeowners‟ Copy of Approved Budget 

 
Those records maintained by BBRD in an electronic information system may transfer the 
electronic records from that system onto a CD or, in the case of videotaped documents, onto a 
DVD. Assuming that the electronic information within the system is easily retrievable, the charges 
for such transfer should be the actual costs of duplication. BBRD may charge for CD disks, if not 
provided by the requestor. Special charges may be added if the request is extensive enough to 
require clerical assistance and extensive use of technology resources as provided in Paragraph 
4.2 above. 
 
The uniform fee for copies to be charged by BBRD is as follows, unless otherwise provided by 
law: 

Paper copies: 

First 10 pages per month, per citizen:    No Charge 
Additional: 
11x8.5 or less - one-sided   $0.15 
11x8.5 or less - two-sided   $0.20 
14x8.5 or less - one-sided   $0.15 
14x8.5 or less - two-sided   $0.20 
11x17                   $0.25 

Certified copies:    $1.00 

CD/DVD/VHS/Audio Tapes: 

Duplication:   
Duplication of CD's, DVD's, VHS, or audio tapes shall be the actual cost of the CD's, 
DVD's, VHS, or audio tape. Actual mailing costs shall be charged rather than a flat fee. 
Mailing costs shall include protective cases and padded mailing envelope, plus postage. 
Postage: 
Large orders or those to be mailed out of BBRD should be weighed and calculated 
individually, using www.usps.gov for postage rates. 

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Highlight



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

 

 
Any unusually large volume of copying requiring the documents to be sent to a copy service for 
reproduction are to be billed to the requesting party based on the actual cost to BBRD. 
 
 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

Endnotes 
 
                                                           
1
 Amended 12/10/13 Resolution 2013-16 

 
2
 Added 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

3
 Amended 7/10/09, Resolution 2009-12 

4
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

5
 Amended 12/10/13 Resolution 2013-16 

 
6
 Section added 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

7
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

8
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

9
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

10
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

11
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

12
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

13
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

14
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

15
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

16
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

17
 Amended 2/28/12 Resolution 2012-05 

18
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

19
 Amended 06/23/09, Resolution 2009-08 

20
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

21
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

22
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

23
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 

24
 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 All references to purchases over $30,000 changed to $50,000 in this section. 

25
 Amended August 13 2010,  Resolution 2010-14 

26
 Amended 12/10/13 Resolution 2013-16 

 
27

 Added 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
28

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
29

 Amended May 14, 2010, Resolution 2010-09 
30

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
31

 Temporary Social membership reference deleted 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
32

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
33

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
 
34

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
35

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
36

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
37

 Amended September 10, 2010, Resolution 2010-15 
38

 Amended September 10, 2010, Resolution 2010-16 
39

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
40

 Amended January 13, 2012  Resolution 2012-01 
41

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
42

 Amended June 8, 2012 Resolution 2012-09 

 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

                                                                                                                                                                                               
43

 Amended September 23,2014  Resolution 2014-12 
44

 Amended October 25, 2011.  Resolution 2011-16 
45

 Amended 7/8/11, Resolution 2011-12 .Changes to Golf Membership regarding “full time students” and changed to fiscal year. 
46

Res. 2001-12, 12/14/01 
47

Approved 12/14/04, Res. 2001-12 
48

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
49

  Amended March 12, 2010, Resolution 2010-7 
50

  Amended March 23, 2010, Resolution 2010-8 
51

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
52

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
53

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
54

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
55

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
56

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
57

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
58

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
59

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
60

 Amended 3/11/2011  Resolution 2011-04 
61

 Amended July 8, 2011 Resolution 2011-12 
62

 Amended July 10, 2009, Resolution 2009-14 
63

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
64

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
65

 Amended July 8, 2011, Resolution 2011-12 
66

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
67

 Section amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
68

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
69

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
70

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
71

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
72

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
 
73

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
74

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
75

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
76

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
77

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
78

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
79

 Amended May 14, 2010, Resolution 2010-09 
80

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
81

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
82

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
83

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
84

 Amended July 10, 2009, Resolution 2009-14 
85

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
86

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
 
87

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
88

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
89

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
90

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
91

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
92

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 

 



 Barefoot Bay Recreation District      
 Policy Manual 
 PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST POLICY 
 
 

Version approved February 13, 2015, with approved changes including Resolution 2015-4       

 

                                                                                                                                                                                               
 
93

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
94

 Amended January 8, 2009, Resolution 2010-01 
95

 Amended 2/13/2015, Resolution 2015-04 
96

 Amended July 8, 2011, Resolution 2011-12 
97

 Amended December 10, 2013, Resolution 2013-16 
98

 Amended February 12, 2010, Resolution 2010-5 
99

 Barefoot Bay Recreation District Public Records Request Policy was formally adopted with Resolution 2010-22 on October 26, 
2010. 

 
 



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    J

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Adoption of Revised Employee Handbook 

 

Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 

 

Requested Action: Adoption of Employee Handbook as Attached 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

Staff submitted a draft revised Employee Manual to the BOT with a host of proposed revisions.  

The BOT reviewed the document on 30Aug16 with a consensus to bring the revised Employee 

Manual to a BOT meeting for adoption:  Areas amended include: 

….. 

 Workweek & Overtime/Compensatory Time 

 Holidays 

 Employment Classifications 

 Performance Evaluations 

 Recognition Policy: Service Awards 

 Personal Calls, Visits, and Business 

 Workplace Monitoring 

 Network and Electronic Resources Policy 

 Rules of Conduct and Progressive Disciplinary Procedure 

 Tuition Reimbursement 

 Additional Benefits 

 

 

Staff recommends the BOT approve the BBRD Employee Handbook as attached. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  Revised Employee Handbook 

Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; Sue Cuddie, Resident Relations Manager; John W. 

Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

          

       

 

 

 

Barefoot Bay 
Recreation District 

Employee Handbook   
 

  

 

 

Approved December 11, 2009 

Version 4 approved by Board of Trustees on 14Nov14 

Proposed Revisions 28Jul16 



 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Welcome To Barefoot Bay Recreation District _____________________________________________ 1 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District’s Philosophy _____________________________________________ 1 

Open-Door Policy _________________________________________________________________ 1 

Code of Ethical Conduct ____________________________________________________________ 2 

Loyalty Oath ______________________________________________________________________ 2 

Chain of Command ________________________________________________________________ 3 

Prohibition Against Nepotism ________________________________________________________ 3 

Internal Recruitment/Transfers/Promotions ____________________________________________ 4 

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) _________________________________________________ 4 

Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy _________________________________________ 4 

Americans with Disabilities Act Policy Statement ________________________________________ 7 

Working and Compensation ___________________________________________________________ 8 

Employment on an At-Will Basis______________________________________________________ 8 

Attendance and Reporting to Work ___________________________________________________ 8 

Workday Hours and Scheduling ______________________________________________________ 9 

Recording Hours Worked ___________________________________________________________ 9 

Pay Period and Payday ____________________________________________________________ 10 

Workweek & Overtime/Compensatory time ___________________________________________ 10 

Holidays ________________________________________________________________________ 10 

Employment Classifications ________________________________________________________ 11 

Maintaining Your Personnel Records _________________________________________________ 12 

Personnel Files ___________________________________________________________________ 12 

Performance Evaluations __________________________________________________________ 12 

Recognition Policy: Service Awards __________________________________________________ 12 

Standards and Expectations for the Workplace Safety ___________________________________ 1413 

Reporting Unsafe Conditions or Practices ___________________________________________ 1413 



 ii 

Maintaining a Safe Worksite ______________________________________________________ 1413 

Using Safety Equipment _________________________________________________________ 1513 

Reporting an Injury _____________________________________________________________ 1514 

Directions for ANY Worker Accident: _______________________________________________ 1514 

Hazard Communications _________________________________________________________ 1615 

District Equipment, Supplies, and Vehicles __________________________________________ 1615 

Smoking at the Workplace _______________________________________________________ 1716 

Violence and Weapons __________________________________________________________ 1716 

Emergency Operation Policy ______________________________________________________ 1917 

Definition: ________________________________________________________________ 1917 

Emergency Operation Policies ________________________________________________ 1917 

Drug-Free Workplace ___________________________________________________________ 2018 

Customer ServiceResident Relations _______________________________________________ 2119 

Appearance and Dress___________________________________________________________ 2119 

Conflicts of Interest _____________________________________________________________ 2119 

Solicitation and Distribution ______________________________________________________ 2220 

Personal Calls, Visits, and Business_________________________________________________ 2220 

Inspection of Personal and District Property _________________________________________ 2220 

Workplace Monitoring __________________________________________________________ 2220 

Network and Electronic Resources Policy ___________________________________________ 2321 

Confidential and Proprietary Information ___________________________________________ 2422 

Personal Conduct _______________________________________________________________ 2422 

Rules of Conduct and Progressive Disciplinary Procedure ______________________________ 2422 

Re-Employment ________________________________________________________________ 2724 

Outside Employment ____________________________________________________________ 2725 

BENEFITS _______________________________________________________________________ 2725 

Health Insurance _______________________________________________________________ 2725 



 iii 

Voluntary Insurance and Benefits _________________________________________________ 2926 

Tuition Reimbursement _________________________________________________________ 2926 

Vacation Time _________________________________________________________________ 3026 

Sick Leave _____________________________________________________________________ 3128 

Additional Benefits _____________________________________________________________ 3229 

Leaves of Absence ________________________________________________________________ 3229 

Family and Medical Leave (FMLA Eligibility) _________________________________________ 3229 

Serious Health Condition ____________________________________________________ 3330 

REQUESTING FMLA LEAVE ___________________________________________________ 3430 

Medical Certification _______________________________________________________ 3431 

Benefits While on Leave _____________________________________________________ 3532 

Return to Work ____________________________________________________________ 3532 

Job Restoration ____________________________________________________________ 3633 

Key Employees ____________________________________________________________ 3633 

Key Employee Notification ___________________________________________________ 3633 

Donations of Sick Leave _________________________________________________________ 3734 

Bereavement Leave _____________________________________________________________ 3734 

Jury Leave ____________________________________________________________________ 3734 

Military Leave _________________________________________________________________ 3835 

Domestic Violence Leave Policy ___________________________________________________ 3835 

Returning/Not Returning From a Leave  Other Than FMLA _____________________________ 3936 

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Employee Handbook ___________________________________ 4037 

 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 1  

 

WELCOME TO BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT  

Welcome to the Barefoot Bay Recreation District (the “District”).   The purpose of this employee 
handbook (“Handbook”) is to familiarize employees with the various aspects of working for the 
District.  We feel it will be a useful reference tool for all employees.  We encourage you to use it to 
better understand the policies and procedures relating to your employment with the District.  Our 
policies, practices and benefits are continuously reviewed and are updated from time to time.  If 
you have any questions regarding the items discussed in this Handbook, please ask for clarification 
from Department Manager.  For the purpose of this Handbook, the term “Human Resources” or 
“HR” refers to a Barefoot Bay employee assigned duties which include Human Resource 
Coordinator and who is supported by the BBRD HR consultant.  This employee handbook 
supersedes any and all prior employee policies, procedures, and handbooks of the District.  The 
District reserves the right to modify, supplement, rescind, or revise any part of this handbook from 
time to time as it deems necessary or appropriate in its sole discretion with or without notice to 
you.  These provisions may not be amended or added to without the express written approval of 
the Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees. 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT’S PHILOSOPHY 

OPEN-DOOR POLICY  

We strive to provide an environment where two-way communication is encouraged, thereby 
fostering a warm, friendly and harmonious work environment. 

Employees are encouraged to bring their work-related questions, problems, suggestions or 
complaints to their immediate supervisor, who will respond within 10 calendar days.   If 
employees are dissatisfied by their supervisor’s response and further follow-up is needed, 
employees may address their concern with their supervisor’s superior and/or the Community 
Manager who will respond within 10 calendar days. 

Periodically, employees may not feel comfortable discussing a sensitive matter with their 
supervisor.  In such situations, Human Resources can provide confidential counseling and help the 
employee choose an appropriate manner to address their concern. 

In order for the District to properly respond to your concerns, employees should bring their 
concerns to the attention of management or the HR Department.  Employees may not always 
receive the response they are looking for, however their issue will be promptly addressed and an 
explanation given as to why a particular action was taken.  This open door policy helps small 
problems stay small, where they are most easily resolved. 

Steps to take if you have concerns: 

 Bring the situation to the attention of your immediate supervisor, or a member of 
management and discuss it privately 

 If you feel the situation has not been resolved, make an appointment to discuss the 
situation with your supervisor’s superior and/or the Community Manager 

 If you have followed steps 1 and 2, and still feel that the situation has not been 
satisfactorily resolved, or in situations regarding a sensitive manner you may contact 
Human Resources who will assist in addressing your concerns.  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 2  

Your position will not be jeopardized for bringing a legitimate problem or concern to 
management’s attention.  Working together to address common issues and concerns enables us to 
implement mutually-beneficial solutions to problems. 

 

CODE OF ETHICAL CONDUCT 

In order to avoid any appearance of a conflict of interest, employees are expected to abide by the 
following code of ethical conduct. Please consult your Department Manager or the Community 
Manager if you have any questions. 

As public employees, we are bound by the "Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees" set 
forth in the Florida Statutes, Chapter 112, Part III.   The efficient and faithful performance of our 
duties is very important, therefore any infraction of applicable laws regarding ethical and legal 
conduct will be cause for potential discipline, up to and including termination.   Additionally, some 
acts which are breaches of the trust the public has placed in us are crimes and may be prosecuted 
under Florida law. 

Employees of the District should not solicit anything of value from any person or organization with 
which the District has a current or potential relationship. 

Employees may not accept items valued over $15 received in course of business from suppliers or 
vendors. Such items may include gifts, food, drink and entertainment. 

If you are faced with and are unsure how to handle a situation that you believe has the potential to 
violate this code of ethical conduct, notify your Department Manager or Community Manager. 

Violations of this code may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

 

LOYALTY OATH     

Florida law requires all employees to take an Oath of Loyalty when they are hired.  Any individual 
who refuses to take an Oath of Loyalty will not be hired.  As a public employee, you will be 
required to take and sign an Oath of Loyalty to the Constitution of the United States and the State 
of Florida.  The law requires the termination of a person who refuses to take an Oath of Loyalty. 

 

  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 3  

CHAIN OF COMMAND  

Every employee, upon receipt of this manual, is presumed to know the applicable chain-of-
command that pertains to him or her. Employees are expected to follow the chain of command 
when dealing with matters that relate to your job responsibilities.  Sensitive matters and concerns 
of a legal nature can be brought to the attention of the HR Department or another member of 
management.   

 

 

 

PROHIBITION AGAINST NEPOTISM 

It is the policy of the District to avoid hiring relatives into the workplace whenever possible.  
However, on occasion more than one relative may work for the District.  A relative is defined as an 
individual who is related to the employee as grandfather, grandmother, father, mother, son, 
daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, first cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, 
mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, 
stepson, stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half-brother or half-sister.  The following guidelines 
will govern these situations: 

 Under no circumstances will an individual be appointed, employed, retained, promoted 
or transferred to any position where a relative has direct supervision, jurisdiction or 
control over that position.  If two employees become related while working for the 
District, they are subject to this policy and must immediately notify HR.  

 Related persons will not be involved in evaluation of each other’s job performance or in 
making recommendations for salary adjustments, promotions, or other budget 
decisions.    

 Related employees shall not be employed in the same department.  

Community Manager

Department Manager

Immediate Supervisor

Employee

 

 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 4  

INTERNAL RECRUITMENT/TRANSFERS/PROMOTIONS  

Management may post vacant positions internally only when the department manager, 
Community Manager and H.R. Coordinator believe two or more current employees are qualified 
for the position. Employees with more than six months of service may apply for internally-posted 
positions.   

Management may transfer employees between departments and facilities to meet specified work 
requirements and reassign work requirements as needed. When a transfer is required and there 
are two or more qualified employees, that are in the position to be transferred, the H.R. 
Coordinator will work with affected Department Managers to identify the most suitable employee. 

The Community Manager may directly promote an employee to critical 
administrative/management positions, without advertising the position, when it is in the best 
interest of the District.  To be considered, employees must have held their current position for at 
least six months and have a satisfactory performance record.  The Community Manager retains the 
discretion to make exceptions to the policy. 

 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EEO) 

It is the policy of the District to provide equal employment opportunity to all employees and 
applicants for employment and not to discriminate on any basis prohibited by law, including race, 
color, sex, age, religion, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, marital status or status as a 
veteran in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.  It is our intent and desire that equal 
employment opportunities will be provided in employment, recruitment, selection, compensation, 
benefits, promotion, demotion, layoff, termination and all other terms and conditions of 
employment.  The Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees’, Community Manager, and all managerial 
personnel are committed to this policy and its enforcement. 

Employees are directed to bring any violation of this EEO policy to the immediate attention of any 
member of management and the HR Department who will promptly bring the matter to the 
attention of the Community Manager for investigation and resolution. Any employee who violates 
this policy or knowingly retaliates against an employee reporting or complaining of a violation of 
this policy shall be subject to immediate disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.  
Complaints brought under this policy will be promptly investigated and handled with due regard 
for the privacy and respect of all involved. 

 

NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY 

It is the policy of the District that you should be able to enjoy a work atmosphere free from all 
forms of discrimination, including sexual harassment.  Each employee has the right to work in a 
professional atmosphere that promotes equal employment opportunities and prohibits 
discriminatory practices, harassment and retaliation.  

The District prohibits and does not tolerate any such discrimination or harassment. 

 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 5  

Definitions of Sexual Harassment 

Sexual harassment constitutes discrimination and is illegal under federal, state, and local laws.  For 
purposes of this policy, sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for 
sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when, for example (1) 
submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an 
individual’s employment; (2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as 
the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual; or (3) such conduct has the purpose 
or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an 
intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment. 

Sexual harassment may include a range of subtle and not so subtle behaviors and may involve 
individuals of the same or different gender.  Depending on the circumstances, behaviors may 
include, but are not limited to: unwanted sexual advances or requests for sexual favors; sexual 
jokes and innuendo; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; commentary about an individual’s body, 
sexual prowess or sexual deficiencies; leering, catcalls or touching; insulting or obscene comments 
or gestures; display or circulation in the workplace of sexually suggestive objects or pictures 
(including through email); and other physical, verbal or visual conduct of a sexual nature.  Sex-
based harassment - that is, harassment not involving sexual activity or language e.g., male manager 
yells only at female employees and not males - may also constitute discrimination if it is severe or 
pervasive and directed at employees because of their sex. 

Other Forms of Harassment 

Harassment on the basis of any other protected characteristic is also strictly prohibited.  Under 
this policy, harassment is verbal or physical conduct that denigrates or shows hostility or aversion 
toward an individual because of his/her race, color, religion, national origin, age, disability, marital 
status, genetic predisposition or carrier status, sexual orientation or any other characteristic 
protected by law or that of his/her relatives, friends or associates, and that: (1) has the purpose or 
effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment; (2) has the purpose or 
effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance, or (3) otherwise 
adversely affects an individual’s employment opportunities. Harassing conduct includes, but is not 
limited to: epithets, slurs or negative stereotyping; threatening, intimidating or hostile acts; 
denigrating jokes and display or circulation in the workplace of written or graphic material that 
denigrates or show hostility or aversion toward an individual or group (including through email). 

Individuals and Conduct Covered 

These policies apply to all applicants, and employees, and prohibit harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation whether engaged in by fellow employees, by a supervisor or manager or by someone 
not directly connected to the District, e.g., and outside vendor, consultant or residents. 

Conduct prohibited by these policies is unacceptable in the workplace and in any work-related 
setting outside the workplace, such as during business trips, business meetings and business-
related social events. 

Retaliation is Prohibited 

The District prohibits retaliation against any individual who reports discrimination or harassment 
or participates in an investigation of such reports.  Retaliation against an individual for reporting 
harassment or discrimination or for participating in an investigation of a claim of harassment or 
discrimination is a serious violation of this policy and, like harassment or discrimination itself, will 
be subject to disciplinary action. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 6  

Reporting an Incident of Harassment, Discrimination or Retaliation 

The District strongly urges the reporting of all incidents of discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation, regardless of the offender’s identity or position.  Individuals who believe they have 
experienced conduct that they believe is contrary of the District’s policy or who have concerns 
about such matters should file their complaints with their immediate supervisor or Human 
Resources before the conduct becomes severe or pervasive.  Employees should feel free to file 
their complaints with any member of management and/or Human Resources. 

Employees who have experienced conduct they believe is contrary to this policy have an 
obligation to take advantage of this complaint procedure.  An employee’s failure to fulfill 
this obligation could affect his or her rights in pursuing legal action.  Please note, federal, 
state and local discrimination laws establish specific time frames for initiating a legal 
proceeding pursuant to those laws. 

Early reporting and intervention have proven to be the most effective method of resolving actual 
or perceived incidents of harassment.  Therefore, while no fixed reporting period has been 
established, the District strongly urges the prompt reporting of complaints or concerns so that 
rapid and constructive action can be taken The District will make every effort to stop alleged 
harassment before it becomes severe or pervasive, but needs the cooperation of employees in 
order to do so. 

The availability of this complaint procedure does not preclude individuals who believe they are 
being subjected to harassing conduct from promptly advising the offender that his or her behavior 
is unwelcome and requesting that it be discontinued. 

It is important that each employee play a role in preventing or eliminating sexual or any other 

harassment by: 

 Examining his/her own behavior in the workplace to be sure that he/she is not 
engaged in offensive conduct 

 Making it clear that he/she does not approve of actions or conduct that may be 
offensive 

 Supporting the District’s policy against harassment 
 Promptly informing the person or persons involved that they should stop engaging in 

the conduct which is offensive or objectionable to the employee 
 Promptly bringing the matter to the attention of their immediate supervisor, a member 

of management or Human Resources 

The Investigation 

Any reported allegations of harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be investigated 
promptly, thoroughly and impartially by management and Human Resources.  The investigation 
may include individual interviews with the parties involved and, where necessary, with individuals 
who may have observed the alleged conduct or may have other relevant knowledge.  
Confidentiality will be maintained throughout the investigatory process to the extent consistent 
with adequate investigation and appropriate corrective action. 

Responsive Action 

Misconduct constituting harassment, discrimination or retaliation will be dealt with promptly and 
appropriately.  Responsive action may include, for example, training, referral to counseling, 
monitoring of the offender and/or disciplinary action such as warning, reprimand, withholding of 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 7  

a promotion or pay increase, reduction of wages, reassignment, temporary suspension without pay 
or termination, as the District believes appropriate under the circumstances. 

If an employee making a complaint does not agree with its resolution, the employee may appeal 
the decision to the Community Manager.    

Finally, these policies should not, and may not, be used as a basis for excluding or separating 
individuals of a particular gender, or any other protected characteristic, from participating in 
work-related social activities or discussions in order to avoid allegations of harassment.  The law 
and the policies of the District prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex or any other protected 
characteristic, with regard to terms, conditions, privileges and perquisites of employment.  The 
prohibitions against harassment, discrimination and retaliation are intended to complement and 
further these policies, not to form the basis of an exception to them. 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT POLICY STATEMENT 

The Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) and the Americans with Disabilities Amendments Act, 
known as the ADAAA, are federal laws that prohibit employers with 15 or more employees from 
discriminating against applicants and individuals with disabilities and that, when needed, provide 
reasonable accommodations to applicants and employees who are qualified for a job, with or 
without reasonable accommodations, so that they may perform the essential job duties of the 
position.  

A disability is: 

• A physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; 
or 

• A record of such impairment (with respect to an individual); or 
• An impairment which substantially limits a major life activity (with respect to any 

individual regarded as having the same); or  
• Having a relationship or association with someone who has a known disability. 

 

Reasonable Accommodation 

It is the policy of BBRD to comply with all federal and state laws concerning the employment of 
persons with disabilities and to act in accordance with regulations and guidance issued by the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”). Consistent with this policy of 
nondiscrimination, the District will provide reasonable accommodations to a qualified individual 
with a disability, as defined by the ADA, who has made the District aware of his or her disability, 
provided that such accommodation does not constitute an undue hardship on the District. 

BBRD will reasonably accommodate qualified individuals with a disability so that they can perform 
the essential functions of a job unless doing so would result in an undue hardship to the District or 
impose a direct threat to the safety of the employee or others in the workplace and the threat 

cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation.  The District encourages individuals with 
disabilities to come forward and request reasonable accommodation.  Contact Human Resources 
with any questions or requests for accommodation.  

 

  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 8  

Procedure for Requesting an Accommodation 

On receipt of an accommodation request, a member of Human Resources will meet with you to 
discuss and identify the precise limitations resulting from the disability and the potential 
accommodation the District might make to help overcome those limitations. 

The District will determine the feasibility of the requested accommodation considering various 
factors, including, but not limited to the nature and cost of the accommodation,  and the 
accommodation’s impact on the operation of the District , including its impact on the ability of 
other employees to perform their duties and the District’s ability to conduct business. 

The District will inform the employee of its decision on the accommodation request or on how to 
make the accommodation.  If the accommodation request is denied, employees will be advised of 
their right to appeal the decision by submitting a written statement explaining the reasons for the 
request.  If the request on appeal is denied, that decision is final. 

The ADA does not require the District to make the best possible accommodation, to reallocate 
essential job functions, or to provide personal use items, i.e., eyeglasses, hearing aids, wheelchairs 
etc. 

An employee or job applicant who has questions regarding this policy or believes that he or she 
has been discriminated against based on a disability should notify Human Resources.  All such 
inquiries or complaints will be treated as confidential to the extent permissible by law. 

 

WORKING AND COMPENSATION 

 

EMPLOYMENT ON AN AT-WILL BASIS 

All employees of the District, regardless of their classification or position, are employed on an at-
will basis.  This means that each employee’s employment is terminable at the will of the employee 
or the District at any time, with or without cause and with or without notice.  No representative or 
employee of the District has any authority to enter into any agreement with any employee or 
applicant for employment on other than on an at-will basis.  Furthermore, nothing contained in the 
policies, procedures, handbooks, manuals, job descriptions, application for employment, or any 
other document of the District shall in any way create an express or implied contract of 
employment or an employment relationship on other than an at-will basis. 

 

ATTENDANCE AND REPORTING TO WORK 

Each employee is important to the overall success of our operation. When you are not here, 
someone else must do your job. Consequently, you are expected to report to work on time as 
scheduled.  Reporting to work on time means that you are ready to start work, not just arriving at 
work, at your scheduled starting time. 

The District depends on its employees to be at work at the times and locations scheduled. 
Excessive absenteeism and/or tardiness will lead to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination. The determination of excessive absenteeism will be made at the discretion of the 
Department Manager. After three days’ absence, you will be required to provide documentation 
from your physician to support an injury- or illness-related absence, and to ensure that you may 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 9  

safely return to work. Absence from work for three consecutive days without properly notifying 
your immediate supervisor will be considered a voluntary resignation except for unavoidable 
circumstances. 

If you expect to be absent from the job for an approved reason (e.g., paid time off or a FMLA leave 
of absence), you should notify your immediate supervisor of your upcoming absence as far in 
advance as possible.  If you unexpectedly need to be absent from or late to work, you must notify 
your immediate supervisor prior to the start of your scheduled workday that you will be late or 
absent and provide the reason for that absence or tardiness.  If your immediate supervisor is not 
available, you should contact the Department or Community Manager prior to the start of your 
scheduled workday.  Leave your number so that your  immediate supervisor can return your call. 
Depending on the circumstances of your absence, failure to properly contact us as soon as possible,  
may result in an unexcused absence for disciplinary purposes. Your attendance record is a part of 
your overall performance rating. Your attendance will be included during your review and may be 
considered for other disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Where possible, medical and dental appointments should be scheduled around your assigned 
work hours. If you are unable to schedule an appointment before or after your shift, you are 
required to talk to your immediate supervisor to make special arrangements. 

 

WORKDAY HOURS AND SCHEDULING 

Due to the nature of operating a recreation district, employees of the District are required to work 
a variety of hours during the week.  Some departments will operate at different times than others.  
Your starting, lunch and quitting times are determined by your Department Manager.  Employees 
are expected to observe the specific hours outlined in the work schedules prepared by their 
respective Department Managers.  These schedules are posted and must be strictly adhered to in 
order to ensure the smooth operations of the District.  Work schedules will be changed when 
management deems it necessary.  Any deviation from your assigned schedule must be approved in 
advance by your Department Manager.  Additionally, employees are not permitted to change 
schedules with a fellow employee without securing permission from each employee’s Department 
Manager. 

The regularly scheduled workweek for the District is: Monday at 12:01 a.m. and ends on Sunday at 
12:00 midnight. Start and end times are scheduled by your Department Manager. Employees are 
required to be present for work during the workday established for them by their supervisors.  

Work schedules may vary depending on such factors as weather, materials supply, building needs, 
etc. If you are unsure about expected starting times on any particular job assignment, ask your 
Department Manager for clarification. 

In case of unplanned conditions, such as bad weather, that may force a schedule change at the last 
minute, you should contact your Department Manager or call the office directly. 

 

RECORDING HOURS WORKED  

All hourly employees shall follow supervisor’s instructions to record correct time of your arrival 
and departure for your scheduled shift.  It is expressly forbidden to falsify your time or another 
employees time at work.  Immediate supervisors and department managers are responsible for 
verifying employee attendance. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 10  

 

PAY PERIOD AND PAYDAY 

The District issues paychecks, on a Bi-weekly basis.  Pay periods start Monday at 12:01 a.m. and 
ends on Sunday at 12:00 midnight.  Employees are encouraged to have their paychecks directly 
deposited into their designated bank account.  Paychecks are deposited no later than Thursday 
following the end of the pay period.  If the employee does not choose direct deposit, the paychecks 
will be mailed by the payroll company directly to the employee’s address of record.   

 

WORKWEEK & OVERTIME/COMPENSATORY TIME 

The District’s workweek begins on Monday at 12:01 a.m. and ends on Sunday at 12:00 midnight.  
Occasionally it may be necessary for an employee to work beyond his or her normal workday 
hours. Under no circumstances shall an employee work overtime without the approval of their 
immediate supervisor or the Department Manager. 

Non-exempt employees will receive overtime pay at a rate of one-and-one-half times their regular 
hourly rate for all hours worked in excess of 40 in a workweek.  Non-exempt employees may elect 
to receive compensatory time (prior to working over 40 hours in a work week) at the rate of 1.5 
hours for every 1.0 hours worked.  Non-exempt employee’s compensatory time must be used 
within the same fiscal year and cannot be accrued in excess of 80 hours.  Compensatory time for 
non-exempt employees will be paid out 100% upon separation. 

Exempt employees may elect to receive compensatory time.  Compensatory time will be calculated 
as one hour comp time for one hour worked.  Compensatory time must be used within six 
monthsthe same fiscal year of earning the time and cannot exceed 80 hours. Compensatory time 
will not be paid out upon separation. The employee’s immediate supervisor shall track comp time 
accruals and usage and will maintain written records of approvals of comp time earned and used.  
Only comp time approved in writing by the employee’s supervisor will be accrued and then later 
used. 

Decisions regarding overtime work will be made by the Department Manager or the Community 
Manager. Any employee asked to work overtime will be expected to rearrange his/her personal 
schedule to work the requested overtime.  

 

HOLIDAYS 

The District observes the following holidays:  

 New Year’s Day 

 Martin Luther King Jr. Day 

 Memorial Day 

 Fourth of July 

 Labor Day 

 Veteran’s Day 

 Thanksgiving 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 11  

 Day after Thanksgiving 

 Christmas Eve 

 Christmas 

Only Regular Ffull-time employees who have been employed a minimum of 30 days will be paid for 
these holidays as long as the employee was present for scheduled work on the workdays 
immediately before and after that holiday.  If a paid holiday falls within an employee’s prior 
approved vacation period, the holiday will not be counted as a vacation day.   

If a holiday falls on a Saturday it is observed on Friday, or if it falls on a Sunday, it will be observed 
on the following Monday.  If you normally work weekends you will observe the holiday on the day 
it occurs.  

If you are a Regular Part-time or Temporary/Seasonal Employee and work on a holiday you will be 
paid your regular pay plus holiday pay for every hour worked.  

All non-exempt employees who work on both the actual holiday and the observed holiday will be 
paid holiday pay for only one of the two days worked.  

 

EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFICATIONS 

Upon being hired by the District, all new employees and employees who have been transferred or 
promoted to a new position must serve a ninety (90) calendar day  six (6) month probationary 
period.  It is especially important that you make your Department Manager aware of any questions 
or problems you may encounter during this period.  Your performance will be carefully monitored 
during this period.  At the end of the probationary period, your performance will be reviewed, by 
your Department Manager and if it has been satisfactory, you will become a Regular Full-Time or 
Regular Part-Time Employee.  Satisfactory completion of the probationary period does not entitle 
you to employment for any specific term, but may entitle you to participation in many of the 
District’s employee benefits programs. 

For the sole purpose of determining the allowance of certain employee benefits, employees are 
classified as: 

1. Regular Full-Time Employees - An employee who has satisfactorily completed the 
probationary period and is scheduled to work a minimum of thirty-three  (3330) hours per 
week (minimum of 1,500 hours per year).  

2. Regular Part-Time Employees - An employee who has satisfactorily completed the 
probationary period and is scheduled to work less than   thirty-three (3330) hours per 
week (maximum of 1,500 hours per year).  

3. Temporary or Seasonal Employees - An employee whose services are scheduled to be of 
limited duration. Temporary or Seasonal employees are not eligible for participation in 
those employee benefits programs made available for the District Regular Full-Time and 
Regular Part-Time Employees.  Service as a temporary does not count as service as a 
Regular Employee for benefit eligibility purposes.  

4. Interim Employee – An employee who is hired or promoted as a replacement to 
temporarily supplement the workforce. 

For payroll purposes, employees will be classified as one of the following: 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 12  

1. Exempt Employees - Certain employees such as executive, administrative, professional and 
supervisory employees, whose positions meet specific tests established by the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, are paid on a salary basis for all hours worked each week.  These employees 
are expected to work whatever hours are required to accomplish their duties, even if it 
exceeds their normal workweek.  Exempt employees working outside their normal hours 
may receive compensatory time per  their immediate supervisor. 

2. Non-Exempt Employees - All employees who do not meet the Fair Labor Standards Act 
exemption test for exempt employee are identified as non-exempt employees.  Non-exempt 
employees are hourly employees, who must be paid the state minimum wage and are 
eligible for payment of overtime pay. 

 

MAINTAINING YOUR PERSONNEL RECORDS 

It is your responsibility to provide current information regarding your address, telephone number, 
insurance beneficiaries, change in dependents, marital status, etc.  Please notify the HR 
Department to note any changes in your address, phone number, emergency contact information, 
marital status, number of dependents, etc. Changes in exemptions for tax purposes will only be 
made upon the receipt of a completed W-4 form. 

 

PERSONNEL FILES 

Employee personnel files are the property of the District, and do not belong to the employee.  
However, upon request, the District will allow an employee to review their employee file under the 
supervision of management.   

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS  

Employees will have their job performance reviewed at the mid-point and end of their ninety (90) 
calendar day6 month probationary period and on an annual basis by their immediate supervisor 
and/or Department Manager.    

RECOGNITION POLICY: SERVICE AWARDS 

Barefoot Bay recognizes the value of institutional knowledge and experience held by long-term 
employees. Additionally, retention of high-performing employees reduces the cost of employee 
turnover and enhances corporate competitiveness.  

Eligibility full-time, and part- time active employees become eligible for a milestone recognition 
award of bonus days off in the year in which they complete five, 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35 and 40 years 
of service.  

Years Bonus days off   Years  
 

Bonus days off 

Five   One               Twenty Five     Five 

Ten   Two               Thirty     Six 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 13  

Fifteen   Three               Thirty Five     Seven 

Twenty   Four               Forty     Eight 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 14  

Employees reaching  the following service milestones will be granted the following lifetime  
discount on lunch meals at the 19th Hole: 

10 years $1 

20 years $2 

30 years $3 

 

STANDARDS AND EXPECTATIONS FOR THE WORKPLACE SAFETY 

The District believes in maintaining safe and healthy working conditions for our employees. 
However, to achieve our goal of providing a safe workplace, each employee must be safety 
conscious. We have established the following policies and procedures that allow us to provide safe 
and healthy working conditions. We expect each employee to follow these policies and procedures, 
to act safely, and to report unsafe conditions to his or her Department Manager in a timely manner. 

 

REPORTING UNSAFE CONDITIONS OR PRACTICES 

Employees are expected to continually be on the lookout for unsafe working conditions or 
practices. If you observe an unsafe condition, you should warn others, if possible, and report that 
condition to your Department Manager immediately. If you have a question regarding the safety of 
your workplace and practices, ask your Department Manager for clarification. 

If you observe a coworker using an unsafe practice, you are expected to mention this to the 
coworker and to your Department Manager. Likewise, if a coworker brings to your attention an 
unsafe practice you may be using, please thank the coworker and make any necessary adjustments 
to what you are doing. Safety at work is a team effort. 

 

MAINTAINING A SAFE WORKSITE  

We expect employees to establish and maintain a safe worksite. This includes but is not limited to 
the following applications: 

 Building and maintaining walkways, handrails, and guardrails. 

 Properly lifting and lowering heavy objects. 

 Inspecting tools and equipment for defects before use. 

 Keeping walkways clear of debris.  

 Unsafe cell phone use 

 In conditions affecting public safety, use of medications that may affect the safety and 
well-being of others.   

 Inspecting, cleaning, and properly storing tools and equipment after use. 

 Following established safety rules. 

 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 15  

USING SAFETY EQUIPMENT 

Where needed, the District provides its employees with appropriate safety equipment and devices. 
You are required to use the equipment provided in the manner designated as proper and safe by 
the manufacturer. Failure to properly use safety equipment may lead to disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination.  

If you require safety equipment that has not been provided, contact your Department Manager 
before performing the job duty for which you need the safety equipment. 

 

REPORTING AN INJURY  

Employees are required to report any injury, accident, or safety hazard immediately to their 
immediate supervisor and/or Department Manager. Minor cuts or abrasions must be treated on 
the spot. More serious injuries or accidents will be treated accordingly. Serious injuries must be 
reported on the injury or accident report form available in the office.  

The District provides a comprehensive workers’ compensation insurance program at no cost to 
employees. This program covers any injury or illness sustained in the course of employment that 
requires medical, surgical, or hospital treatment. Subject to applicable legal requirements, 
workers’ compensation insurance provides benefits.  In all cases in which an employee files a 
workers’ compensation claim for a job related injury, drug testing is required pursuant to the 
BBRD Drug Free Workplace Policy.   

Employees who sustain work-related injuries/illnesses; or who see a co-worker sustain a work 
related injury or illness must by penalty of disciplinary action inform their immediate supervisor 
or Department Manager as soon as possible. . No matter how minor an on-the-job injury may 
appear, it is important that it be reported immediately.   

 

DIRECTIONS FOR ANY WORKER ACCIDENT: 

Step 1:  If this requires emergency attention – CALL 911 

Step 2:  Have a manager complete a First Report of Injury Form and have the employee sign (if 
capable) 

Step 3:  If need be, go first to an Urgent Care Facility (see below) or the Emergency Room.  Inform 
the location that you have a workers’ comp injury and give them the claim number if you have it.   

If  you are unable to obtain a claim number in advance of treatment, please give the medical facility 
your Social Security number and contact HR or your Department Manager  as soon as possible.    

 

URGENT CARE 

1. Sebastian Family Walk-In Clinic 13840 US Hwy 1, Sebastian (4.18 Miles) 

2. Palm Bay Community Hospital 1425 Malabar Rd, NE, Palm Bay, FL (13 Miles) 

3. Indian River Walk In Clinic 652 21st.  St., Vero Beach (19.77 Miles) 

4. Urgent Care West 2050 40th Ave. Ste. 6, Vero Beach (20.99 Miles) 

 

HOSPITALS 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 16  

1. Sebastian River Medical Center 13695 US Hwy 1, Sebastian, Fl., 32958 (3.77 Miles) 

2.  Palm Bay Community Hospital 1425 Malabar Rd, NE, Palm Bay, FL (13 Miles) 

3. Holmes Regional Medical Center, 1350 S Hickory, Melbourne, FL (16.89 miles)  

4. Indian River Memorial Hospital 1000 36th St., Vero Beach, Fl.,  (18.28 miles)  

5. Wuesthoff Medical Center 250 N. Wickham Rd., Melbourne, Fl.   (21.87 miles) 

Neither Barefoot Bay Recreation District nor the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of 
workers’ compensation benefits for injuries that occur during an employee’s voluntary 
participation in any off duty recreational, social, or athletic activity sponsored by Barefoot Bay 
Recreation District (Employees may not be eligible for workers’ compensation benefits if following 
an accident or upon reasonable suspicion they refuse to submit to a drug test or if they test 
positive for illegal drugs within their system).  

 

HAZARD COMMUNICATIONS 

If you believe that you are dealing with a hazardous material and lack the appropriate information 
and/or safety equipment, contact your Department Manager immediately. 

 

DISTRICT EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, AND VEHICLES 

All employees are expected to take care of all equipment and supplies provided to them. 
Equipment or vehicles essential in accomplishing job duties are expensive and may be difficult to 
replace. When using property, employees are expected to exercise care, perform required 
maintenance, and follow all operating instructions, safety standards, and guidelines. 

Please notify the immediate supervisor if any equipment, machines, tools, or vehicles appear to be 
damaged, defective, or is in need of repair. Prompt reporting of damages, defects, and the need for 
repairs could prevent deterioration of equipment and possible injury to employees or others.  Your 
immediate supervisor or Department Manager can answer any questions about an employee’s 
responsibility for maintenance and care of equipment or vehicles used on the job. 

Driving a vehicle owned by the District is a privilege.  If you are granted the privilege of driving 
such a vehicle, you are solely responsible for ensuring that the vehicle assigned to you is operated 
in a safe and prudent manner and in compliance with all of the District's rules and regulations, and 
all state and federal laws, rules and regulations relating to motor vehicle operation.  Your failure to 
abide by any such laws, rules and regulations may result in a variety of consequences, including, 
without limitation, the loss of this privilege, termination of your employment and possible legal 
consequences. 

You are responsible for the vehicle's keys and license plate and any other property of the District 
related to the vehicle.   If you are authorized to drive a vehicle owned by the District, you must 
adhere to these regulations: 

 Absolutely No Smoking.  Under no circumstances will there be any smoking in any vehicle 
at any time, including, but not limited to, tobacco products and electronic cigarettes. 

 Authorized Barefoot Bay Recreation District personnel Only.   In cases of emergency, the 
Community Manager may authorize an exception. 

 In Case of Accident.  All accidents and damages must be reported to your immediate 
Department Manager as soon as possible.  Any employee involved in any accident with a 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 17  

District vehicle must complete both state and company insurance accident reports within 
24 hours of the accident.  

 Driver’s License.  All employees assigned to drive a vehicle owned by the District must 
have a valid and current Florida driver's license.  Employees recently relocated to Florida 
must obtain a Florida license before they may drive a District vehicle.  

 Driving while impaired.  No employee may operate a vehicle owned by the District while 
impaired by alcohol, illegal drugs or medication. 

 Personal Use.  Vehicles owned by the District may not be used for personal purposes.  

 Loss of Insurability.  If you are deemed to be a high risk driver or are otherwise 
uninsurable, you will lose the right to use a vehicle owned by the District.  You must notify 
your supervisor immediately if you are a high risk drive or are uninsurable.  

 No Irresponsible or Reckless Driving.  Anyone driving a vehicle owned by the District must 
obey all laws and regulations regarding the operation of a motor vehicle and shall exercise 
extreme caution when operating the vehicle.  

 Payment of Fines and Tickets.  Employees will be responsible for paying all traffic or 
parking fines received while operating a District owned vehicle.  

The theft, improper, careless, negligent, destructive, or unsafe use or operation of equipment or 
vehicles, as well as excessive or avoidable traffic and parking violations, can result in disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment. 

Employees are subject to mandatory drug testing as provided for in the BBRD Drug Free 
Workplace Policy immediately after any vehicular accident while at work and/or on duty that the 
employee has caused, contributed to, or been involved in.  This provision shall apply regardless of 
whether employee is driving a District owned vehicle or a vehicle owned by any other party. 

 

SMOKING AT THE WORKPLACE 

The District’s policy is to provide smoke-free environments for our employees, residents, and the 
general public.  Smoking of any kind is prohibited inside our office, district buildings and district 
vehicles.  Employees may smoke on scheduled breaks or during meal times, as long as they do so 
outside in designated smoking locations.   

Employees are also responsible to inform anyone working on our grounds of this smoke-free 
policy, and report to their  immediate supervisor any violation of this policy. 

 

VIOLENCE AND WEAPONS    

The District believes in maintaining a safe and healthy workplace, in part by promoting open, 
friendly, and supportive working relationships among all employees. Violence or threats of 
violence have no place in our business, and will not be tolerated. Violence is not an effective 
solution to any problem. Employees are strictly prohibited from the unlawful use of any weapons  
including knives, pistols, rifles, stun guns, Mace, etc.,  in the worksite or office. Neither threats of 
violence nor fighting will be tolerated.  Furthermore, if you have a  situation that is creating stress 
or otherwise making you agitated, you are encouraged to discuss it with your immediate 
supervisor, Department Manager and/or Human Resources Department. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 18  

You are expected to immediately report to your Department Manager any violation of this policy. 
Any employee found threatening another employee, fighting, and/or  unlawfully using weapons  in 
the worksite will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

 

  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 19  

EMERGENCY OPERATION POLICY  

During emergencies or the preparation for a potential emergency, employees of the Barefoot Bay 
Recreation District have responsibilities to the citizens of the district and to assist in the 
preparation for the potential emergency. Employees are also critical in the recovery from events. 
To ensure that BBRD’s expectations are clear to all, and that the safety of people, employees and 
facilities are protected the following policies are adopted. Additionally, Department Managers, 
supervisors and essential personnel are expected to be familiar with the BBRD Emergency 
Management Plan.  Non-essential employees are encouraged to familiarize themselves with the 
Emergency Management plan each year prior to hurricane season. 

 

DEFINITION: 

Emergency  – Any natural or man-made event that requires the preparation for and potential 
evacuation of BBRD facilities and or residents, and is declared by the Chairman of the Board of 
County Commissioners. 

Administrative Leave - Paid at regular rate for the days during a Declared Emergency and not to 
exceed five days. 

Return to Work Notice -  Per the Emergency Management Plan, employees will be notified when 
to return to work based on their classification (essential, pre/post disaster essential personnel and 
non-essential personnel). 

Emergency Phone Number - All employees will provide their immediate supervisor an updated 
regular and emergency contact numbers each year on or before May 31. 

 

EMERGENCY OPERATION POLICIES 

1. No time off or annual leave will be granted within 5 days of an anticipated emergency, 
during a declared state of emergency and during a Level II EOC state of preparedness or 
immediately following an emergency (as determined by the Community Manager).  
Exceptions will be reviewed and granted by the Community Manager on a case by case 
basis..  Given the above, employees are expected to prepare their home emergency plans 
and protect their property during non-work hours and in advance of the possible 
preparation of District facilities. 

2. Those who are not scheduled to work may be called in to assist in the preparation of BBRD 
facilities.  Those called in will be compensated in accordance with the BBRD’s policies. 

3. BBRD facilities and amenities will be closed in accordance with the Emergency 
Management plan prior to any anticipated disaster. 

4. Per the Emergency Management Plan, non-essential personnel and pre/post disaster 
essential personnel will be released from work as required. Said employees will be put on 
administrative leave.  Employees who work scheduled shifts in advance of, ceasation of 
normal BBRD operations, and report back to work after the emergency will be 
compensated for the time on administrative leave up to 32 hours. 

5. Employees are required  before hurricane season each year  to provide their immediate 
supervisor  with an up-to-date contact number or numbers. This number will be the 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 20  

number at which the employee can be reached in the event of preparation for, evacuation 
of area and Return to Work Notice. Failure to Return to Work when notified at this contact 
number may result in the determination that the employee has abandoned the job.  He or 
she may be disciplined up to and including  termination. 

6. During the preparation of facilities and recovery from disasters employees may be asked to 
perform jobs that are not in their usually daily work or job description. Failure to perform 
reasonable tasks at the direction of Management of BBRD may be cause for immediate 
suspension and/or termination. 

All compensation policies for non-exempt employees shall be in effect during recovery 
operations.  Non-exempt essential employees who shelter in place will be paid for every 
hour they are at BBRD, up to 24 hours per day.  All other non-exempt employees will only 
be paid for hours worked at BBRD, excluding Administrative leave hours.Exempt 
employees working outside their normal hours during the declared emergency may 
receive compensatory time. Exempt employees working during a declared state of 
emergency shall record their hours worked (as instructed by the Finance Office) in case 
federal disaster recover funds cover their hours worked beyond 40 hours per week.  In the 
event reimbursable overtime is paid to exempt employees, BBRD compensatory time shall 
not be allow. 

 

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE  

The District does not tolerate the presence of illegal drugs or the illegal use of legal drugs in our 
workplace. The use, possession, distribution, or sale of controlled substances such as drugs or 
alcohol, or being under the influence of such controlled substances is strictly prohibited while on 
duty, while on the District’s premises or worksites, or while operating the District’s equipment or 
vehicles.1 The use of illegal drugs as well as the illegal use of legal drugs is a threat to us all because 
it promotes problems with safety, customer service, productivity, and our ability to survive and 
prosper as an organization. Employees in safety-sensitive positions have an obligation to ensure 
that they are not impaired while engaged in their jobs and do not pose a direct threat to their 
safety and the safety of others.  If you need to take a prescription medication that may affect your 
ability to safely perform your job duties, you are required to discuss possible accommodations 
with your Department Manager. Violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination. 

Prior to employment, each potential employee must undergo a drug test.  Employees reasonably 
suspected through observation/documentation to be under the influence of alcohol or other drugs 
shall be prevented from engaging in further work of any sort and will have given the District cause 
to subject them to immediate testing, in accordance with the procedures set forth in the policy. 

As a condition of employment, employees must notify their Department Manager if they are 
arrested for a criminal charge relating to illegal drugs and/or alcohol.  Such notification must be 
made within twenty four (24) hours of the arrest.  Any employee who is convicted of violating 

                                                             

1 This policy is not intended to prohibit the possession, distribution, and/or sale of alcohol by authorized 
Food and Beverage Department employees in the normal course and scope of performing their job duties 
where such possession, distribution, and/or sale of alcohol is a defined part of their job description or has 
been otherwise authorized in advance by District Management. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 21  

criminal drug or alcohol statutes must notify an appropriate Department Manager or the 
Community Manager of that conviction within five days of the conviction.  Failure to do so may 
lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination.  

Barefoot Bay Drug-Free Workplace Program adheres to Florida State Statutes.  The Barefoot Bay 
Drug-Free Workplace Policy is available in the District Office for review.  

CUSTOMER SERVICERESIDENT RELATIONS 

 At Barefoot Bay Recreation District, delivering excellent customer service is the measure of our 
success.  It is the responsibility of each employee, within reason, to interact with the residents or 
guest to achieve this goal.   

 

APPEARANCE AND DRESS 

Management may exercise good discretion to determine appropriateness in appearance.  
Employees who do not meet a professional standard, to be determined at management’s sole 
discretion, may be sent home to change and non-exempt employees will not be paid for that time 
off.  Some basic essentials of appropriate dress include the need for clothing to be neat and clean.  
A reasonable  dress code prohibits any extreme in dress, accessory, fragrances or hair.  It is 
impossible and undesirable to define an absolute code for dress and fragrances.  Management will 
apply a rule of reason on a case-by-case basis.   

Appearance has an impact on both employee performance and customer perceptions; therefore 
Barefoot Bay does not allow facial jewelry, specifically eyebrow, nose and lip piercing.  It also 
requires earrings, hair color, and tattoos on both men and women, to be “professional”.  To present 
a professional image to our residents, guest and the public, all employees are required to wear 
appropriate clothing on the job. Shirts with inappropriate slogans, tight pants, miniskirts, tank 
tops, cut-offs halter tops, muscle shirts, crop tops and flip flops are not acceptable attire.  If District 
clothing is provided by the District, it must be worn while on duty.  By necessity, the dress 
standards for the business office are somewhat different than for jobsites. 

 For the business office, casual business-style dress is appropriate. Employees should be 
neatly groomed and clothes should be clean and in good repair. Leisure clothes such as 
jeans, shorts, cut-offs or halter tops are not acceptable attire for the business office, which 
includes the Administrative Office and Customer ServiceResident Relations.  Management 
may designate days in which more casual attire is acceptable.  

 For worksites, employees are expected to wear clothes appropriate for work to be done as 
outlined by the Department Manager or Community Manager.  Employees should be 
sensitive to the location and context of their work and should be ready to adjust their dress 
if the circumstances so warrant. Employees at a jobsite should wear clothing that protects 
their safety and wear clothing in such a way as to be safe (e.g., shirts tucked in when 
working around machinery).   

 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District is a special unit of local government which means that Florida 
Statues have established clear rules of conduct. You should avoid external business, financial, or 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 22  

employment interests that conflict with the District’s community & business interests or with your 
ability to perform your job duties.  This applies to your possible relationships with any other 
employer, consultant, contractor, resident, or supplier. 

Violations of law may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, and prosecution 
under the law. 

 

SOLICITATION AND DISTRIBUTION 

For the safety, convenience, and protection of all employees, the District has adopted the following 
rules concerning solicitation and the distribution of materials: 

 The District prohibits solicitation and distribution of non-district materials on District 
property or at District sites at all times. 

 Commercial solicitation is prohibited while on District properties.  The gathering of 
signatures for petitioning of elected officials is prohibited within buildings or upon District 
facilities.  Bona fide non-profit r 501(c) fundraising efforts shall be permitted. 

 

PERSONAL CALLS, VISITS, AND BUSINESS    

The District expects the full attention of its employees while they are working.  Although 
employees may occasionally have to take care of personal matters during the workday, employees 
should try to conduct such personal business either before or after the workday or during breaks 
or meal periods.  

Employees should also limit incoming personal calls, internet use, visits, or personal transactions 
on both District and personal devices (use of personal devices is allowed on breaks).  The District’s 
phones should be available to serve the District’s community, and non-business use of the phones 
can hurt the District’s operations. A pattern of excessive personal phone calls, personal visits, 
and/or private business dealings is not acceptable and may lead to disciplinary action. 

 

INSPECTION OF PERSONAL AND DISTRICT PROPERTY 

The District’s employees use the property and equipment the District owns and provides, and may 
also use the District’s materials, information, and other supplies. While employees may decorate 
their office workspaces with their personal possessions (such as pictures, plants, and the like), 
employees must remember that property supplied by the District remains the property of the 
District.  The District reserves the right to search any District property (e.g., personal computers, 
desks, lockers, or other storage areas) at any time. Refusal to allow inspection may lead to 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

 

WORKPLACE MONITORING 

Workplace monitoring may be conducted by Barefoot Bay Recreation District to ensure quality 
control, employee safety, security, and customer satisfaction.  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 23  

Barefoot Bay Recreation District may conduct video surveillance of non-private workplace areas. 
Video monitoring is used to identify safety concerns, maintain quality control, detect theft and 
misconduct, and discourage or prevent acts of harassment and workplace violence.  

Because Barefoot Bay Recreation District is sensitive to the legitimate privacy rights of employees, 
every effort will be made to guarantee that workplace monitoring is done in an ethical and 
respectful manner.  

Notice is hereby given that video surveillance may occur on District property. In the event a video 
surveillance recording captures an employee or other building user violating District policies, rules 
or local, state, or federal laws, the video surveillance recording may be used in appropriate 
disciplinary proceedings against the employee or other building user and may also be provided to 
law enforcement agencies. 

No employee, unless authorized by the Community Manager or designee, shall tamper 
with, alter, turn off or otherwise adjust CCTV cameras or equipment. Employees who 
violate this prohibition will be disciplined including up to termination based on the 
severity and nature of the offense. 

NETWORK AND ELECTRONIC RESOURCES POLICY 

Network and Electronic Resources, such as computers, other hardware, software, e-mail, landline 
and cellular telephones, fax machines and internet access, are tools that the District provides its 
employees to assist them in their work.  These Network and Electronic Resources and related 
access systems are proprietary District property and subject to review or access by the District at 
any time. 

All employees who use the District’s Network and Electronic Resources must follow the guidelines 
below: 

1. Use Network and Electronic Resources for District business purposes only. 

2. Messages and communications sent via the District’s Network and Electronic Resources 
are subject to the Public Records Act, and may be used in legal proceedings.  Thus, all 
records are open to public review. Please consider this before sending any confidential 
messages or material via the Network and Electronic Resources. 

3. E-Mail is not a substitute for face-to-face communication.  If you have a conflict with 
someone or need to discuss an important issue, it should be handled in person or over the 
telephone if a meeting is not possible. 

4. Remember that all of the District’s policies, including but not limited to policies on Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Harassment, Confidentiality, Personal Conduct and Rules of 
Conduct, apply to the use of the District’s Network and Electronic Resources.  Employees 
must not review or forward sexually explicit, profane or otherwise unprofessional or 
unlawful material through the District’s Network and Electronic Resources 

5. Passwords protecting the use of the District’s Network and Electronic Resources are the 
District’s property and will be assigned to employees as needed.   Upon assignment of 
original password, employees shall change the password to a unique password.  Passwords 
shall not be shared with any co-workers, supervisors or other persons. Do notOnly the 
Community Manager, District Clerk or designee are authorized to download or install any 
software or program on any District computer or other hardware.  

6. The District expressly prohibits the unauthorized use, installation, copying or distribution 
of copyrighted, trademarked or patented material. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 24  

7. Employees must not attempt to override or evade any program or measure installed by the 
District to protect the security or limit the use of its Network and Electronic Resources.   

8. Employees shall refrain fromnot play non-work related  video and/or music streaming 
during regular business hours from District computers or devices. 

The District retains the right to review all communications conducted and data saved, reviewed or 
accessed via the District’s Network and Electronic Resources, including District computers, e-mail 
and internet access.  The District does not permit its employees to access or use any District 
password, e-mail or internet access other than their own.  Inappropriate use of Network and 
Electronic Resources may result in discipline, up to and including discharge.  Employees should be 
careful to safeguard their passwords, log off their terminals when not in use and not permit others 
to access District systems. 

 

CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

In the course of employment, you may have access to confidential information or other 
information regarding the District or fellow employees.  It is your responsibility to refrain from 
revealing or divulging any such information and that you use it only in the performance of your 
duties.  Even information subject to public records laws shall be considered confidential until such 
time a request is made by the public to review such information.  Violation of this policy shall be 
considered misconduct connected with employment as contemplated by Chapter 443 of the 
Florida Statutes, governing unemployment compensation, and shall subject the employee to 
immediate dismissal. 

 

PERSONAL CONDUCT 

As a condition of employment, employees must notify their Department Manager if they are 
arrested for a criminal charge.  Such notification must be made within twenty four (24) hours of 
the arrest.   

 

RULES OF CONDUCT AND PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE 

There are reasonable rules of conduct which must be followed in any organization to help a group 
of people work together effectively.  The District expects each employee to present himself or 
herself in a professional appearance and manner.  If an employee is not considerate of others and 
does not observe reasonable work rules, disciplinary action will be taken.   

Depending on the severity or frequency of the disciplinary problems, a verbal or written 
reprimand, suspension without pay, disciplinary probation, or discharge may be necessary.  It is 
within the District’s sole discretion to select the appropriate disciplinary action to be taken.  
Notwithstanding the availability of the various disciplinary options, the District reserves the right 
to discharge an employee at its discretion, with or without notice. 

Although employment with Barefoot Bay Recreation District is based on mutual consent and both 
the employee and Barefoot Bay Recreation District have the right to terminate employment at will, 
with or without cause or advance notice, Barefoot Bay Recreation District may use progressive 
discipline at its discretion. These steps are guides only; it is not to be assumed that any one of 
them, or all of them in progression, will automatically be administered. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 25  

Barefoot Bay Recreation District recognizes that each disciplinary situation is unique. Therefore, 
management retains the right to treat each incident on an individual basis at its discretion. 
However, in considering the discipline to be utilized in a particular case, management may 
consider the severity of the event, the cost involved to Barefoot Bay Recreation District, the 
interval between violations of a similar nature by the same employee, other violations, the 
employee’s overall work record, the employee’s length of service, and other factors as may bear 
upon the efficient and harmonious operation of Barefoot Bay Recreation District. While Barefoot 
Bay Recreation District is in no way bound to follow any specific procedures, the following forms 
of discipline may be utilized:  

 ORAL WARNING - For minor offenses, the employee should be given an oral warning and 
documenting with the date, and the incident in the District employee’s personnel file. 

  WRITTEN WARNING - If the Oral Warning does not produce the necessary improvements 
and when repeated; or, when more severe offenses occur, the employee should be given a 
written warning.  The written warning must include what has occurred, what rule or policy 
has been violated, what is expected of the employee, the amount of time allowed for 
improvement and make specific reference to all previous warning(s) (if any) that pertain 
in any way, to this warning.  The warning statement should also contain a statement as to 
what more drastic disciplinary action will be taken if the employee does not correct the 
situation or commits further policy or rule infractions.  All the facts of the case leading to 
the written warning should be discussed with the employee in private, with no 
interruptions.  A copy of the written warning should be provided to the employee.  The 
employee should acknowledge receipt of the written warning by signing the Written 
Warning document (memo).  The employee should be encouraged to make any comments 
she/he feels is pertinent to the situation.  If the employee refuses to sign the Written 
Warning, it is the responsibility of the Department Manager to so state on the form prior to 
forwarding it to be put in the District employee’s personnel file.   

Following a written warning the immediate supervisor under guidance of the Human 
Resources shall jointly develop a “Corrective Action Plan” with the employee to give clear 
expectation of how the employee can correct his/her work related deficiencies 

 SUSPENSION - A period of time that an individual is not permitted to work or receives pay 
from Barefoot Bay Recreation District. Suspension is appropriate in lieu of termination, 
when management feels an investigation of the circumstances is warranted and immediate 
“defusing” of a situation becomes necessary or when conflict with another employee 
warrants both to be suspended until an investigation uncovers the individual culpability of 
the conflict.  Suspensions are generally without pay and are issued for a period of one (1) 
to ten (10) working days depending upon the seriousness of the infraction. If there is a 
need to dock pay from an exempt employee because of a suspension, the pay will be 
docked in full day increments. 

Following a suspension the immediate supervisor under guidance of the Human Resources 
shall jointly develop a “Corrective Action Plan” with the employee to give clear expectation 
of how the employee can correct his/her work related deficiencies 

 DEMOTION - Demotions occur when employees do not follow the methods and procedures 
established for the particular job function or when the employee does not sustain quality 
performance.  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 26  

 DISMISSAL - Dismissals are the involuntary separation of an employee at Barefoot Bay 
Recreation District. Dismissals should be substantiated with documentation of previous 
disciplinary actions, except in those cases serious enough to warrant immediate dismissal. 

By using progressive discipline, we hope that most employee problems can be corrected at an 
early stage, benefiting both the employee and Barefoot Bay Recreation District. All discipline 
actions must be documented in the employee file. 

The following is not a complete list of offenses for which an employee may be subject to discipline, 
but it is illustrative of those offenses that may result in immediate discipline, up to and including 
dismissal, for a single offense: 

1. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness. 

2. Dishonesty, including falsification of District-related documents, Employment 
Applications, or misrepresentation of any fact. 

3. Fighting, disorderly conduct, horseplay, or any other behavior which is dangerous or 
disruptive. 

4. During your working hours for the District, being in the possession of, consumption of, or 
being under the influence of alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs. 

5. Illegal manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale, possession, or use of illegal drugs or 
un-prescribed controlled substances. 

6. Reporting for work with illegal drugs or un-prescribed controlled substances in your 
body. 

7. Possession of weapons, firearms, ammunition, explosives, or fireworks, in accordant 
with current Local, State, and Federal laws. 

8. Failure to promptly report a workplace injury or accident involving any of the District’s 
employees, residents, equipment, or property. 

9. Willful neglect of safety practices, rules, and policies. 

10. Speeding or reckless driving in a District Vehicle. 

11. Violation of a criminal or civil state or federal law or other conduct which may damage 
the reputation of District. 

12. Use of profane language while on District business. 

13. Stealing, misappropriating, or intentionally damaging property belonging to the District 
or its residents or employees. 

14. Unauthorized use of the District’s or its residents’ name, logo, funds, equipment, vehicles, 
or property. 

15. Insubordination, including failure to comply with any work assignments or instructions 
given by any District Department Manager or immediate supervisor with the authority to 
do so. 

16. Violation of the District’s Equal Employment Opportunity Policy or its Harassment 
Policy. 

17. Interference with the work performance of other employees. 

18. Failure to cooperate with an internal investigation, including, but not limited to, 
investigations of violations of these work rules. 

19. Failure to maintain the confidentiality of information belonging to the District or its 
residents. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 27  

20. Failure to comply with the personnel policies and rules of the District. 

20.21. Unauthorized tampering, altering, turning off or adjusting District electronic equipment, 
including but not limited to CCTV system. 

 

RE-EMPLOYMENT 

Former employees who are rehired and return to work within three months of their termination 
will not be required to go through another probationary period, unless the District deems it 
necessary. Former employees who are rehired and return to work more than three months after 
their termination will be rehired only as new employees and must complete a new probationary 
period. They will be considered new employees for any and all benefits.  As a general rule, the 
District will not rehire former employees who: 

 Were dismissed by the District 

 Resigned without giving two weeks’ notice 

 Were dismissed for inability to perform job duties 

 Had a poor attendance record 

 Had a below-average evaluation 

 Violated work rules or safety rules 

Variances from the above referenced general rule shall be authorized by Human 
Resources and the Community Manager. 

 

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

The District discourages our employees from taking additional outside employment. Employees 
who wish to take on outside employment must first obtain permission from their Department 
Manager or the Community Manager. Work requirements for the District, including overtime, must 
take precedence over any outside employment. 

If the District permits an employee to take outside employment, the employee must report to his 
or her Department Manager when the outside job has started. If, as a result of this outside 
employment, the employee is unable to work when requested by the District, including overtime, 
or is unable to maintain a high work performance level at the District, permission to work at the 
outside job may be rescinded, or the employee may be subject to termination. 

Employees are not permitted to work for any vendor of the District outside of the regular working 
hours as described above, without the express approval of the District’s Community Manager or 
his or her designated representative. 

The District will not pay medical benefits for injuries or sickness resulting from employment by 
any employer other than the District.  

 

BENEFITS 

HEALTH INSURANCE 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 28  

Barefoot Bay Recreation District’s health insurance plan provides employees and their dependents 
access to medical and dental care insurance benefits. Employees in the following employment 
classifications are eligible to participate in the health insurance plan: 

 Full-time employees and part-time employees who work 30+ hours per week. Eligible employees 
may participate in the health insurance plan subject to all terms and conditions of the agreement 
between Barefoot Bay Recreation District and the insurance carrier. 

A change in employment classification that would result in loss of eligibility to participate in the 
health insurance plan may qualify an employee for benefits continuation under the Consolidated 
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA). Refer to the Benefits Continuation (COBRA) policy 
for more information. 

Details of the health insurance plan are described in the employee benefits package. 

  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 29  

VOLUNTARY INSURANCE AND BENEFITS 

In addition to health insurance programs, the District offers benefits and insurance that Regular 
full-time employees may elect at their cost.  Currently, these benefits include additional life 
insurance, Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) insurance, retirement plan, tuition 
reimbursement, short-term disability insurance, long-term disability insurance, and dental 
insurance.  These optional benefits are subject to change from time to time.  

 

TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 

Approval for participation in this program must be granted in advance of the start of the classes, 
by the employee’s immediate supervisor, Department Manager and HR, in order for the participant 
to be reimbursed. Application made after the start of classes may not be approved.  

 

Employees in the following employment  situations are eligible to participate in the Tuition 
Reimbursement: 

Regular full-time employees and uUnder certain circumstances full time and part time 
employees may take training or academic course work and receive reimbursement for tuition. 
Courses must be job related. 

A.  

B.A. Under certain circumstances full time and part time employees may take training 
or course work and receive  reimbursement for tuition. Courses must be job related. 

I. Courses must be taken at an accredited institution and are normally taken on the 
employee's own time.   

II. Employees may seek reimbursement only for courses that are directly related to 
their current position. 

III. The District will provide 100% tuition  reimbursement only for classes that the 
employee successfully completed and passed.  There is no reimbursement for 
classes that have not been completed or failed.  

IV. Separation from employment with Barefoot Bay Recreation District terminates any 
eligibility for this program. The District must be reimbursed for any funds it has 
expended if separation occurs prior to the completion of the course(s).  

C.B. Approval for participation in this program must be granted in advance of the start of the 
classes, by the employee’s immediate supervisor, Department Manager and HR, in order 
for the participant to be reimbursed. Application made after the start of classes may not be 
approved.  

D.C. Course reimbursement will be made after completion of course with 
documentation of course  passing. 

E.D. Each budget year funds will be allocated for this program and managed by 
Department managers.  If the allocated funds are exhausted no further reimbursements 
will be made for the balance of the current budget year. 

F.E. If you terminate employment within three (3) years after completion of a course 
for which you have received tuition assistance, you must reimburse Barefoot Bay in an 
amount proportionate to the three (3) year period of employment not completed, rounded 
to the nearest month.   



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 30  

 

VACATION TIME 

The Regular full-time employees are eligible for paid vacation.  Regular part-time employees are 
eligible for paid vacation only for the weeks they work 20 hours or more.  Temporary and seasonal 
employees are not eligible for paid vacation.  The length of annual vacations is determined by the 
length of service.  

Vacation time will begin to accrue on the first 31st day of employment; however, employees may 
not use accrued vacation time until completing six (6) months of employment.  Vacation time must 
be scheduled and approved in advance by your Department Manager.  Every effort will be made to 
accommodate vacation requests.  However, business needs will determine the ability to honor 
such requests. 

Regular Full-time Employees – Accrual Schedule 

Length of Service  Vacation Accrual 

0 through 5th year    =     8 hours per month 

6 years through 10th year   = 10 hours per month 

11 years through 15th year   = 12 hours per month 

16+ years    = 14 hours per month 

Maximum Accrued Time for Regular Full-time Employee: 

240 hours maximum on record  

The maximum amount of Vacation time a Regular Full-time Employee may accrue is 240 hours.  
Once an employee’s Vacation time reaches a maximum of 240 hours, no more hours will be 
credited to the employee’s Vacation time until hours are used and hours on record falls below the 
240-hour maximum. 

Regular Part-time Employees– Accrual Schedule  

 Length of Service   Vacation Accrual 

 0 through 2nd year =  2 hours per month  

 3+ years   = 4 hours per month 

Maximum Accrued Time for Regular Part-time employee: 

The maximum amount of Vacation time a Regular Part-time employee (work at least 20 hours per 
week) may accrue is 90 hours. Once a Regular Part-time employee (work at least 20 hours per 
week) Vacation Time reaches a maximum of 90 hours, no more hours will be credited to the 
employee’s Vacation Time until hours are used and hours on record falls below the 90-hour 
maximum. 

New employees who begin work between the first and fifteenth days of the month will begin to 
accrue annual vacation as of the first of the month; those employed after the fifteenth day of the 
month will start accruing vacation on the first day of the next calendar month.   

Exempt employees who have a minimum of one hundred twenty (120) hours of unused recorded 
vacation time may convert forty (40) hours of such unused vacation time to cash one time per 
fiscal year.  



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 31  

Upon termination, all employees of the District have the right to be paid for any unused vacation 
time accrued by the employee. 

Holidays that occur while an employee is on prior approved vacation will count as a holiday rather 
than as a vacation day.  When sickness occurs within a vacation leave, the period of illness may be 
charged as sick leave and the charge against vacation leave reduced accordingly.  Request for such 
action must be made within two (2) days after return from vacation and must be supported by a 
medical certification substantiating the illness or injury claimed. 

If bereavement leave occurs within a vacation period, the vacation period may be extended to 
cover this period and such time charged to bereavement leave as authorized; otherwise, the 
vacation leave will be reduced accordingly.  Upon the termination of employment, the employee 
shall receive payment for all accumulated vacation time up to the maximum accumulations listed 
above. 

The following key points provide answers to the most frequently asked questions concerning 
Vacation Time: 

 An employee in his or her initial 6-months employment is not eligible to use Vacation 
Time. However, an employee is accruing Vacation Time during this period that will be 
available upon completion of this 6-month period. 

 Employees on short-term illness or Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave will not 
accrue Vacation Time. 

 Regular Full-time employees Vacation Time is accrued in hours, once a month, on the first 
pay period after the 15th. Regular Part-time employees Vacation Time is accrued in hours, 
once a month, on the first pay period of the following month.  

 Upon termination from the District, employees who have completed their initial 6-month 
employment period will be paid in their last check for any accrued, but unused Vacation 
time. 

 

SICK LEAVE 

Sick leave is available for regular full-time employees only and is intended for use on a necessity 
basis only.  It is not intended as additional vacation or paid time off.  Sick time will begin to accrue 
on the first day of employment and may be used after completion of six (6) months of employment. 

Sick leave will accrue at a rate of eight (8) hours per month during the first ten (10) years of 
employment.  Sick leave will accrue at a rate of twelve (12) hours per month after completing ten 
(10) years of employment.  The maximum amount of sick time an employee may accrue is 750 
hours. Once an employee’s Sick leave reaches a maximum of 750 hours, no more hours will be 
credited to the employee’s Sick leave until hours are used and fall below the 750-hour 
maximum.  Sick leave shall not accrue when an employee is on any type of leave, other than 
vacation. 

Sick leave may be used for personal illness, the death or critical illness of a member of your 
immediate family, to keep medical and dental appointments, and to supplement workers 
compensation or disability, in order to equal the employee’s usual gross pay prior to the workers 
compensation triggering event.  Holidays that occur while an employee is on Sick leave will count 
as a holiday rather than as a Sick leave. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 32  

If you will be absent from work due to an illness, notice must be given to your  immediate 
supervisor prior to or at your scheduled reporting time, each day you are absent from work due to 
illness.  If you are to be absent and fail to comply with the rules and regulations covering sick 
leave, you may be subject to disciplinary action.  If you are absent from work and you are unable to 
contact your Department Manager because of a serious emergency situation or an accident, you 
must contact your Department Manager as soon as you are able.   Management is responsible for 
determining that sick leave is properly authorized and used in accordance with this policy.  At the 
discretion of the District, you must furnish a written medical certification that substantiates the 
illness and/or injury and your need to be absent from work.  Absences of three (3) or more 
consecutive days will require medical certifications that affirm your illness and/or injury and 
permits you to return to work. 

No payment shall be made for unused sick leave except at retirement, resignation or layoff.  Such 
employees will receive pay for their accrued sick leave upon separation from employment.  
Payment will be at the following schedule: 

0-5 year’s service 10% 

6-10 year’s service 15% 

11-15 year’s service 20% 

16-20 years service 25% 

21-25 year’s service 30% 

25+ year’s service 40% 

 

ADDITIONAL BENEFITS    

 Employees are entitled to a reduced price lunch at the lounge and 19th Hole during their 
working hours. 

 All employees are permitted to play one game of golf a week for $5 from November through 
April and two times a week from May through October at no charge for greens fees. 

 20% Discount on Pro Shop merchandise 

 All full time employees may join the ICMA Retirement Corporation Plan.  Employees contribute 
3% of their gross pay, and Barefoot Bay contributes 1The District will match employee 
deductions one for one up to a maximum of 3% of the employee’s gross pay.  

 

LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE (FMLA ELIGIBILITY) 

Employees may qualify for an unpaid leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) for up 
to twelve weeks per year.   FMLA can be taken as either a single block of time such as whole weeks, 
as part time such as single days, or in small blocks of time such as hours and in some cases less 
than an hour if medically necessary.   

To be eligible for FMLA leave the employee must meet these criteria: 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 33  

 Be employed with the District for at least 12 months 

 Have worked at least 1250 hours over the previous 12 months  

 Have not already exhausted any FMLA leave entitlement for the past 12 month period. 

The following circumstances qualify for FMLA leave: 

 Birth of an employee’s child and to bond with such child within one year after birth.   

 Placement of a child with an employee for adoption or foster care and to bond with such 
child within one year of placement. 

 The employee is needed to care for a child, spouse, or parent who has a “serious health 
condition”.  

 A child shall mean the covered employee’s biological, adopted, or foster child, 
stepchild, legal ward, and child of a person standing in loco parentis who is  under 18 
years of age or is over 18 years of age and is incapable of self-care because of a physical 
or mental disability.  In loco parentis is a person who provides day-to-day care or 
financial support for a child with no biological or legal relationship to the child.  

 A parent means a covered employee's biological, adoptive, step, foster or in loco 
parentis father or mother. This term does not include parents “in law”. 

 A “spouse” means a husband or wife as defined under the law in the State of Florida. 

 The employee is unable to perform the functions of his or her position because of his or her 
own “serious health condition”. 

 Any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that an employee’s spouse, son, daughter, or 
parent is a covered military member on covered active duty  

 Military Caregiver Leave – 26 workweeks of job-protected leave during a single 12 month 
period to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness, if the eligible 
employee is a service member’s spouse, son, daughter, parent or next of kin.   

 

SERIOUS HEALTH CONDITION 

An employee may take FMLA to care for a spouse, child, parent who has a serious health condition 
or when the employee is unable to work because of their own serious health condition.  

Serious health conditions include: 

 Conditions requiring an overnight stay in a hospital or other medical care facility; 

 Conditions that incapacitate the employee or covered family member for more than three 
consecutive days and require ongoing medical treatment (either multiple appointments 
with a health care provider, or a single appointment and follow-care such as prescription 
medication); 

 Chronic conditions that cause occasional periods when the employee or family member are 
incapacitated and require treatment by a health care provider at least twice a year; and 

 Pregnancy (including prenatal medical appointments, incapacity due to morning sickness 
and medically required bed rest). 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 34  

 

REQUESTING FMLA LEAVE 

If the employee knows in advance of the need for FMLA Leave, (for example, pregnancy or planned 
surgery) the employee is required to give notice to the BBRD at least 30 days in advance.   

If the employee learns of the need for FMLA leave less than 30 days in advance (for example, sudden 
illness), the employee must give BBRD notice as soon as possible (generally either the day the 
employee learns of the need or the next work day).  

When the employee needs FMLA unexpectedly (for example, emergency medical care or an accident) 
and is unable to notify the District, the employee must inform the employer as soon as possible and 
follow the usual notice or call-in procedures  when the employee is able.   

 

A Family and Medical Leave Request Form must be fully completed and signed by the employee 
prior to the commencement date of the leave.  The employee’s notice must include sufficient 
information for the District to determine that the employee may have a FMLA qualifying reason 
and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave.  It is imperative that the employee complete 
and return any forms as requested and within the required timeframe.  Failure to meet those 
requirements may result in a delay or denial of FMLA leave.  Also, failure to provide requested 
documentation of the reason for an absence from work may lead to termination of employment. 

The employee’s initial request will be acknowledged in writing within 5 business days by Human 
Resources, and the employee will receive the following information: 

 An eligibility notice stating if the employee’s leave is or is not covered under the Family 
Medical Leave Act.  If the employee is not eligible, the HR Department will state the reason for 
ineligibility. 

 A notice of your rights and responsibilities under FMLA including: 
 A definition of the 12 month period used to keep track of FMLA usage.  The BBRD will 

measure the 12-month period as a “rolling 12-month period measured backward” from 
the date an employee uses any leave under the policy.  Each time an employee takes 
leave, the BBRD will compute the amount of leave the employee has taken under this 
policy and subtract it from the 12 weeks of available leave, and the balance remaining is 
the amount the employee is entitled to take at that time. 

 The right to use paid leave and whether the employee will be required to use their paid 
leave.  BBRD requires that all available paid leave be used first and will provide the 
employee with their current available Paid Time Off (the amount could change based on 
the employee’s action leave date). 

 Information on the continuation of health benefits. 
 The employee’s right to return to his or her job at the end of the 12 week FMLA leave.   
 A request for medical certification as required. 

 

MEDICAL CERTIFICATION 

If Leave is due to illness, the employee must supply medical certificate indicating: 

 Contact information for the health care provider 
 The onset of the serious health condition 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 35  

 How long it is expected to last 
 Appropriate medical facts about the condition 
 Whether the employee needs leave continuously or intermittently and specific information 

about how often, how much time and information about the medical necessity for taking 
intermittent leave.  

Failure to return the medical certification within 15 calendar days after the request, could result in 
the leave not being covered under the FMLA, unless it is not practicable under the particular 
circumstances to do so despite the employee’s diligent, good faith efforts.   

If any of the required information for certification is missing, the employee will be notified in 
writing.  He or she must provide the missing information within 7 calendar days.   If the District 
has concerns about the validity of the certification, it may request a second opinion at the District’s 
cost.  If the first and second opinion differs, it may request a third opinion at the District’s cost.  If 
the employee’s need for leave continues for an extended period of time, or if it changes 
significantly, the District may require the employee to provide an updated re-certification at 
intervals in accordance with the FMLA.   

The employee will be required to furnish a certificate stating that he or she is physically able to 
resume his or her responsibilities before he or she is permitted to return to work.  Return to work 
may be delayed or denied if the appropriate documentation is not provided in a timely manner.   

BENEFITS WHILE ON LEAVE 

While on Leave the employee will not be eligible for paid holidays.  The employee must use all PTO 
as a part of and at the beginning of the leave. 

Group health insurance benefits will be continued on the same basis as if the employee had 
continued active employment.  Any share of the group health plan premiums which had been paid 
by the employee prior to FMLA leave must continue to be paid by the employee during the FMLA 
leave period.  If premiums are raised or lowered, the employee must pay the new premium rates.  
Only group health insurance benefits and premium payments will be maintained during the 
requisite period. 

Premiums for other benefits, such as additional supplemental life insurance, must be fully paid by 
the employee. 

If a premium payments more than 30 days late, the District will provide written notice to the 
employee that the payment has not been received.  Such notice will be mailed to the employee at 
least 15 days before coverage is to cease, advising that coverage will be dropped on a specified 
date at least 15 days after the date of the letter unless the payment has been received by that date. 

Employees who fail to return from a leave and have maintained medical insurance coverage will be 
responsible for reimbursing the District for the Employer’s portion of the premiums paid by the 
District while on such leave.  However, the District will not send reimbursement for premiums if 
the employee’s failure to return to work is due to the continuation, recurrence, or the onset of a 
serious health condition or other circumstances beyond the employee’s control. 

  

RETURN TO WORK 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 36  

During FMLA leave, the employee must provide HR with periodic reports regarding the employee’s 
status and intent to return to work.  If the employee does not contact Human Resources during 
that time, we will consider the employee to have voluntarily resigned from his or her position.  

For a Leave in excess of one month, contact should be made no later than two weeks prior to the 
employee’s intended return date. For a Leave less than one month in duration, contact should be 
made no later than five days prior the employee’s intended return date.  If the employee’s 
anticipated return to work date changes and it becomes necessary for the employee to take more 
or less leave than originally anticipated, the employee must provide HR with reasonable notice, i.e., 
within two business days of the employee’s changed circumstances and new return to work date.   

If the employee gives HR notice of the employee’s intent not to return to work, the employee will 
be considered to have voluntarily resigned. 

If the employee fails to return to work, the last day of leave will be considered the employee’s date 
of resignation. 

Before the employee returns to work from FMLA leave for the employee’s own serious health 
condition, the employee may be required to submit a fitness for duty certification from the 
employee’s health care provider, with respect to the condition for which the leave was taken, 
stating that the employee is able to resume work. 

 

JOB RESTORATION 

Upon return from authorized FMLA leave, an employee must be restored to the employee’s 
original job, or to an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits and other terms and conditions of 
employment.  In addition, an employee’s use of FMLA cannot result in the loss of any employment 
benefit that the employee earned or was entitled to before using FMLA, nor be counted against the 
employee under a “no fault” attendance policy.   

If the Leave was covered under the Family Medical Leave Act, and the employee is returning 
within the specified 12 week period, the employee will be notified by Human Resources whether 
to return to the position he or she held at the time the Leave began, or alternatively, what 
comparable position the employee has been assigned to.  Only Human Resources is authorized to 
allow the employee to return to work. The employee will be required to provide proof from a 
physician that he or she is medically capable of returning. 

The employee will not be guaranteed reemployment for FMLA in excess of 12 weeks.  

If the Leave was not covered by the Family Medical Leave Act, the employee will be notified 
whether a position is available for him or her. 

KEY EMPLOYEES 

Under specific and limited circumstances, BBRD may deny job restoration to “key employees” 
whose restoration to employment after FMLA leave will cause substantial and grievous economic 
injury to its operations.  A “key” employee must be among the highest paid 10 percent of all the 
employees – both salaried, non-salaried, eligible and ineligible who are employed by the employer 
within 75 miles of the worksite.   

 

KEY EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATION 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 37  

BBRD will:   

 Notify the employee in writing of his/her status as a key employee at the time of the FMLA 
leave request  

 For unforeseeable leave, BBRD will provide written notice at the start of the leave to 
inform the employee of the potential consequences regarding reinstatement.   

 If the employee is already on leave, BBRD will offer the employee a reasonable opportunity 
to return to work from FMLA leave after giving this notice  

 Once it is determined that job restoration will cause substantial economic injury, the key 
employee will be notified of the decision, the reasons for the determination and that he or 
she is still entitled to take the leave. 

 After taking FMLA leave, a “key” employee is still entitled to request reinstatement and the 
BBRD will determine and again notify the employee as to whether reinstatement will cause 
severe economic injury.     

DONATIONS OF SICK LEAVE 

Employees with greater than eighty hours of accrued sick time, or who are separating from the 
District,  may donate leave to an employee who has experienced an FMLA leave qualifying event 
from your accrued vacation or sick time on an hour to hour basis.  Donations may be made under 
the following conditions in regard to receiving employee: he/she has not abused sick leave in the 
past; the illness is documented; all sick and annual leave is exhausted; and only the specific 
amount of leave time which is needed may be donated.  

 

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

The District will provide up to three days of paid bereavement leave for all District employees 
upon the death of an immediate family member. Part time employees will be paid for their 
regularly scheduled hours. 

For purposes of this policy, “immediate family” is defined as the employee’s or the employee’s 
spouse’s parents, siblings, children, grandparents, grandchildren, the employee’s spouse, or any 
other relative who resides in the employee’s household.  If an employee must travel out of state for 
this purpose, five (5) days of paid bereavement leave will be granted. 

Employees should direct all requests for Bereavement Leave to their Department Manager or to 
the Community Manager.   

While on Bereavement Leave, an employee will be paid at straight time for the hours the employee 
was scheduled to work on the days missed. 

JURY LEAVE 

A All Regular employees of the District who are called for jury duty will be granted time off with 
pay to perform this civic duty for the hours that they are scheduled for work.  Employees must 
notify their immediate supervisor as soon as they learn they have been summoned as a juror so 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 38  

that work arrangements can be made.  In order to be paid for Jury Leave, an employee must 
provide his or her  immediate supervisor with the jury summons and a note from the Clerk of the 
Court indicating the times the employee was in court for jury duty.  The District will pay 
employees straight time for their regularly scheduled hours of work, for up to five days of jury 
service.  An employee who is excused from jury duty prior to the end of a regularly scheduled 
workday must notify the Department Manager who will determine if the employee is to report for 
work for the remainder of that day. 

 

MILITARY LEAVE 

The District will grant Regular full-time employees called into temporary active military service an 
unpaid leave of absence and reemployment rights as per Uniformed Services Employment and 
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) provided that:  

 The employee provides advance written or verbal notice of service within a reasonable 
amount of time. 

 The cumulative service is 5 years or less 

 The employee returns to work or applied for re-employment in a timely manner after the 
conclusion of service: 

o Less than 31 days = next work period beginning at least 8 hours after arriving 
home 

o 31-180 days = Within 14 days, or if not possible then next full day after it becomes 
possible 

o Over 180 days = no later than 90 days.  

 The employee has not been separated from service with a disqualify discharge or under 
other than honorable conditions.  

The employee has the right to elect to continue existing employer-based health plan coverage for 
the employee and dependents for up to 24 month while in the military and if the employee chooses 
not to continue coverage, generally has the right to be reinstated in the health plan upon re-
employment without any waiting periods or exclusion.  

Upon re-employment, the employee must be reinstated to the job and benefits that he or she 
would have attained if the employee had not been absent due to military service, or in some cases, 
a comparable job.  

Employees may use accrued vacation time during a military leave of absence, but are not required 
to do so.  

Unpaid military leave will be granted in accordance with U.S. Federal law.  

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE LEAVE POLICY 

In accordance with Florida Statute 741.313, an employee may be granted up to three (3) working 
days of leave (unpaid or paid if the employee chooses to use Vacation Time) if the employee (or a 
family or household member of the employee) is the victim of domestic violence. 



 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  P a g e  | 39  

NOTE: “Family or household” means spouse, former spouse(s), persons related by blood or 
marriage, persons who are presently residing together as if a family or who have resided together 
in the past as if a family and persons who are parents of a child in common (regardless of whether 
they have been married). With the exceptions of persons who have a child in common, the family 
or household members must be currently residing or have in the past resided together in the same 
dwelling unit. 

Reasons this leave can be requested include: 

1. To seek an injunction for protection against domestic violent or an injunction for 
protection in cases of repeat violence, dating violence, or sexual violence. 

2. To obtain medical care or mental health counseling, or both, for the employee or a family 
or household member to address physical or psychological injuries resulting from the act 
of domestic violence. 

3. To obtain services from a victim-services organization, including, but not limited to, a 
domestic violence shelter, program or a rape crisis center as a result of the act of domestic 
violence. 

4. To make your home secure from the person responsible for the domestic violence or to 
seek new housing to escape this person. 

5. To seek legal assistance in addressing issues arising from the act of domestic violence or to 
attend and prepare for court related proceedings arising from the act of domestic violence. 

Except in cases of imminent danger to the health or safety of you or your family or household 
member, and employee must provide appropriate advance notice of the need for leave, along with 
sufficient documentation of the act of domestic violence or sexual violence.  This documentation 
may include copies of restraining orders, police reports, orders to appear in court, etc. 

RETURNING/NOT RETURNING FROM A LEAVE  OTHER THAN FMLA 

When an employee is ready to return from a leave of absence without pay, the District will attempt 
to reinstate the employee to his or her former position or to one with similar responsibilities on a 
case by case basis.  

An employee who returns to work following an unpaid leave will be considered as having 
continuous service.  If an employee does not return from an unpaid leave of absence without pay, 
the termination date is the last day of the authorized leave period or the date the employee notifies 
his or her supervisor or manager that he or she is not returning, whichever is sooner.  Such 
employees may be considered for reemployment. 



 

 

Original Approved December 11, 2009 
Version 4 Amended by BOT on 14Nov14  
  P a g e  | 40 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

I have received the current Barefoot Bay Recreation District Employee Handbook  Amended 
by Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees and Approved on November 14, 
2014.  I have read and understand the material covered. I have had the opportunity to ask 
questions about the policies in this handbook, and I understand that any future questions that I 
may have about the handbook or its contents will be answered by the Community Manager or his 
or her designated representative upon request. I agree to and will comply with the policies, 
procedures, and other guidelines set forth in the handbook. I understand that the District reserves 
the right to change, modify, or abolish any or all of the policies, benefits, rules, and regulations 
contained or described in the handbook as it deems appropriate at any time, with or without 
notice. I acknowledge that neither the handbook nor its contents are an express or implied 
contract regarding my employment. 

I further understand that all employees of the District, regardless of their classification or position, 
are employed on an at-will basis, and their employment is terminable at the will of the employee 
or the District at any time, with or without cause, and with or without notice. I have also been 
informed and understand that no officer, agent, representative, or employee of the District has any 
authority to enter into any agreement with any applicant for employment or employee for an 
employment arrangement or relationship other than on an at-will basis and nothing contained in 
the policies, procedures, handbooks, or any other documents of the District shall in any way create 
an express or implied contract of employment or an employment relationship other than one on 
an at-will basis. 

This handbook is the District property and must be returned upon separation. 

 

 ____________________________________________________  __________________________________  

Signature                                    Date 

 

____________________________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    K

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Acceptance of $60,000 (50% Match) Coastal Partnership Initiative Beach 

Grant 

 

Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 

 

Requested Action: Authorization for Chairman Klosky to Sign Agreements 

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

BBRD has been awarded a $60,000 (50% match grant) from the State of Florida, Department of 

Environmental Protection, Florida Coastal Management Program (pursuant to the National 

Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Cooperative Award).  The term of the grant is from 

01Jul16 through 30Jun17.   

 

Staff recommends the BOT authorize Chairman Klosky to sign the CPI $60,000 50% match grant 

agreement. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  Agreement (attached as a separate file due to size) 

Contact: Dawn Myers, District Clerk; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: Up to $60,000 with up to $30,000 reimbursable 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    L

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Lawn Bowling Irrigation Replacement 

 

Dept/Office: Capital 

  

Requested Action: Authorization to Proceed with Project  

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

The Lawn Bowling green is currently irrigated by a system that draws water from the lake and is 

delivered via golf course grade irrigation heads at the four corners and in the center (which 

prohibits the two lanes that run each way through the center from being used by competitive 

players).  During this summer, the irrigation system has experienced multiple problems resulting 

in inadequate water being consistently applied to the green.  Property Services and ABM have 

been trouble shooting the current system (BBRD-ABM contract calls for BBRD to maintain inlet 

pipe, pump, controller and source of electricity while ABM maintains piping, wiring and heads) 

to no avail.  With lawn bowling season set to begin in early November staff recommends the 

replacement of the golf course grade irrigation system with a residential grade system to start 

over and to have a less powerful set of heads that will not work against having a smooth playing 

surface (current heads throw the water with so much force that sand top dressed often is 

dislodged from low spots thus exacerbating the unevenness of the greens) 

 

There is sufficient available budget in the FY16 Capital Department’s Replacement Lawnmower 

budget ($11,978.58) to cover the anticipated expense (we currently have one quote for $3,400) of 

no more than $3,800.00. 

 

Although the Community Manager has the authority to authorize the project and transfer the 

funds (only within a single department), the approval of the BOT is sought prior to the project for 

transparency of the use of budgeted funds within the Capital Department.  As of the drafting of 

this memo, only one quote was received and the second quote will be forwarded to the BOT prior 

to the meeting for their review. 

 

Staff recommends the BOT authorize staff to proceed with the project and to transfer required 

budget from the balance of the FY16 Lawn Mower Replacement project. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  Quote from Sprinker Repair, Inc. 

Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager; John W. Coffey, Community Manager 

Fiscal Impact: Estimated not to exceed $3,800.00 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 





Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    M

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  BBRD Census 

 

Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 

  

Requested Action: Direction to Staff  

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

Trustee Cavaliere requested this item be placed on the agenda.  Due to BBRD being a special 

district, the U.S. Census does not report demographic information about the community in their 

data. No other source of demographic information for BBRD currently exists. 

 

Staff requests direction regarding this matter. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  N/A 

Contact: Frank Cavaliere, Trustee; Dawn Myers, District Clerk; John W. Coffey, Community 

Manager 

Fiscal Impact: TBD 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



Meeting Date  

Sep. 09, 2016 

   

   

Agenda 

Section 9  

Item No    N

 

Agenda Report 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees 

 

Subject:  Increased Child Safety 

 

Dept/Office: Administration: District Clerk 

  

Requested Action: Direction to Staff  

 

Summary Explanation and Background: 

 

Trustee Wright requested this item be placed on the agenda based on resident feedback and the 

increasing number of programs offered for children in BBRD. 

 

 

 

Staff requests direction regarding this matter. 

 
Exhibits Attached:  N/A 

Contact: Lee Wright, Trustee; Dawn Myers, District Clerk; John W. Coffey, Community 

Manager 

Fiscal Impact: TBD 

Contract/Agreement Reviewed by Attorney: N/A 

Community Manager’s Approval:  

 

 

 

 

 



  

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard, Building “F”  

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976-9233 
 

Phone 772-664-3141 
Fax 772-664-1928 

 
 

Memo To:  Board of Trustees 
 
From: John W. Coffey, Community Manager 
 
Date:  September 09, 2016  
 
Subject: Manager’s Report  
 
 
1. Beach Planning Deliverables – Staff anticipates the conceptual site plan, rough 

magnitude of costs and regulatory requirements to be received within the next 
two weeks.  Once they are received copies will be forwarded to the BOT and 
members of the Facilities Planning Advisory Committee (FPAC).  Once the FPAC 
has reviewed the items and made their recommendations, the issue will be 
placed on the next available BOT meeting agenda. 

2. Stormwater Drainage Equipment Update – The Bobcat, boom arm and mower 
were delivered this week.  Once staff has been trained on the new equipment, a 
demonstration event will be scheduled for anyone wishing to come down to 
Falcon Drive and inspect the equipment and see it in action. 

3. Reminder about Political and/or Yard Sale Signs  – Residents are encouraged 
to remember that political sign and/or yard sale signs are not allowed in the 
median of Barefoot Boulevard or on BBRD common areas.  Said signs placed in 
these areas will be removed and stored at Falcon Drive for 30 days and then 
disposed if not claimed. 

4. Golf Cart Lease RFP Evaluation Committee Membership – Per the BBRD 
Policy Manual, page 2-15, “Members of the Evaluation Committee shall consist of 
at least one (1) user department representative, one (1) Board member, and one 
(1) third-party non-employee resident chosen at the discretion of the Community 
Manager. The Community Manager and Board Chairman shall serve on the 
committee as non-voting members.”  One member of the BOT will need to be 
selected prior to my announcement of the committee membership.  The RFP will 
be issued on 12Sep16 and opened on 12Sep16. Dates and times will be 
announced for all meetings. 

  
 

 
 



 
Manager’s Report 

 
  

  

  

  

 



 
Attorney’s Report 

 
  

  

  

 



 
Trustees Liaison Reports 

 
  

  

  

  

 



 
Incidental Remarks from 

Trustees 
 

  

  

  

  

 



 
Audience Participation 

 
  

  

  

 



 
Adjournment 

 
  

  

  

  

 


	Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting Friday, September 9, 2016
	Agenda Friday, September 9, 2016
	01 Thought of the Day
	02 Pledge of Allegiance
	03 Roll Call
	04 Special Presentations 
	05 Approval of Minutes
	Tuesday, August 23, 2016

	06 Treasurer's Report
	September 9, 2016

	07 Audience Participation (Agenda Items Only)
	08 Unfinished Business
	09 New Business
	9A FY17 Employee Insurance Renewal
	Quotes from Brown & Brown

	9B DOR Violations 
	1 16-002087  ADIR Util Bldg. 911 Hyacinth Circle
	911 Hyacinth Orders and Notices  
	Photo

	2 16-002132  552 Dolphin Circle
	 Orders and Notices
	Photo

	3 16-002019 BOT Agenda Report -526 Persimmon Dr.
	3 2019 t Orders and Notices 9-9-16
	photo

	4 16-000981 BOT Agenda Report 1026 Thrush Circle
	Orders and Notices 9-9-16
	Photos  
	1
	2



	9C Shuffle Board Court Resurfacing
	Quotes from Nidy Sports Construction Company and Sports Surfaces LLC.

	9D Upgrade of Golf Course Irrigation Control Unit
	Westcoturf promotional and non-promotional quote

	9E Revised Food & Beverage Principles of Operations
	Revised draft Principles of Operations

	9F FY18 Budget Preparation Calendar
	Proposed FY18 Budget Calendar

	9G Violations Committee Member Re-appointments
	Resolution 2010-18, Current list of Violations Committee members,contacts, reappointment and expiration schedule.

	9H Baenziger Report Discussion
	Baenziger Report

	9I Adoption of Revised Policy Manual
	Resolution
	Revised Policy Manual

	9J Adoption of Revised Employee Handbook
	Revised Employee Handbook

	9K Acceptance of $60,000 (50% Match) Coastal Partnership Initiative BeachGrant
	9L Lawn Bowling Irrigation Replacement
	Quote from Sprinker Repair, Inc

	9M BBRD Census
	9N Increased Child Safety 

	10 Community Manager's Report
	September 9, 2016

	11 Attorney's Report
	12 Trustee Liaison Report
	13 Trustee Incidental Remarks 
	14 Audience Participation
	15 Adjournment
	9B Agenda package.pdf

		2016-09-02T19:21:05-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:23:58-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:24:39-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:25:22-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:26:27-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:27:34-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:28:56-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:30:09-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:32:23-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:34:28-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:35:54-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:38:01-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:39:50-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:41:55-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:43:51-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:46:12-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:48:22-0400
	John W. Coffey


		2016-09-02T19:50:56-0400
	John W. Coffey




